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What	is	the	EUCN?	

The	New	Zealand	European	Union	Centres	Network	 (EUCN),	 is	a	network	of	all	eight	New	

Zealand	 universities	 that	 aims	 to	 combine	 the	 three	 elements	 of	 research,	 teaching	 and	
outreach	under	a	unique	thematic	umbrella	focused	on	the	impact,	role	and	understanding	of	
the	European	Union	within	New	Zealand	and	the	wider	Pacific	region.	

	
The	Network	is	multidisciplinary	in	orientation	and	open	to	all	New	Zealand	universities	with	
an	 interest	 in	 European	 Union	 Studies.	 The	 1999	 EU-NZ	 Joint	 Declaration	 -	 involving	

economics,	 politics,	 security,	 innovation,	 development,	 democratic	 values	 and	 people	 and	
cultures	-	defines	the	scope	of	the	Network's	activities.	

	
It	 organizes	 academic	 research	 and	 administers	 scholarships	 for	 students	 studying	 the	 EU.	

Events,	seminars	and	conferences	are	open	to	the	public	and	often	available	via	online	login.	

	
For	 more	 information	 visit	 our	 website:	 www.eucnetwork.org.nz	 or	 email		
yvonne.grosch@canterbury.ac.nz	.	The	EUCN	is	co-funded	by	an	European	Commission	Grant.	

	
EUCN	-	New	Zealand	European	Union	Centres	Network	
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What	is	the	NCRE?	

The	 National	 Centre	 for	 Research	 on	 Europe	 (NCRE)	 brings	 together	 students,	 teachers,	

graduates	and	academics	from	around	the	world	to	research	and	study	the	EU	and	Europe-	
related	issues	and	topics.	The	centre	belongs	to	and	runs	the	‘European	Studies	Association	of	
New	Zealand’	and	the	‘Jean	Monnet	Centre	of	Excellence	Asia-Pacific’.	
	
The	NCRE	also	performs	a	wider	societal	role	and	serves	as	a	key	element	in	the	EU's	outreach	
within	 New	 Zealand	 and	 the	 Pacific.	 Raising	 critical	 awareness	 of	 the	 EU,	 informing	

government,	the	media	and	public	opinion	play	an	equally	important	part	in	the	NCRE's	core	
functions.	

	
Above	all,	the	NCRE	encourages	and	promotes	a	new	generation	of	New	Zealand	graduates	

who	have	a	high	level	of	expertise	and	interest	in	the	EU.	

	
Visit	 our	 website	at:	http://www.europe.canterbury.ac.nz/	

	
All	Things	Europe	-	the	NCRE	(you	need	a	Facebook	account	to	access	this	page)
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What	is	Jean	Monnet?		
	
Jean	Monnet	Actions	promote	excellence	in	teaching	and	research	in	the	field	of	European	Union	
Studies	worldwide.	The	Actions	foster	dialogue	between	the	academic	world	and	policy-makers,	in	
particular	with	the	aim	of	enhancing	governance	of	EU	policies.		
	
European	Union	studies	comprise	the	study	of	Europe	in	its	entirety	with	particular	emphasis	on	the	
European	Integration	process	in	both	its	internal	and	external	aspects.	The	discipline	also	covers	the	
role	of	the	EU	in	a	globalized	world	and	in	promote	active	citizenship	and	dialogue	between	peoples	
and	cultures.		
	
The	NCRE	holds	a	Jean	Monnet	grant	to	organize	this	Model	EU	Training	and	Simulation	event.		
	
Why	is	this	useful?		
Jean	Monnet	actions	aim	to	integrate	EU	topics	into	the	existing	curriculum.	New	Zealand	is	
geographically	distanced	from	the	EU	and	often	not	directly	affected	by	its	day-to-day	reality	which	
makes	it	hard	to	understand	this	multifaceted	organisation.	Model	EU	events	use	participatory	and	
experimental	learning	to	engage	with	complex	EU	concepts,	processes	and	issues.	You	receive	this	
handbook	prior	to	the	event	and	are	expected	to	prepare	for	your	individual	roles.		
	
Your	participation	gives	you	the	opportunity	to	learn	about	the	success	of	the	EU	as	well	as	its	
difficulties.	Preparation	and	participation	in	this	Model	EU	event	will	help	you	with	critical	thinking,	
problem	solving	and	decision	making.		
	
www.jeanmonnet.nz		
http://www.ec.europa.eu/education/opportunities/jean-monnet	
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Thank	you!		
	
Before	we	get	into	further	conference	details,	we	would	like	to	say	a	couple	of	heartfelt	THANK	YOU’s	
to	a	few	organisations	and	people.		
	
Berry,	Bridgette,	Hannah,	Jayden,	Jeff,	Oli,	Zahra	-	our	outstanding	postgraduate	students	that	have	
worked	so	hard	to	get	this	ready	and	running.	Without	you	guys	I	would	be	so	lost!	I	hope	that	each	
of	you	decides	to	do	(another)	PhD	at	the	NCRE	(just	to	have	you	hanging	around	a	little	longer).	:-)		
	
Serena	and	Thomas	–	for	everything….If	I	would	start	explaining	we	would	need	volumes	II	and	III	:-)		
	
Auckland	University	of	Technology	–	Thank	you	AUT	for	the	generous	sponsorship	to	make	this	event	
possible.		
	
Nick	Smith	–	our	introductory	keynote	speaker	for	coming	on	a	Sunday	morning!		
	
	
	

Conference	Details	
	
Where?		
The	Model	EU	Event	will	be	held	at	 the	Auckland	University	of	Technology	(AUT)	city	campus,	WG	
Building.			

For	maps	of	AUT	please	go	to:	http://www.aut.ac.nz/study-at-aut/campuses/city-campus		

Should	 you	 get	 lost	 at	 any	 stage	 please	 approach	 a	 staff	 member	 to	 call	 Security	 or	 ring		
Security	on	+64	9	921	9997	who	will	be	able	to	assist.		

When?	
Saturday,	16	September	2017:	Registrations	start	from	9:00am,	Programme	start	at	09:30am	Sunday,	
17	September	2017:	Registrations	start	from	9:15am,	Programme	start	at	09:30am		
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Keynote	Speakers	
	
	

Dr	Serena	Kelly	
Lecturer,	NCRE	
University	of	Canterbury		
	
Dr	 Serena	 Kelly	 is	 a	 lecturer	 and	 postdoctoral	
research	fellow	at	the	University	of	Canterbury,	New	
Zealand.	 Her	 PhD	 thesis	 was	 one	 of	 the	 first	 to	
examine	 the	 proposals	 included	 in	 the	 European	
Union’s	 Lisbon	 Treaty	 to	 establish	 the	 European	
External	Action	Service	 (EEAS).	 Its	 focus	was	on	the	
potential	 impact	 of	 the	 EEAS	 in	 the	 Asia-Pacific	

region.		
	
Since	2006,	Dr	Kelly	has	worked	on	8	EU	perceptions	projects	(including	media,	elite	interviews	and	
public	opinion	surveys)	and	currently	leads	the	New	Zealand	research	team	which	studies	perceptions	
on	 the	 European	 Union.	 Dr	 Kelly	 also	 holds	 a	 prestigious	 Jean	 Monnet	 teaching	 grant	 from	 the	
European	Commission.		
	
	
	

	
Dr	Nick	Smith		
Dr	 Nicholas	 R.	 Smith	 is	 a	 postdoctoral	 fellow	 at	 the	 University	 of	
Canterbury's	National	Centre	for	Research	on	Europe.	He	is	the	author	of	
the	 book	 EU-Russian	 Relations	 and	 the	 Ukraine	 Crisis	 and	 is	 currently	
writing	a	book	on	whether	a	New	Cold	War	has	emerged	in	West-Russia	
relations.	
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How	to	prepare?		
	
To	get	the	most	out	of	the	Model	EU	you	will	need	to	do	some	preparation	beforehand.	Being	well	
informed	about	your	allocated	country	and	its	position	regarding	Brexit	will	make	you	more	
confident	and	at	ease	when	presenting	arguments	and	amendments	in	the	Model	Council	of	the	
European	Union.	
	
	

I. Country	
Research	your	country’s	position	on	the	Brexit	referendum	and	proposed	policies;	this	will	
enable	you	to	inform	your	country’s	position	on	the	draft	Directive.	Your	country’s	position	
will	have	an	impact	on	the	way	you	want	to	amend	the	Directive	as	you	are	now	a	Minister	
representing	your	country	in	the	Council	of	the	European	Union	and	you	need	to	prioritise	
viewpoints	accordingly.		
Find	out	what	your	country’s	interests	are	and	its	opinion	on	the	matter.	Is	it	blatantly	
opposed	to	it?	

	
II. Working	Group	Description		

Read	through	the	working	group	descriptions.	It	is	important	to	know	that	you	will	be	able	to	
debate,	make	amendments	and	vote	on	all	parts	of	the	directive	-	so	get	an	understanding	of	
these	three	areas.	Our	expert	advisors	will	assist	you	during	the	negotiations,	however,	it	
would	be	beneficial	for	you	if	you	have	a	good	understanding	of	them	when	you	arrive.		

	
III. Directive	

Read	through	the	draft	Directive	to	get	the	gist	of	what	it	is	saying.	Make	sure	you	
understand	what	every	word	means	–	look	it	up	in	the	Glossary	at	the	end	of	this	booklet	or	
in	a	dictionary	if	you	do	not	understand	something.		

	
Then	remember	your	country’s	position:	Does	it	like	certain	parts	of	the	Directive	but	not	
others?	What	amendments	can	you	propose	to	make	align	it	more	with	your	country’s	
position?		
Remember:	short,	sharp,	snappy	speeches	are	classy	and	leave	more	time	for	debate.	They	
get	your	point	across	in	the	most	direct	fashion	and	are	likely	to	have	the	greatest	effect.		

	
	
Format	&	Goals	
For	the	purpose	of	this	Model	European	Council	meeting,	you	will	represent	Heads	of	States	or	
Governments	of	the	EU	Member	States.	It	would	be	good	to	prepare	as	much	as	possible	on	the	
Member	State	you	are	representing,	the	personal	and	political	background	of	the	leader	you	are	
role-playing	and	the	positions	of	the	European	policy	taken	by	that	leader	and	his/her	government.		
	
At	this	event,	you	should	make	your	decisions	in	the	context	of	the	political	forces	and	pressures	
currently	active	in	EU	Member	States	and	the	national	interests	of	the	state	you	represent.		
	
Heads	of	State	or	Government	and	respective	Ministers	of	Member	States	will	be	seated	in	
alphabetical	order	using	the	name	of	the	country	(Austria,	Belgium…)	with	the	President	of	the	
Council,	Chair	and	Secretary	seated	at	the	head	of	the	table.		
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Rules	of	Procedures	
	
Because	Heads	of	State	or	Government	normally	want	to	decide	for	themselves	how	best	to	use	their	
meetings,	the	European	Council	has	few	formal	rules	of	procedures.	Council	meetings	are	deliberately	
kept	flexible	and	informal,	and	many	of	the	most	important	discussions	take	place	outside	the	Council	
chamber	 in	 the	 intervals	 between	 actual	 sessions.	 Nevertheless,	 the	 following	 rules	 apply	 at	 the	
Auckland	Model	EU	2017:		
	
Research	&	Preparation	–	the	get	the	most	of	the	event,	do	as	much	research	and	preparation	as	you	
can.		
	
Seating	Arrangement	–	Members	of	the	delegations	shall	be	seated	in	alphabetical	order	(using	the	
name	of	the	country).		
	
Role	 of	 the	 Chair	 –	 In	 order	 to	 provide	 structure	 to	 the	 sessions	 themselves	 modified	 rules	 of	
parliamentary	procedure	apply	(with	certain	exceptions).	The	President	of	the	European	Council	chairs	
all	sessions.	As	the	Chair,	the	President	of	the	European	Council	will	have	sole	and	final	power	to	open	
and	 close	 sessions,	 recognize	 speakers,	 place	 limits	 on	 speaking	 time	 and	 control	 discussions	 and	
debate.	It	is	important	to	recall	that	these	are	proceedings	among	delegates	of	equal	rank.	They	would	
usually	have	known	each	other	for	some	time	and	would	have	interacted	often.	Thus,	the	atmosphere	
is	one	of	collegiality,	equality	and	congeniality.	This	includes	the	relationship	between	the	Chair	and	
other	participants.	While	the	Chair	is	formally	in	charge	of	the	proceedings	and	entitled	to	all	courtesy	
and	respect,	he/she	would	usually	“propose”	and	“suggest”	rather	than	“decree”	or	“dictate”.	The	
Chair,	more	than	any	other	participant,	is	interested	in	a	harmonious	and	consensual	outcome	of	the	
conference.	In	cases	where	parliamentary	procedure	is	unclear	or	in	doubt,	the	Chair	shall	use	his	or	
her	judgement	to	settle	the	matter	and	proceed	with	the	session.	The	main	goal	of	the	Chair	is	to	get	
different	 small	 resolutions	 passed	 during	 the	 session	 and	 summarize	 them	 into	 a	 Conclusion	
document	at	the	end	of	the	negotiation	day.	Note	that	the	meetings	will	be	chaired	by	the	President	
of	the	European	Council,	not	a	member	state.		
	
Roll	Call	(Quorum)	–	The	first	order	of	business	for	each	session	will	be	to	establish	roll	and	a	quorum.	
This	is	done	by	the	Chair	at	the	beginning	of	each	individual	session	and	does	not	require	a	motion.		
	
Opening	Session	–	The	Model	EU	will	commence	with	an	opening	session,	welcoming	the	delegates	
and	opening	the	proceedings.	In	this	speech	the	President	of	the	European	Council	(in	our	event,	Dr	
Serena	Kelly)	will	outline	background	information.		
	
Position	Statement	–	during	the	Country	Group	Meetings	you	need	to	prepare	a	Position	Statement	
to	comment	from	your	country’s	position	on	the	draft	Directive	and	Brexit.	The	Position	Statement	
will	be	presented	at	the	start	of	the	first	negotiation	session.	
	
Debate	 Format	 –	 The	 “real”	 European	Council	 generally	meets	 four	 times	 a	 year.	 These	meetings	
include	 an	 opening	 plenary	 session,	 a	 formal	 dinner,	 and	 sometimes	 informal	 and	 confidential	
“fireside	 chats”,	 bilateral	 working	 breakfasts,	 and	 further	 plenary	 sessions.	 While	 we	 strive	 to	
accurately	simulate	the	workings	of	the	European	Council	meetings,	the	format	has	been	structures	
to	facilitate	negotiations	and	student	learning.	There	will	be	two	types	of	debate	used	at	the	Auckland	
Model	EU	2017:		
	

Formal	Debate	will	require	participants	wishing	to	speak	to	put	their	placard	vertically	and	be	
recognized	 by	 the	 Chair.	 The	Chair	will	mark	 the	 names	 of	 the	 recognized	 countries	 on	 the	
speaker’s	list.	It	is	the	Chair’s	obligation	to	ensure	and	guide	the	flow	of	communication	and	to	



	 11	

afford	each	member	an	equal	opportunity	to	speak.	The	Chair	keeps	track	of	the	proceedings	
including	 the	 fair	 administration	 of	 the	 right	 to	 speak.	 The	 length	 of	 speaking	 time	 can	 be	
motioned	 by	 participants,	 otherwise	 it	 will	 be	 set	 by	 the	 Chair.	 Participants	 make	 their	
statements	while	seated	around	the	table.	Participants	need	not	to	address	each	other	through	
the	Chair.	The	Chair,	however,	may	comment	on	statements	and	express	his	or	her	view	like	all	
other	delegates.	Participants	may	yield	the	remaining	speaking	time	to	a	fellow	member	state	
by	indicating	so	at	the	end	of	their	speech.	If	not,	the	Chair	may	call	upon	another	participant.		
	
Informal	 Debate	 (a	 break)	 allows	 participants	 to	 leave	 their	 seats.	 Heads	 of	 State	 or	
Governments	 (HoS)	 are	 expected	 to	 mingle	 and	 speak	 among	 themselves.	 At	 the	 “real”	
European	 summit	 these	 informal	 debate	 sessions	 can	 be	 more	 important	 than	 the	 formal	
debate	because	HoSs	can	talk	more	privately	about	their	dispute	and	settle	it	outside	the	public	
arena.	This	time	should	be	used	to	negotiate	and	write/edit/prepare	drafts	of	conclusions.	The	
Chair	or	any	participant	may	call	for	(motion)	informal	debate	for	a	specified	time.	If	at	least	
two	other	delegates	 second	 the	motion,	 it	will	 immediately	be	put	 to	a	 vote.	The	Chair	will	
determine	the	length	of	informal	debate	within	any	given	hour.	Once	informal	debate	time	has	
expired,	formal	debate	will	resume.		

	
	
Suspension	–	A	Chair	or	delegate	may	call	for	a	suspension.	If	at	least	two	other	delegates	second	the	
motion,	it	will	immediately	be	put	to	a	vote,	and	requires	the	support	of	at	least	a	simple	majority	to	
succeed.		
	
Points	and	Motions	–	Delegates	may	rise	to	make	points	of	order	(always	permitted,	except	during	a	
speech	or	actual	voting),	points	of	information	(after	a	speech	is	completed,	whenever	the	Chairs	asks	
“are	there	any	points	and	motions	at	this	time),	and	points	of	personal	privilege.		
	

Points	of	Order.	If,	during	a	meeting,	a	delegate	feels	that	the	meeting	is	running	in	a	manner	
contrary	to	these	Rules,	he/she	may	rise	to	a	point	of	order.	The	Chair	may	overrule,	or	accept	
the	appeal.	If	accepted,	the	Chair	may	make	an	immediate	ruling	or	ask	the	delegate	to	speak	
on	the	point	of	order	for	a	maximum	of	one	minute	(but	he/she	may	not	speak	on	the	subject	
of	the	debate).	The	Chair	will	then	immediately	rule	on	the	point	of	order.		
	
Point	of	Information.	If	a	delegate	wishes	to	obtain	clarification	of	procedure	or	of	any	other	
matter,	he/she	may	raise	to	a	point	of	information	and	receive	clarification	from	the	Chair	or	
anyone	else	designated	by	the	Chair.		
	
Point	 of	 Personal	 Privilege.	 If	 a	 delegate	wishes	 to	 raise	 a	 question,	 leave	 the	 room	 for	 an	
extended	time,	or	make	a	request	relating	to	personal	comfort	or	his/her	treatment	by	other	
delegates,	he/she	may	rise	to	a	point	of	personal	privilege	and	receive	an	immediate	ruling	by	
the	Chair.		

	
Motions	may	also	be	used	to	combine	or	divide	agenda	items	or	to	call	for	a	break	(informal	
debate).	Motions	are	also	 in	order	 (determined	always	by	 the	Chair)	 to	“close	debate	on	an	
issue”	and	bring	it	to	a	vote.	Motions	are	always	subject	to	a	“second”	by	two	delegates	and	are	
brought	 to	 a	 vote	 immediately.	 All	motions	 by	 delegates	 (other	 than	 the	 Chair)	 are	 always	
subject	 to	 a	 second	 by	 two	 delegates.	 These	may	 be	 asked	 to	 give	 an	 explanation	 for	 the	
rationale	 (no	 more	 than	 one	 minute).	 If	 successful	 the	 motion	 will	 be	 brought	 to	 a	 vote	
immediately.		
	

Tour	de	Table	–	A	device	known	as	tour	de	table	may	also	be	used,	at	the	discretion	of	the	Chair.	The	
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Chair	will	ask	each	HoS	in	turn	to	give	a	short	summary	(up	to	two	minutes)	of	their	thinking	on	the	
matter	under	discussion,	thus	ensuring	that	every	member	state	is	able	to	outline	its	position,	and	
allowing	the	Chair	to	determine	whether	a	compromise	is	possible.		
	
Closure	of	Debate	–	The	Chair	will	decide	and	officiate	the	closure	of	a	debate.		
	
Voting	Procedures	–	Where	votes	are	taken,	they	should	normally	be	open,	and	recorded	by	the	Chair.	
Voting	will	be	verbal	and	expressed	either	as	“Yes”,	“No”,	or	“Abstain”.	Once	a	vote	has	been	declared	
open,	no	one	will	be	allowed	to	speak	other	than	to	cast	his	or	her	vote.	No	one	may	approach	or	
leave	the	room.	Once	all	votes	have	been	cast,	the	Chair	will	tally	all	votes	and	immediately	announce	
the	result.	The	decision	of	the	Chair	on	a	tally	will	be	final.		
	

Voting	on	procedural	issues	(e.g.	adjournment,	informal	debate,	setting	the	agenda	if	it	is	not	
set	by	the	Chair)	requires	a	simple	majority	of	the	delegates	present	in	the	session	including	the	
Presidency.	One	member,	one	vote.	The	Chair	can	vote	on	procedural	issues	–	he	has	one	vote.	
There	is	no	abstention	on	procedural	issues.		
	
Voting	on	substantive	issues,	such	as	conclusions	is	required	only	if	the	delegates	cannot	reach	
consensus.	(Note:	in	the	European	Council	the	Presidency	only	rarely	calls	for	a	vote).		
	
Not	there	is	no	“present	and	voting”	or	“present”	rule	in	the	EU.		
	

Set	of	Conclusions	of	the	Presidency	–	A	conclusion	on	an	agenda	item,	essentially	a	brief	paragraph	
prefaced	with	 the	 following	operative	phrases:	 “recommend”,	 “emphasizes”,	 “insists	on”,	 “notes”,	
“welcomes”,	 etc	must	 have	 five	 signatures	 from	 five	 participants	 (one	 of	 whom	may	 also	 be	 the	
Commission	President).	Due	to	time	constraints,	 in	this	simulation	the	Conclusion	of	the	European	
Council	will	be	submitted	in	an	outline	format	and	will	contain	the	matters	agreed	upon	by	delegates	
during	negotiating	sessions.	Multiple	resolutions	can	(but	do	not	necessarily	have	to)	be	agreed	upon	
for	each	item,	so	long	as	they	are	not	conflicting.	As	Conclusions	of	the	Presidency	are	agreed	upon	
through	consensus,	(voting	is	only	used	as	the	last	resort)	resolutions	should	have	the	considerable	
support	before	they	are	formally	proposed	and	discussed	in	formal	debate.	The	Chair	will	ask	if	there	
are	any	member	states	who	are	opposed	to	the	resolution.	If	there	are	none,	the	resolution	will	be	
passed	 and	 be	 included	 in	 the	 Conclusions	 of	 the	 Presidency.	 If	 there	 are	 objections,	 debate	 and	
negotiation	 will	 continue	 until	 a	 consensus	 is	 reached	 or	 the	 resolution	 abandoned.	 A	 vote	 on	 a	
resolution	can	be	used	if	consensus	cannot	be	reached	to	pass	resolutions,	but	this	considered	a	last	
resort	and	only	occurs	in	rare	circumstances.	HoS	should	be	careful	not	to	be	found	out	of	character	
by	unjustly	proposing	a	vote.		
	
	
What	to	bring?		
Pen	and	paper,	any	research	you	have	done	about	your	country	or	the	Directive,	plus	the	Directive	
itself!	Also,	bring	a	water	bottle	and	any	medication	that	you	normally	take.		
Laptops	are	permitted	but	an	internet	connection	cannot	be	guaranteed.		
	
	
What	to	wear?		
Formal	school	uniform	or	formal	business	attire.		
	
	
Any	Questions?	
For	any	questions	please	email	yvonne.grosch@canterbury.ac.nz	 	
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Timetable	
	
Saturday,	16	September	2017	
	
9:00-9:30	 Registrations		

Venue:	WG	Building,	Level	8,	Foyer		
		

9:30-9:45	
	

Opening	&	Welcome		
Venue:	WG803	
Dr	Serena	Kelly,	Dr	Verica	Rupar,	Yvonne	Grosch		
		

9:45-10:45	 Introduction	to	the	EU	and	Topic		
Venue:	WG803	
Dr	Serena	Kelly	
		

10:45	–	11:10	 Morning	Tea	
Venue:	WG,	Level	8	Foyer			
		

11:10	–	12:00	 Update	Meetings		
Economics	&	Finance	WG803	
Home	Affairs	WG808	
Defence	&	Environment	WG809	
	

12:00	–	12:45	
	
		

Country	Group	Meetings		
UK	
France,	Italy,	Spain		
Germany		
Poland,	Hungary	
Finland,	Ireland	
Greece,	Malta		
Estonia,	Lithuania		
Austria,	Belgium,	Netherlands	
	

	
Hannah	
Berry		
Serena	
Jayden		
Bridgette	
Oli	
Zahra		
Jeff	
	

12:45	–	13:30	 Lunch	
Venue:	WG	Level	8	Foyer		
		

13:30	–	14:45	 Negotiations	1		
Venue:	WG803	
Every	Member	State	presents	its	Position	Statement.	From	there	we	move	into	
negotiations	on	the	draft	Directive.			
		

14:45	–	15:15	 Afternoon	Tea	–	Networking	&	Negotiations		
Venue:	WG,	Level	8	Foyer	
		

15:15	 End	of	Day	One		
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Sunday,	17	September	2017	
	
9:15-9:30	 Registrations		

Venue:	WG	Level	8	Foyer				
			

9:30	–	10:15	 Keynote	Lecture		
Venue:	WG803	
Dr	Nick	Smith		
			

10:15-10:35		 Morning	Tea	
Venue:	WG	Level	8	Foyer				
		

10:35-11:45	 Workshop		
Venue:	WG803	
		

11:45	–	12:30	 Negotiations	2		
Venue:	WG803	
	

12:30-13:15	 Lunch	
Venue:	WG	Level	8	Foyer			
		

Utilize	this	opportunity	to	network	and	continue	your	negotiations.		
			

13:15-14:45	 Negotiations	3		
Venue:	WG803	
			

14:45-15:00	 Closing	
Venue:	WG803	
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TEACHER	WORKSHOP		
	
Saturday,	16	September	2017	
	
12:30	–	13:30	 Lunch	

Venue:	WG	Level	8	Foyer		
		

13:30	–	14:45	 Welcome	and	Introduction	to	the	EU	&	Workshop			
Venue:	WG801-802	
Dr	Serena	Kelly	
Dr	Martyn	Davison		
		

14:45	–	15:15	 Afternoon	Tea		
Venue:	WG,	Level	8	Foyer	
		

15:15	 End	of	Day	One		
		

	
	
Sunday,	17	September	2017	
	
9:15-9:30	 Registrations		

Venue:	WG	Level	8	Foyer				
			

9:30	–	10:15	 Keynote	Lecture		
Venue:	WG803	
Dr	Nick	Smith		
			

10:15-10:35		 Morning	Tea	
Venue:	WG	Level	8	Foyer				
		

10:35-12:45	 Workshop		
Venue:	WG801-802	
		

12:45	 Lunch		
			

13:30	 End	of	Workshop		
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Introduction	to	the	European	Union	
	
	
What	is	the	difference	between	the	EU,	Eurozone	and	Europe?	

	
The	European	Union	(EU)1	is	a	politico-economic	union	of	28	Member	States.	Geographically	Europe	
consists	of	different	countries,	including	those	28	and	many	others.	Many	countries	in	Europe	are	
not	 members	 of	 the	 European	 Union,	 for	 example	 Switzerland,	 Norway,	 Albania	 and	 Armenia,	
amongst	others.	
	
The	eurozone2	(preferred:	euro	area)	is	a	group	of	EU	Member	States	that	share	the	euro	as	their	
common	currency	and	the	single	monetary	policy	conducted	by	the	European	Central	Bank.	Today	
the	euro	 area	 includes	 19	of	 the	28	 European	Union	Member	 States.	 That	 is	why,	 for	 example,	
Germany	and	France	use	the	euro	(EUR)	and	the	UK	uses	the	Great	British	Pound	(GBP).		
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

																																																													
1	European	Union:	http://europa.eu/european-union/index_en	
2	Euroarea:http://ec.europa.eu/economy_finance/euro/adoption/euro_area/index_en.htm	
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A	brief	history	of	the	EU	
	
After	the	Second	World	War,	between	1945	and	1950,	a	few	courageous	statesmen	including	Robert	
Schuman,	Konrad	Adenauer,	Alcide	de	Gasperi	and	Winston	Churchill	set	about	persuading	Europe	to	
enter	a	new	era.	New	structures	would	be	created	in	western	Europe,	based	on	shared	interest	and	
founded	upon	the	guaranteed	rule	of	law	and	equality	for	all	countries.	
	
Robert	Schuman3	(French	Foreign	Minister)	took	up	an	 idea	originally	conceived	by	Jean	Monnet	
and,	on	09	May	1950	proposed	to	establish	a	European	Coal	and	Steel	Community	(ECSC4).	Between	
countries	that	once	fought	each	other,	the	production	of	coal	and	steel	would	be	pooled	under	a	
common	high	authority.	
	
The	formation	of	the	European	Single	Market5	was	another	big	
development,	 coming	 into	effect	 in	1992.	 The	Single	Market	
refers	to	the	EU	as	one	territory	without	any	internal	borders	
or	other	regulatory	obstacles	to	the	free	movement	of	goods	
and	 services	 between	 the	 individual	 Member	 States.	 This	
stimulates	competition	and	trade,	 improves	efficiency,	raises	
quality	and	helps	cut	prices.	
	

		Founding	Member	States:		
Germany,	France,	Italy,	the	Netherlands,	
Belgium	and	Luxembourg.	

	
	
In	1993	the	Treaty	of	Maastricht6	created	the	European	Union	(EU,	removing	the	EEC)	by	opening	the	
way	 to	 political	 integration.	 The	 European	 Union	 treaty	 is	 based	 on	 three	 pillars:	 the	 European	
Communities,	the	Common	Foreign	and	Security	Policy7	(CFSP)	and	police	and	judicial	cooperation	in	
criminal	matters	 (Justice	 and	 Home	 Affairs	 Council8,	 JHA).	 The	 Treaty	 introduced	 the	 concept	 of	
European	citizenship,	reinforced	the	powers	of	the	European	Parliament	and	launched	Economic	and	
Monetary	Union9	(EMU).	For	example,	with	European	citizenship	every	person	who	is	a	citizen	of	a	
Member	State	can	move,	work,	vote	and	run	for	office	in	local	and	European	Parliament	elections	in	
the	EU	country	in	which	he	or	she	lives,	regardless	of	his	or	her	nationality.		
	
The	Lisbon	Treaty10	came	into	force	in	2009	and	amended	the	Maastricht	Treaty,	Treaties	of	Rome	

																																																													
3	The	Schuman	Declaration:	https://europa.eu/european-union/about-eu/symbols/europe-day/schuman-declaration_en	
4	ECSC:	https://europa.eu/european-union/eu-law/decision-making/treaties_en	
5	The	European	Single	Market:	https://ec.europa.eu/growth/single-market_en	
6 Treaty	of	Maastricht:	http://eur-lex.europa.eu/legal-content/EN/TXT/?uri=uriserv:xy0026	and			
https://www.britannica.com/event/Maastricht-Treaty	
7	Common	Foreign	and	Security	Policy	(CFSP):	https://eeas.europa.eu/topics/common-foreign-security-policy-cfsp_en		
8	Justice	and	Home	Affairs	Council	(JHA):	http://www.consilium.europa.eu/en/council-eu/configurations/jha/		
9	Economic	and	Monetary	Union	(EMU):	https://ec.europa.eu/info/business-economy-euro/economic-and-fiscal-policy-
coordination/economic-and-monetary-union_en		
10	Lisbon	Treaty:	https://www.britannica.com/events/Lisbon-Treaty		
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and	other	documents	to	simplify	and	streamline	the	institutions	that	govern	the	EU.	For	example,	the	
treaty	 gave	 the	 European	 Council11	 (EC)	 a	 permanent	 President	 and	 created	 the	 post	 of	 the	High	
Representative	of	the	Union	for	Foreign	Affairs	and	Security	Policy.	

	
	

	
	

																																																													
11	European	Council	(EC):	http://www.consilium.europa.eu/en/european-council/		

1939	-1945	 Second	World	War	

1951	 European	Coal	and	Steel	Community	(ECSC)	is	set	up	by	the	six	founding	members	

1957	 Treaties	of	Rome:	setting	up	the	European	Economic	Community	(EEC)	and	the	European	

Atomic	Energy	Community	(Euratom)	

1973,	1981,	1986,	1995,	2004,	2007,	2013	 Further	states	join	the	EU		

1992	 The	European	Single	Market	proposed	in	1985	comes	into	action.		

1993	 Treaty	of	Maastricht	established	the	European	Union	

2002	 The	EURO	comes	into	circulation	

2004	 Biggest	 Enlargement	 of	 the	 EU	 with	 the	 inclusion	 of	 10	 countries	 (mostly	 from	 Eastern	

Europe)	

2009	 The	Lisbon	Treaty	comes	into	force,	changing	the	way	the	EU	works	

2016	 The	UK	voted	to	leave	the	European	Union	
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EU	Institutions	in	brief	

The	EU’s	unique	institutional	set-up	includes	(but	is	not	limited	to)	the	European	Council,	European	
Parliament,	the	European	Commission	and	the	Council	of	the	European	Union,	each	of	which	have	
different	areas	of	focus:	
	

● The	EU’s	broad	priorities	are	set	by	the	European	Council,	which	brings	together	national	
and	EU-level	leaders	

● Directly	elected	MEPs	represent	EU	citizens	in	the	European	Parliament	

● The	interests	of	the	EU	as	a	whole	are	promoted	by	the	European	Commission,	whose	
members	are	appointed	by	national	governments	

● Governments	defend	their	own	country’s	national	interests	in	the	Council	of	the	
European	Union	

	

	

	
	
	
	
	

The	European	Council12	sets	the	EU’s	overall	political	direction	-	but	has	no	powers	to	pass	laws.	
Led	by	its	President	and	comprising	national	heads	of	state	or	government	and	the	President	of	the	
Commission,	it	meets	for	a	few	days	at	a	time	at	least	twice	every	6	months.		

Its	main	characteristics	are:		

- Consists	of	Heads	of	State	or	Government	of	the	Member	States	(meeting	sometimes	with	the	
Foreign	Ministers	or	other	ministers	responsible	for	matters	discussed)	

- Focuses	on	overall	strategic	direction	of	European	Integration	
- Informal	rules	of	procedures	
- Emphasis	on	consensus	decision-making	
- Chaired	by	an	appointed	President		

	
	
Under	the	Treaty	of	Lisbon	(Lisbon	Treaty)	it	is	responsible	for	defining	“the	general	political	
directions	and	priorities”	of	the	Union.	This	makes	the	European	Council	the	Union’s	strategic	body,	
a	forum	in	which	leaders	of	the	EU	Member	States	meet	to:		

- Provide	 strategic	direction	and	consistency	 to	 the	EU	by	discussing	and	deciding	 the	overall	

																																																													
12	European	Council:	https://europa.eu/european-union/about-eu/institutions-bodies/european-council_en	
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character	and	goals	of	the	Union		
- Resolve	problems	which	 the	Council	 of	Ministers	 and	 the	Commission	have	been	unable	 to	

resolve	(i.e.	to	act	as	the	“supreme	arbitrator”,	or	court	of	last	resort)	
- Provide	political	impetus	to	the	EU	by	developing	and	promoting	new	initiatives	
- Develop	 a	 Common	 Foreign	 and	 Security	 Policy	 (CFSP).	 Council	 conclusions	 almost	 always	

include	a	statement	of	positions	on	key	foreign	policy	issues.		
	

	
The	European	Council	alone	has	the	power	
and	authority	to	resolve	major	issues	and	
reach	key	decision.	The	Council	meets	at	
least	four	times	per	year,	each	meeting	
taking	place	in	Brussels.	Council	meetings	
usually	last	no	more	than	ten	hours,	spaced	
over	a	24-hour	period.	Work	takes	place	in	a	
combination	of	plenary	sessions	and	break-
outs.	Together,	these	meetings	are	designed	
to	discuss	matters	of	common	concern,	and	
to	agree	to	a	set	of	conclusions.		

	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
The	European	 Parliament13	 is	 the	 EU’s	 law-making	
body	and	an	important	forum	for	political	debate	and	
decision-making	 at	 EU	 level.	 The	 Members	 of	 the	
European	Parliament	(MEPs)	are	directly	elected	by	
voters	 in	 all	 Member	 States	 every	 five	 years	 to	
represent	 people’s	 interests	with	 regard	 to	 EU	 law	
making	and	 to	make	 sure	other	 EU	 institutions	 are	
working	democratically.	
	
The	European	Parliament	has	three	main	roles:	
	

1. Legislative	

- Passing	EU	laws,	together	with	the	Council	of	the	EU,	based	on	European	
Commission	proposals	

																																																													
13	European	Parliament:		https://europa.eu/european-union/about-eu/institutions-bodies/european-
parliament_en	

At	this	Model	EU	event	we	will	be	simulating	a	European	Council	meeting	–	more	
information	on	the	format	is	above	under	How	to	prepare?	and	Rules	of	Procedures.		
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- Deciding	on	international	agreements	

- Deciding	on	enlargements	

- Reviewing	the	Commission's	work	program	and	asking	it	to	propose	legislation	
	

2. Supervisory	

- Democratic	scrutiny	of	all	EU	institutions	

- Electing	the	Commission	President	and	approving	the	Commission	as	a	body.	

- Possibility	of	voting	a	motion	of	censure,	obliging	the	Commission	to	resign	

- Examining	citizens'	petitions	and	setting	up	inquiries	

- Discussing	monetary	policy	with	the	European	Central	Bank	

- Election	observations	

	
3. Budgetary	

- Establishing	the	EU	budget,	together	with	the	Council	

- Approving	the	EU's	long-term	budget,	the	"Multiannual	Financial	Framework"	
	
	
	

In	the	Council	of	the	EU,	government	ministers	from	
each	EU	country	meet	to	discuss,	amend	and	adopt	laws,	
and	coordinate	policies.	The	ministers	have	the	authority	
to	commit	their	governments	to	the	actions	agreed	on	in	
the	meetings.14	
	
	
The	European	Commission	(EC)15	is	an	institution	of	the	
European	Union,	 responsible	 for	proposing	 legislation,	 implementing	decisions,	upholding	 the	EU	
treaties	and	managing	 the	day-to-day	business	of	 the	EU.	The	Commission	operates	as	a	 cabinet	
government,	with	28	members	of	the	Commission	(one	per	Member	State).		

	
																																																													
14 Council	of	the	European	Union:	https://europa.eu/european-union/about-eu/institutions-bodies/council-eu_en		
15	European	Commission	:	https://ec.europa.eu/commission/commissioners/2014-2019_en		
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Decision-making	in	the	EU	
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Introduction	to	the	Theme:	Brexit	and	the	
future	of	the	European	Union?	
	
The	relationship	between	the	European	Union	and	the	United	Kingdom	
	

The	relationship	between	Great	Britain	and	the	European	Union	was	not	easy	 from	the	beginning.	
When	 the	 European	 Economic	 Community	 (EEC)	 was	 founded	 in	 1957,	 Great	 Britain	 declined	 an	
invitation	to	 join	the	six	founding	nations	(France,	Germany,	the	Netherlands,	Belgium,	Luxemburg	
and	Italy)	in	signing	the	Treaty	of	Rome.16	The	European	Coal	and	Steel	Community	(ECSC)	was	also	
regarded	with	suspicion	by	the	British.	As	a	counterpart	to	the	EEC,	Great	Britain	attempted	to	build	
its	own	economic	community,	the	European	Free	Trade	Association	(EFTA).	The	difference	between	
these	two	communities	was	that	EFTA	states	were	interested	in	a	free-trade	zone	and	had	no	interest	
in	 a	 political	 bond.	 Today,	 six	 of	 the	 former	 EFTA	 states	 have	 joined	 the	 European	 Union.	 Only	
Switzerland	and	Norway	have	not	yet	joined.17		
	
In	the	early	1960s,	due	to	decolonisation	and	the	decline	of	the	Commonwealth,	Great	Britain	changed	
its	mind	about	joining	the	EEC.	With	its	own	economy	stuck,	Britain	saw	France	and	Germany	posting	
a	strong	post-war	recovery	and	forming	a	powerful	alliance.	Therefore,	Great	Britain	applied	to	join	
the	EEC	in	1961,	only	for	its	entry	to	be	vetoed	twice	by	French	President	Charles	de	Gaulle.	He	argued	
that	their	strong	link	to	the	United	States	of	America	as	well	as	the	British	Commonwealth	could	hinder	
the	 British	 in	 their	 dedication	 to	 the	 EEC.	 Furthermore,	 he	 worried	 about	 English	 taking	 over	 as	
Europe’s	 main	 language.18	 In	 1973	 Britain	 was	 finally	 allowed	 to	 enter	 the	 European	 Economic	
Community,	after	de	Gaulle	had	stood	down.	
	
Citizens	of	most	Member	States	saw	EEC	membership	as	a	positive	step	towards	reaching	out	to	the	
world	and	as	a	way	to	improve	communication	with	other	countries.	But	in	Great	Britain’s	opinion,	
belonging	to	and	being	restricted	by	European	 institutions	meant	a	 loss	of	 their	own	 international	
influence.	The	UK	felt	the	focus	on	Europe	narrowed	its	opportunities	rather	than	broadening	them19.		
	
In	1975,	two	years	after	Britain	 joined	the	EEC,	a	referendum	over	EEC	membership	was	held.	The	
public	endorsed	the	UK's	continued	membership,	with	67%	of	people	voting	to	stay	in	the	EEC.	But	
this	didn’t	end	the	debate.20	Britain	sought	to	renegotiate	the	amount	of	money	it	paid	to	the	EEC.	
The	nation	called	for	major	changes	in	the	Common	Agricultural	Policy,	“fairer	methods	of	financing	
the	budget”21	and	solutions	to	monetary	problems.	
	

																																																													
16	http://www.bbc.com/news/uk-politics-26515129		
17	http://www.europarl.europa.eu/brussels/website/media/Lexikon/Pdf/EFTA.pdf		
18 http://www.telegraph.co.uk/news/2016/06/16/britains-40-year-relationship-with-the-eu/		
19	http://www.economist.com/news/briefing/21567914-how-britain-could-fall-out-european-union-and-what-it-would-
mean-making-break		
http://www.economist.com/news/briefing/21567914-how-britain-could-fall-out-european-union-and-what-it-would-
mean-making-break		
20 http://www.bbc.com/news/uk-politics-26515129  
21 http://news.bbc.co.uk/2/hi/europe/4721307.stm		
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In	 the	1980s,	 then	Prime	Minister	Margaret	Thatcher	began	an	ongoing	battle	with	 the	EEC	about	
Britain’s	 budget	 contribution,	 securing	 the	 infamous	 ‘rebate’	 to	 compensate	 for	 Britain’s	
disproportionately	low	benefit	from	EEC	agricultural	subsidies.		

In	2015	the	UK	rebate	amounted	to	€6.2	billion	(NZD	9.19	billion).	Overall,	the	discount	between	1985-
2014	 amounted	 to	 over	 €111	 billion	 (NZD	 164.50	 billion).	 At	 the	moment,	 Great	 Britain	 is,	 after	
Germany,	France	and	Italy,	the	fourth	biggest	net	contributor	to	the	European	Union.	In	2015,	this	
discount	was	worth	4.8	billion	pounds,	which	brought	the	U.K.	contribution	down	to	12.9	billion.		

	

Source:	http://news.bbc.co.uk/2/hi/europe/4721307.stm	

	

UK	transactions	with	the	European	Union	in	2015	(in	million	GBP)	

Source:	https://www.statista.com/statistics/316888/united-kingdom-uk-transactions-european-union-eu/	
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But	the	UK	doesn't	just	give	money	
to	 Europe,	 it	 also	 receives	 funds	
from	the	budget.	The	country	gets	
subsidies	 to	 support	 farmers,	 as	
well	 as	 funds	 for	 investment,	
research	 and	 other	 items.	Overall,	
the	U.K.	received	4.6	billion	pounds	
in	 2014,	 meaning	 its	 net	
contribution	 to	 the	 EU	 was	 9.8	
billion.	

	

	

Source:	https://fullfact.org/europe/our-eu-membership-fee-55-million/	

	

UK	rebate	from	the	European	Union	from	2009/2010	to	2014/2015	(in	million	GBP)		
	

Source:	https://www.statista.com/statistics/316707/uk-rebate-european-union-eu-united-kingdom/	

	

Thatcher	quickly	turned	against	the	EEC	after	the	introduction	of	the	Single	European	Act.	Disturbed	
by	what	she	saw	as	a	direction	of	travel	towards	some	form	of	European	super	state	–	with	a	single	
currency	and	a	more	federal	structure	–	she	tried	to	prevent	further	and	deeper	integration.	With	the	
1992	Maastricht	Treaty,	the	EU	was	born.	Although	Britain	didn’t	establish	the	single	currency	(the	
euro)	nor	some	of	the	social	policy	legislation,	the	European	Union	moved	towards	a	political	union.	
	
In	the	first	years	after	the	new	millennium,	a	friendlier	tone	between	Britain	and	the	EU	prevailed.	
Prime	Minister	Tony	Blair	even	considered	 the	 introduction	of	 the	euro,	however,	 there	were	not	
enough	supporters	within	the	UK.	After	the	Eurozone	crisis	and	the	further	EU	enlargements	in	2004,	
“Euroscepticism”	began	to	rise	throughout	both	Britain	and	wider	Europe.	This	trend	led	to	increasing	
support	for	the	eurosceptic	and	right-wing	populist	party,	the	UK	Independence	Party	(UKIP).	Their	
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hard	line	on	the	European	Union	saw	their	popularity	quickly	rise	among	UK	citizens.	Over	the	next	
decade,	Prime	Minister	David	Cameron	faced	pressure	from	three	sources:	from	within	his	own	party,	
from	the	British	electorate	and	from	developments	within	the	EU	itself.	All	three	pushed	him	towards	
his	commitment	to	a	referendum.	On	January	23	in	2013,	he	made	his	highly	anticipated	“big”	Europe	
speech,	where	he	outlined	the	challenges	the	EU	faced,	and	made	a	commitment	to	renegotiate	the	
UK’s	 membership.	 In	 2015,	 after	 UKIP’s	 great	 success	 in	 the	 Parliamentary	 elections	 Cameron	
announced	a	referendum	on	Britain's	membership	of	the	EU	would	take	place	on	June	23	2016.	One	
of	Cameron’s	reasons	to	hold	the	referendum	was	to	keep	the	leadership	of	his	party.	On	June	23,	the	
British	people	voted,	with	52%	of	the	votes,	to	leave	the	European	Union.		
	
	
	

How	could	Brexit	happen?	

Britain’s	EU	referendum	is	the	product	of	long	and	short	
term	 historical	 factors.	 The	 UK	 has	 never	 been	 a	
comfortable	 member	 of	 the	 EU.	 Britain	 stood	 aside	
during	the	early	years	of	European	integration,	driven	by	

a	 fundamentally	
different	history	to	
its	 continental	
partners,	 a	 different	 experience	 during	 World	 War	 II	 and	 a	
different	idea	of	its	role	in	the	world.	Also,	the	close	relationship	
with	the	US	made	it	even	more	complicated.		
	
Even	after	joining	the	EEC	in	1973,	and	the	EU	on	its	founding,	

Britain	was	an	awkward	partner,	usually	found	opting-out	of	many	key	developments	such	as	the	euro,	
the	Schengen	passport-free	area	and	many	policies	 in	 the	area	of	 justice	and	home	affairs.	Such	a	
complicated	history	may	have	made	this	referendum	in	some	sense	inevitable.	
	
However,	the	more	recent	internal	politics	of	the	Conservative	Party	played	a	significant	role	in	driving	
Britain	 to	 this	point.	A	growing	euroscepticism	within	 the	party	 coupled	with	 the	 rise	of	UKIP	and	
developments	within	 the	EU	pushed	Britain	 into	adopting	a	series	of	defensive	positions,	 forcing	
David	Cameron	toward	his	strategy	of	‘renegotiate	and	referendum’.	Furthermore,	both	the	
eurozone	crisis	and	the	migrant	crisis	played	defining	factors	in	swaying	opinions.	Both	led	to	
greater	euroscepticism	within	the	EU	and	particularly	in	the	UK.	The	eurosceptic	media	in	the	
UK	also	played	a	significant	role	in	pushing	towards	a	EU-Referendum.		
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Electoral	promises	which	were	made	during	the	Brexit	campaign	

During	the	election	campaign	around	Brexit	promises	were	made	by	both	pro	Europe	and	eurosceptic	
parties.	After	the	election,	the	advocates	of	Brexit	rolled	back	some	of	their	promises	and	it	became	
increasingly	clear	that	there	was	no	concrete	plan	for	the	future.	Now	many	Britons	feel	that	the	Brexit	
activists	made	empty	promises.	But	what	were	the	electoral	promises	and	which	ones	were	realistic?	
	
Control	was	an	important	issue	for	Brexit	advocates	-	especially	the	
control	of	immigration.	Right-wing	populist	Nigel	Farage	stated	in	the	
election	 campaign:	 "We	 want	 our	 borders	 back.	 We	 want	 our	
passports	back,	we	want	our	country	back.	If	everyone	who	agrees,	
votes	 on	 June	 23,	 it	 will	 be	 the	 Independence	 Day	 for	 the	 United	
Kingdom.	 "	 The	 Brexit	 campaigner	 argued	 that	 Britain	 could	 only	
control	immigration	if	it	was	no	longer	part	of	the	EU.	With	a	"bit	of	control"	they	meant	targeting	the	
freedom	of	movement.	However,	Brexit	supporters	imagine	a	model	like	that	of	Norway.	The	country	
is	not	a	member	of	the	EU	but	is	a	part	of	the	internal	market.	However,	Norway	must	comply	with	
several	EU	requirements	including	the	free	movement	of	persons.	If	the	British	continue	to	enjoy	the	
benefits	of	the	EU's	internal	market,	they	will	also	have	to	comply	with	the	rules,	as	the	EU	Commission	
has	already	made	clear.22	
	

There	is	also	uncertainty	about	the	speed	with	which	
the	exit	is	to	be	carried	out.	Before	the	referendum,	
the	Brexit	supporters	repeatedly	stated	they	would	
immediately	activate	Article	50	 (the	application	 for	
the	withdrawal)	of	the	EU	Treaty.	This	would	take	at	
least	 two	 years	 -	 but	 it	 has	 the	 potential	 to	 take	
longer.	 The	 government	 left	 the	 issue	 open	 for	 at	

least	 a	 few	months.	 Boris	 Johnson,	 ex-mayor	 of	 London	 and	 current	 Foreign	 Secretary	 said,	 "It	 is	
significant	to	emphasize	that	there	is	now	no	reason	to	hurry."	
Many	 believe	 that	 it	 was	 the	 right	 decision	 not	 to	 activate	
Article	50	immediately.23	

	

The	central	electoral	promise	of	the	"leave"	movement	was	
to	invest	the	weekly	contribution,	into	the	health	care	system	
instead	 of	 sending	 it	 to	 Brussels.	 The	 weekly	 British	 EU	
contribution	 rate,	 incidentally,	 is	 lower	 than	 the	 Brexit	
supporters	in	the	election	campaign	said.	According	to	the	latest	available	figures	from	2014,	the	HMT	
Treasury	Department	paid	around	9.9	billion	pounds	net	in	2014,	according	to	today's	exchange	rate	
12.5	 billion	 euros.	 That	 amounts	 to	 190	million	 pounds	 per	week	which	 converts	 to	 240.8	million	

																																																													
22	https://www.nytimes.com/2016/06/28/opinion/brexit-proponents-false-promises-crumble.html?_r=0		
23 http://www.independent.co.uk/news/uk/politics/brexit-lave-campaign-broken-promises-mounting-live-updates-polls-
7103076.html		
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euros.	UKIP	chief	Nigel	Farage,	stated	one	day	after	the	referendum	that	he	cannot	guarantee	the	
alleged	amount	of	350	million	pounds	per	week	will	now	be	invested	in	the	health	system.24	

More	 than	 a	 few	 British	 publicly	 resent	 the	 Brexit	 decision	 and	 would	 are	 calling	 for	 a	 second	
referendum.	The	failed	election	promises	could	be	responsible	for	this.	Many	British	are	shocked	by	
the	violent	reactions	of	the	stock	markets,	others	are	surprised	that	there	were	so	many	others	who	
did	not	really	believe	in	the	Brexit	and	who	voted	in	favour	only	in	protest.		
	
	

Hard	Brexit	versus	Soft	Brexit	
	
Hard	Brexit:	

One	of	the	extreme	versions	of	Brexit	would	be	a	“hard”	or	“clean”	Brexit.	This	would	involve	the	UK	
refusing	to	compromise	on	issues	like	the	free	movement	of	people	and	workers.	But	as	this	is	one	of	
the	EU’s	most	important	values	the	EU	would	likely	refuse	the	UK	access	to	the	EU	Single	Market	and	
the	UK	would	have	to	trade	with	the	EU	as	if	it	were	any	other	country	outside	Europe,	based	on	World	
Trade	Organization	rules.	

This	 would	 mean	 -	 at	 least	 in	 the	 short	 term	
before	a	trade	deal	was	done	-	the	UK	and	EU	
would	 probably	 apply	 tariffs	 and	 other	 trade	
restrictions	on	each	other.25	

	
Soft	Brexit:	

With	 the	 option	 of	 a	 “soft”	 Brexit,	 the	 UK's	
relationship	with	the	EU	would	remain	as	close	
as	possible	to	the	existing	arrangements.	

The	UK	would	no	longer	be	a	member	of	the	European	Union.	As	a	result	it	would	not	have	a	seat	on	
the	European	Council	anymore.	Likewise,	it	would	lose	its	MEPs	and	its	European	Commissioner.	But,	
it	would	keep	free	access	to	the	European	Single	Market.	

Goods	and	services	would	be	traded	with	the	remaining	EU	states	on	a	tariff-free	basis.	Britain	would	
remain	 within	 the	 EU's	 customs	 union,	 meaning	 that	 exports	 would	 not	 be	 subject	 to	 border	
controls.26		

In	her	speech	on	17th	January	this	year,	British	Prime	Minister	May	announced	that	the	government	
in	London	would	pursue	a	hard	Brexit,	without	access	to	the	European	Single	Market.		
	
“Not	partial	membership	of	 the	European	Union,	associate	membership	of	 the	European	Union,	or	
anything	that	leaves	us	half-in,	half-out.	We	do	not	seek	to	adopt	a	model	already	enjoyed	by	other	
countries.	We	do	not	seek	to	hold	on	to	bits	of	membership	as	we	leave.	“		
(Theresa	May,	Prime	Minister	of	the	United	Kingdom,	17.01.2017)27	

																																																													
24 https://www.theguardian.com/politics/2016/jun/27/eu-referendum-reality-check-leave-campaign-promises		
25 http://www.independent.co.uk/news/uk/politics/brexit-hard-soft-what-is-the-difference-uk-eu-single-market-freedom-
movement-theresa-may-a7342591.html		
26	http://www.telegraph.co.uk/news/2016/11/21/what-is-the-difference-between-a-hard-and-soft-brexit/		
27	http://www.telegraph.co.uk/news/2017/01/17/theresa-mays-brexit-speech-full/		
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Timeline	of	Brexit	

	

		

	23.01.13	

	

British	Prime	Minister	David	Cameron	announced	to	hold	an	EU-Referendum	

	20.02.16	

	

Cameron	sets	the	referendum	firmly	on	the	23.06	of	this	year	

	19.05.16	

	

One	month	before	the	Referendum	the	election	campaign	is	getting	more	radical	(Lies	and	Half-truths)	

	17.06.16	

	

British	MEP	and	pro	Europe	activist	Jo	Cox	is	murdered	

	24.06.16	
	

Almost	52	%	of	the	British	people	voted	for	Brexit;	Cameron	announced	that	he's	going	to	resign	in	October	

	04.07.16	

	

UKIP	chief	Nigel	Farage	resigns	

	11.07.16	

		
PM	Cameron	resigns,	Theresa	May	will	be	his	successor	
	

	14.07.16	

	

Boris	Johnson	becomes	Foreign	Minister	

	02.10.16	

	

PM	announced	that	UK	will	initiate	Brexit	in	March		

	11.10.16	

	

British	MEPs	call	for	vote	on	brexit	
	06.11.16	

	

Londoner	court	decided	that	the	Parliament	has	to	agree	on	Brexit	

	08.11.16	

	

Scottland	calls	for	a	Parliamentary	hearing	before	the	Brexit	negotiations	

	17.01.17	

	

Speech	of	Theresa	May	where	she	announced	a	"hard"	Brexit	
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Working	Groups	&	Questions	to	Consider		
	
Each	 delegate	 will	 be	 assigned	 an	 EU	member	 state	 and	 a	 ministry	 to	 represent	 throughout	 the	
weekend.	You	will	represent	a	Minister	from	your	assigned	country.	After	the	introduction	to	the	EU	
and	topic,	the	Expert	Advisors	will	give	an	overview	of	the	three	thematic	Working	Groups	and	the	
issues	presented	in	the	relevant	sections	of	the	draft	directive.	During	full	Council	Sessions	Ministers	
will	debate,	amend	and	vote	on	the	final	version	of	the	Directive.		
	
The	three	working	groups	are	as	follows:	
	 	

1. Home	Affairs	
2. Economics	and	Finance	
3. Foreign	Affairs,	Security,	and	Defence	/	Environment	and	Climate	Change	

	
Following	is	a	short	introduction	to	each	Working	Group	and	the	challenges	it	faces	in	light	of	Brexit.		
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Home	Affairs		
	
The	Home	Affairs	Working	Group	is	responsible	for	the	protection	and	promotion	of	civil	freedoms	
and	 fundamental	 human	 rights	within	 the	 citizenship	of	 EU	Member	 States.	 	 This	working	 group	
considers	 complex	 issues	 pertaining	 to	 the	 right	 to	 privacy28,	 freedom	 of	 movement29	 and	
immigration	policy	as	well	as	the	integrated	management	of	common	borders30	as	well	as	police	and	
judicial	cooperation	in	criminal	matters.		
	
One	of	the	main	discussion	points	 in	regards	to	Brexit	 is	 immigration,	so	please	reflect	upon	your	
country’s	immigration	policy	in	relation	to	the	Brexit	strategy.	
	
The	following	questions	will	help	facilitate	some	further	points	of	enquiry;	
	
Questions	to	consider	
1. Please	consider	how	this	directive	would	affect	immigration	policies	among	other	Member	States	

that	currently	allow	for	UK	nationals	to	obtain	access	to	public	health	care	and	pension	portability.	
Based	on	your	country’s	position	do	you	believe	such	privileges	will	come	under	further	scrutiny	in	
a	post-Brexit	era?	
	

2. Some	sectors	of	 the	UK	economy	have	come	to	 rely	on	EU	workers:	 they	account	 for	almost	8	
percent	of	the	5.7m	people	employed	in	shops,	hotels	and	restaurants,	for	example.	It	is	not	clear	
whether	a	post-Brexit	immigration	policy	would	admit	low-skilled	workers	to	continue	to	work	in	
the	UK.	Certainly,	the	UK’s	current	migration	policy	on	non-EU	migration	does	not.	Three-quarters	
of	EU	citizens	working	in	the	UK	would	not	meet	the	current	visa	requirements	for	non-EU	workers.	
Please	propose	a	strategy	that	would	help	minimise	such	implications	that	are	aligned	with	your	
country’s	position.	
	

3. The	EU	hopes	to	 include	free	movement	of	people	 in	a	transitional	agreement	with	the	UK	and	
many	European	leaders	have	made	clear	that	the	UK	will	not	be	granted	access	to	the	EU	single	
market	without	it	respecting	all	four	of	the	EU’s	core	freedoms.	The	UK	government	has	made	clear	
that	 it	will	 not	 accept	 free	movement	of	 people	 in	 any	Brexit	 agreement.	Will	 the	UK	 close	 its	
borders	to	EU	migrants	after	Brexit?	How	will	the	rest	of	the	EU	react	in	such	a	case?	

	
4. The	Court	of	Justice	of	the	European	Union	(CJEU)	is	the	judicial	institution	of	the	EU	and	it	works	

to	 ensure	 the	 European	 law	 is	 consistent	 throughout	 the	 EU.	 Importantly,	 it	 oversees	disputes	
involving	the	EU	single	market.	Considering	that	the	CJEU	may	facilitate	trade	relations	between	
the	UK	and	the	EU,	should	the	UK	accept	 its	 jurisdiction?	Theresa	May	has	said	that	the	CJEU’s	
jurisdiction	in	the	UK	was	one	of	her	negotiating	“red	lines”.	Would	accepting	the	jurisdiction	be	
something	the	UK	would	consider,	or	would	it	cause	it	to	lose	face?	Is	your	country	in	favour	of	
allowing	for	CJEU	jurisdiction	in	the	UK?		

	
5. The	European	Court	of	Human	Rights	(ECHR)	is	not	an	EU	institution.	However,	the	Court	monitors	

																																																													
28	See	Glossary	‘Privacy’	
29	See	Glossary	‘Freedom	of	Movement’	and	‘Schengen	Area’	
30	See	Glossary	‘Border	Management’	
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respect	for	the	human	rights	of	800	million	Europeans	in	the	47	Council	of	Europe	Member	States	
that	 have	 ratified	 the	 European	 Convention	 on	 Human	 Rights.	What	 is	 your	 stance	 on	 human	
rights?	Has	the	ECHR	overstepped	its	original	purpose	and	interfered	too	much	in	domestic	policy?	
Should	countries	have	the	ability	to	enforce	their	own	human	rights	law?	Remember	the	ECHR	is	
separate	 from	the	EU,	however	without	 the	 legal	protections	afforded	by	both	EU	 law	and	 the	
ECHR,	and	in	the	absence	of	a	written	UK	constitution	–	access	to	rights	and	remedies	could	be	
taken	away	without	proper	checks	or	safeguards.31	

	
6. The	Good	Friday	agreement	brought	peace	between	catholic	and	protestant	factions	in	Northern	

Ireland.	It	was	agreed	upon	when	the	UK	was	part	of	the	EU	and	relies	on	much	EU	law.	The	deal	
has	three	strands:	the	first	created	the	Northern	Ireland	Assembly,	an	elected	assembly	that	rules	
over	local	matters;	the	second	established	cross	border	co-operation	between	the	governments	of	
Ireland	and	Northern	Ireland;	the	third	called	for	continued	cooperation	between	the	governments	
of	Ireland	and	the	UK.	In	combination	with	EU	rules	of	free	movement,	the	border	between	Ireland	
and	 Northern	 Ireland	 is	 open,	 Brexit	 puts	 this	 into	 question.	 Consider	 how	 the	 Good	 Friday	
agreement	might	be	affected	by	Brexit.	Can	you	think	of	ways	to	mitigate	its	effects.	

	
	
Useful	links		
On	free	movement	of	people:	
http://www.bbc.com/news/business-36083664		
https://www.ft.com/content/a874de26-34b2-11e6-bda0-04585c31b153		
	
On	the	Transitional	Agreement:	
https://www.theguardian.com/politics/2017/jul/30/tensions-flare-in-cabinet-over-post-brexit-free-
movement	
http://www.independent.co.uk/news/uk/politics/brexit-latest-news-cabinet-ministers-free-
movement-uk-leave-eu-citizens-theresa-may-philip-hammond-a7852191.html	
https://www.theguardian.com/politics/2017/jul/28/philip-hammond-confirms-uk-will-seek-brexit-
transitional-deal		
	
On	the	European	Court	of	Justice:	
http://www.politico.eu/article/britain-cant-shake-european-court-of-justice-ecj-post-brexit/		
https://www.theguardian.com/world/2017/jun/29/eu-negotiator-says-ecj-should-still-be-able-to-
fine-uk-after-brexit	
https://www.theguardian.com/politics/2017/jun/13/theresa-may-judge-european-court-justice-
brexit-david-edward	
https://www.ft.com/content/815f56e4-655e-11e7-8526-7b38dcaef614	
	
On	the	European	Court	of	Human	Rights:	
https://www.hrw.org/news/2016/07/11/what-brexit-means-human-rights		
	

																																																													
31	https://www.theguardian.com/law/2017/feb/21/top-lawyers-warn-of-human-rights-crisis-after-brexit		
https://www.theguardian.com/law/2016/dec/29/ministers-put-british-bill-of-rights-plan-on-hold-until-after-brexit			
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On	the	good	Friday	Agreement:	
https://inews.co.uk/essentials/news/politics/ireland-wont-sign-brexit-deal-unless-good-friday-
agreement-protected/	
http://www.independent.co.uk/news/uk/politics/brexit-northern-irealand-gerry-adams-sinn-fein-
good-friday-agreement-peace-eu-a7539011.html		
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Economics	and	Finance		
	
The	Economics	&	Finance	Working	Group	is	responsible	for	economic	policy,	taxation	matters	and	
the	regulation	of	financial	services	within	the	EU.	It	is	also	responsible	for	the	EU’s	annual	budget.	In	
addition,	 it	 adopts	measures	 implementing	 the	 EU’s	 common	 commercial	 policy,	 which	 includes	
trade	 and	 investment	 relations.	 While	 the	 European	 Commission	 is	 ultimately	 responsible	 for	
negotiating	trade	agreements,	the	Council	plays	a	central	role	in	EU	trade	policy	as	it	mandates	the	
Commission	to	open	negotiations	and	gives	negotiating	directives	to	the	Commission.	

One	of	the	main	issues	with	regards	to	Brexit	is	the	level	of	access	the	UK	will	have	to	the	EU	Single	
Market	 after	 leaving	 the	 EU.	 Under	 the	 Single	Market,	 all	 barriers	 to	 trade	 are	 removed	 and	 all	
countries	have	to	abide	by	the	same	set	of	rules.	This	includes	the	adoption	of	the	“four	freedoms”:	
free	circulation	of	goods,	services,	capital	and	people.	Please	reflect	upon	your	country’s	position	on	
this	issue	in	relation	to	the	Brexit	strategy.	

	

The	following	information	and	questions	will	help	facilitate	some	further	points	of	enquiry.	

Questions	to	consider	

The	EU	Commission	has	calculated	that	the	UK	will	likely	owe	60	billion	euros	to	the	EU	budget	before	
it	leaves	the	EU.	This	amount	covers	the	UK’s	potential	obligations	in	three	main	areas:	legally	binding	
budget	 commitments	 that	will	 be	paid	 after	Britain	 leaves;	 pension	promises	 to	 EU	officials;	 and	
contingent	liabilities	–	such	as	bailout	loans	to	Ireland	–	that	would	only	require	payments	in	certain	
circumstances.	 What	 is	 likely	 to	 be	 contentious	 however,	 are	 required	 payments	 for	 projects	
undertaken	by	the	EU	that	will	be	paid	for	after	the	UK	leaves	the	EU.	

1. Does	your	country	agree	on	the	sum	of	this	contribution?	How	should	this	payment	be	made?	
Should	there	be	an	annual	contribution	to	be	agreed	upon?	

2. The	EU	budget	includes	projects	that	the	UK	may	want	to	continue	to	be	part	of,	such	as	the	
EU	 research	 programmes	 and	 the	 European	 Investment	 Bank.	 Would	 your	 country	 be	
opposed	to	the	UK	continuing	to	be	a	part	of	those	as	long	as	it	contributes	to	them	in	the	
budget?	How	should	the	UK’s	contribution	be	calculated?		

	

Financial	 services	 are	 services	 provided	 by	 a	 range	 of	 business	 like	 banks,	 insurance	 companies,	
investment	funds,	credit	card	companies	etc.	and	they	provide	services	for	businesses	and	private	
individuals	alike.	It	has	been	assessed	that	the	financial	services	industry	represents	about	7%	of	the	
UK’s	GDP.	It	is	therefore	an	important	component	of	the	UK’s	economy.	

The	EU	financial	services	market	is	part	of	the	Single	Market,	meaning	that	under	the	status	quo	a	
company	in	London	can	trade	just	as	easily	in	Berlin	or	Madrid	as	in	Cardiff	or	Glasgow.	Under	the	
rules	of	 the	 Single	Market,	 a	 financial	 services	 company	 can	provide	 services	 to	 any	 company	or	
person	 in	any	Member	State	as	 long	as	 it	 is	 licensed	 in	 its	home	country.	This	means	that	a	bank	
based	 in	 the	UK	 can	provide	 financial	 services	 to	 a	 company	 in	Portugal.	 This	 is	 called	 the	 single	
licensing	system	(“passporting”)	that	is	based	on	the	mutual	recognition	of	licenses	throughout	the	
EU.	
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An	 equivalence	 licensing	 system	 exists	 for	 countries	 that	 are	 outside	 the	 EU	 but	 are	 within	 the	
European	Economic	Area	(EEA).	This	equivalence	system	is	negotiated	individually	between	the	EU	
and	members	of	the	EEA	and	does	not	include	the	whole	range	of	financial	services,	but	rather	certain	
types	for	certain	clients	depending	on	the	agreement	between	the	parties.	The	equivalence	system	
can	also	be	withdrawn	at	any	time.	

3. The	 UK’s	 economy	 will	 suffer	 if	 it	 loses	 access	 to	 the	 market	 for	 financial	 services	 in	 EU	
Member	States.	However,	in	order	to	retain	equivalent	EU	licensing	it	would	be	required	to	
follow	the	rules	of	the	EU’s	Single	Market.	As	a	representative	of	your	country	you	need	to	
consider	what	would	be	the	best	option:	A	high,	moderate	or	low	degree	of	access	to	the	EU	
financial	services	market.	

4. Does	the	UK	really	want	to	continue	to	follow	EU	rules,	especially	without	having	a	say	in	what	
those	rules	will	be?	

5. As	a	Member	State	of	the	EU,	would	you	like	to	see	the	UK	remain	in	the	EEA?	Do	you	view	it	
as	fair?	Or	do	you	consider	it	to	be	too	positive	for	the	UK	that	decided	to	leave? 

	

In	 addition	 to	 having	 a	 Single	Market,	 the	 EU	 is	 also	 a	 customs	union.	 This	means	 that	 common	
external	tariffs	are	applied	to	goods	entering	the	EU	from	non-EU	countries.	These	tariffs	are	set	by	
the	EU,	not	the	Member	States,	as	the	EU	has	the	sole	competence	for	trade	policy.	Once	foreign	
goods	are	within	the	customs	union,	they	may	move	freely	without	the	imposition	of	any	 internal	
tariffs	or	customs	duties.	Currently,	a	UK	firm	can	sell	their	goods	to	EU	customers	without	having	to	
pay	any	tariffs	or	other	customs	duties	as	it	is	part	of	the	EU.	Without	access	to	the	EU	market,	the	
UK	would	revert	to	the	default	trade	arrangement	with	the	EU	based	on	World	Trade	Organisation	
(WTO)	rules.	This	means	that	the	EU	and	UK	would	apply	external	customs	duties	to	each	other’s	
goods,	unless	an	alternative	arrangement	is	made.	

One	alternative	to	EU	membership	 is	 the	Norwegian	model	 (membership	of	 the	EEA).	This	would	
ensure	full	market	access	but	is	politically	implausible	for	the	UK	as	it	would	require	participation	in	
the	Single	Market	without	being	a	member	of	the	EU.	This	means	that	the	UK	would	have	to	accept	
and	apply	the	four	freedoms,	but	would	not	have	a	say	in	any	decision-	or	rule-making.	

Another	alternative	to	EU	membership	is	the	Swiss	model	(membership	of	the	European	Free	Trade	
Association).	This	would	allow	the	UK	to	obtain	free	trade	access	to	the	EU	market	on	the	basis	of	
separate	bilateral	 agreements.	However,	 Switzerland	has	 adopted	 the	 free	movement	of	people,	
which	the	UK	is	opposed	to.	In	addition,	Switzerland	does	not	have	access	to	the	EU	financial	services	
market.	This	is	of	significance	to	the	UK	given	their	strong	financial	services	industry	which	is	tied	to	
the	EU	market.	

6. Should	the	UK:	1)	remain	within	the	EU’s	customs	union	and/	or	Single	Market	and	have	free	
trade	access	to	the	EU	market;	2)	choose	to	go	for	the	“hard”	Brexit	and	revert	to	the	default	
WTO	 position;	 3)	 negotiate	 a	 similar	 deal	 to	 Norway	 or	 Switzerland?	 Considering	 your	
country’s	position,	discuss	the	costs	and	benefits	of	each	scenario.	

7. If	 the	UK	adopts	a	hard	Brexit,	what	will	be	the	future	of	EU-UK	trade?	How	would	a	hard	
Brexit	affect	the	EU? 

In	addition	to	setting	common	external	tariffs,	the	EU	also	makes	non-tariff	commitments.	One	of	
these	commitments	is	in	regards	to	quantitative	market	access,	such	as	tariff	rate	quotas	(TRQ’s)	for	
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imports	of	foreign	goods.	TRQ’s	are	imposed	on	politically	contentious	products,	such	as	agricultural	
goods	(cheese,	butter,	beef,	poultry	etc.)	in	the	EU’s	case,	and	they	limit	the	amount	of	each	product	
that	may	enter	the	EU	market	under	a	reduced	tariff	rate.	Any	imports	over	the	specified	amount	are	
charged	at	a	 significantly	higher	 tariff	 rate.	This	 reduced	amount	 is	either	apportioned	 to	 certain	
countries	under	bilateral	trade	agreements,	or	is	open	to	any	WTO	Member	under	WTO	rules,	or	a	
combination	of	both.	Where	TRQ’s	have	been	obtained	through	bilateral	negotiations	with	a	third	
country,	this	cannot	be	changed	without	the	consent	of	that	country.	In	addition,	changes	to	global	
TRQ’s	cannot	be	made	without	the	consent	of	WTO	members.	It	should	be	noted	that	where	changes	
are	made	 to	TRQ’s	 to	 the	detriment	of	other	WTO	members,	 those	members	may	 feel	 that	 such	
changes	discriminate	against	their	market	access	entitlements	or	nullifies	their	expected	benefits	and	
may	therefore	seek	improved	access	or	compensation.	

A	very	complicated	issue	relates	to	the	extent	that	the	UK	will	inherit	the	rights	and	obligations	under	
the	EU’s	trade	agreements.	The	UK	could	decide	to	sign	new	agreements	once	outside	the	EU	with	
the	same	trading	partners,	which	although	feasible,	is	very	time-consuming.	On	the	other	hand,	the	
UK	might	intend	to	continue	these	agreements	after	Brexit	to	the	extent	that	the	trading	partners	
agree.	The	time	pressure	on	the	EU	(which	is	already	engaged	in	negotiating	a	broad	range	of	complex	
new	agreements)	also	means	that	it	has	little	incentive	to	adjust	its	existing	trade	agreements	simply	
to	facilitate	the	departure	of	the	UK.	This	means	that	it	is	very	unlikely	that	the	TRQ’s	under	these	
agreements	will	be	renegotiated.	The	implication	is	that	the	EU-27	will	be	bound	to	accept	the	same	
amount	 of	 sensitive	 products	 as	 when	 they	 were	 the	 EU-28.	 The	 other	 option	 is	 for	 the	 UK	 to	
negotiate	its	own	market	access	arrangements	for	TRQ’s	as	part	of	a	full	renegotiation	of	bilateral	
agreements	with	these	countries,	thereby	inheriting	some	of	the	EU’s	TRQ	commitments.	Some	of	
these	TRQ’s	are	significant	for	the	UK,	since	a	large	share	of	EU	agricultural	imports	are	destined	for	
the	UK	market	(such	as	butter	from	New	Zealand).	

8. Considering	your	country’s	position,	how	should	TRQ	commitments	at	the	global/	WTO	level	
be	apportioned	during	negotiations?	

9. Ought	the	UK	to	inherit	the	rights	and	obligations	of	existing	EU	trade	agreements	or	should	
they	be	entitled	to	start	afresh?	

	

	

Useful	Links	

On	Budget	and	Finance:	
http://www.nortonrosefulbright.com/knowledge/publications/136980/impact-of-%20brexit-on-
financial-institutions	
http://www.cer.org.uk/publications/archive/policy-brief/2017/%E2%82%AC60-billion-brexit-bill-
how-disentangle-britain-eu-budget	
http://www.europarl.europa.eu/RegData/etudes/BRIE/2016/587384/IPOL_BRI(2016)587384_EN.p
df	
		
On	Economic	Consequences	of	Brexit	
https://www.ceps.eu/publications/brexits-consequences-uk-%E2%80%93-and-eu	
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On	Trade:	
http://www.bbc.com/news/business-38910578	
http://www.independent.co.uk/voices/single-market-brexit-customs-union-what-is-it-brexiteers-
misleading-economy-a7874351.html	
http://www.civitas.org.uk/reports_articles/potential-post-brexit-tariff-costs-for-eu-uk-trade/	
http://researchbriefings.files.parliament.uk/documents/RP13-42/RP13-42.pdf	
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Security,	Defence,	Environment	&	Climate	Change		
	
Security	and	Defence		
The	UK	participates	in	EU	security	and	defence	initiatives	through	the	Common	Security	and	Defence	
Policy	(CSDP).	The	CSDP	was	launched	following	the	Saint-Malo	Declaration	signed	in	December	1998.	
Due	to	the	size	of	its	armed	forces,	defence	industry,	and	experience	in	high-intensity	warfare,	the	UK	
has	played	a	 leading	political	 role	 in	 setting	up	 the	CSDP.	While	maintaining	a	 clear	opposition	 to	
certain	 “red	 lines”,	 namely	 the	 non-duplication	 of	 NATO’s	 operational	 planning	 and	 command	
structures,	the	UK	has	invested	considerable	political	capital	and	resources	in	the	development	of	an	
autonomous	 EU	 military	 capability,	 notably	 by	 actively	 supporting	 the	 creation	 of	 the	 European	
Defence	 Agency	 in	 2004.	 The	 British	 contribution	 to	 CSDP	 operations	 was	 particularly	 significant	
during	 early	 EU	 military	 deployments,	 such	 as	 in	 the	 Former	 Yugoslav	 Republic	 of	 Macedonia	
(Operation	Concordia);	Bosnia	and	Herzegovina	(EUFOR	Althea);	and	later,	during	the	EU’s	counter-
piracy	and	maritime	operations	off	 the	Horn	of	Africa	 (EUNAVFOR	Atalanta),	 for	which	the	UK	still	
provides	the	Operational	HQ	at	Northwood.	
	
Nevertheless,	the	UK	had	started	to	walk	away	from	the	CSDP	and	cut	back	its	contribution	to	EU	
deployments	long	before	the	referendum	on	the	UK’s	membership	of	the	EU.	It	now	ranks	only	fifth	
among	 the	 contributors	 to	CSDP	military	operations,	 after	 France,	 Italy,	Germany	and	Spain,	 and	
seventh	for	civilian	missions,	after	Germany,	the	Netherlands,	Poland,	Sweden,	France	and	Finland.	
In	total,	the	UK	deploys	4.19%	of	the	total	personnel	provided	by	EU	Member	States.	
	
In	embarking	on	the	process	of	exiting	the	EU,	the	UK’s	future	arrangements	for	cooperation	in	the	
areas	of	security	and	defence	will	need	to	be	negotiated.	Three	alternative	scenarios	of	the	future	
security	and	defence	relationship	between	the	UK	and	the	EU	might	be	envisaged:	integrated	player,	
associated	partner,	detached	observer.	
	
Questions	to	consider	
1. Under	an	Integrated	Player	model,	the	UK	would	remain	outside	the	EU	but	inside	the	CSDP.	The	

UK	 would	 continue	 with	 its	 existing	 commitments	 to	 current	 CSDP	 military	 and	 civilian	
operations,	and	participate	 in	equal	 terms	 in	 future	missions.	Considering	your	country’s	and	
your	party’s	positions,	do	you	think	that	this	idea	can	be	accepted	by	your	country?	What	will	be	
the	costs	and	benefits	of	this	integration	in	the	area	of	CSDP?	

	
2. Under	an	Associated	Partner	model,	the	UK	would	keep	a	loose	relationship	to	EU	security	and	

defence	policy.	The	UK	would	remain	outside	the	EU’s	structures	of	military	planning	but	may	
decide	to	participate	in	aspects	of	implementation.	This	could	involve	the	signing	of	a	Framework	
Participation	Agreement	to	allow	for	participation	in	CSDP	operations	on	a	case-by-case	basis.		
Considering	your	country’s	and	your	party’s	positions,	do	you	think	that	this	idea	can	be	accepted	
by	your	country?	What	will	be	the	costs	and	benefits	of	this	model	in	the	area	of	CSDP?	

	
3. Under	 a	 Detached	 Observer	 model,	 the	 UK	 would	 remain	 politically	 and	 organisationally	

separated	from	the	EU’s	CSDP.	The	UK	may	decide	to	follow	the	practice	of	the	United	States.	
The	US	has	not	participated	 in	the	EU’s	military	CSDP	missions	but	has	participated	 in	civilian	
CSDP	 missions	 on	 a	 case-by-case	 basis	 via	 a	 framework	 agreement	 on	 crisis	 management	
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operations	signed	in	2011.	Considering	your	country’s	and	your	party’s	positions,	do	you	think	
that	this	idea	can	be	accepted	by	your	country?	What	will	be	the	costs	and	benefits	of	this	model	
in	the	area	of	CSDP?	

	
4. The	key	question	for	the	UK	and	the	EU	during	the	Brexit	negotiations	in	the	security	area	is	the	

degree	 to	which	 both	 sides	 seek	 a	 relationship	 that	 sees	 the	 UK	 integrated	 into	 existing	 EU	
decision-making	 and	 collective	 implementation.	 Considering	 your	 country’s	 and	 your	 party’s	
positions,	 to	 which	 extend	 it	 can	 be	 accepted	 by	 your	 country?	What	 will	 be	 the	 costs	 and	
benefits	of	this	choice	in	the	area	of	CSDP?	

	
5. Trade	 and	 security	 policy	 belong	 to	 different	 areas	 of	 future	 negotiations.	 Considering	 your	

country’s	and	your	party’s	positions,	do	you	think	that	these	two	issues	can	be	associated?	And	
which	one	will	be	relatively	more	important	for	your	country?	What	kind	of	concessions	can	your	
country	make	to	get	more	benefits?		

	
	
Environment	and	Climate	Change:	

The	 primary	 international	 framework	 for	 addressing	 climate	 change	 issues	 is	 the	 Paris	
Agreement,	which	was	negotiated	and	signed	in	2015.	Both	the	European	Union	as	a	whole	and	
the	United	Kingdom	as	a	sovereign	state	have	ratified	the	Paris	Agreement,	and	the	agreement	itself	
entered	into	legal	force	on	4	November	2016.	Of	the	EU	Member	states	besides	the	United	Kingdom,	
only	the	Czech	Republic	has	failed	thus	far	to	ratify	the	agreement	at	the	national	level.32		
	
The	UK	has	been	a	strong	voice	on	climate	change	both	globally	and	within	the	EU.33	Its	own	domestic	
legislation	for	dealing	with	climate	issues,	the	Climate	Change	Act	2008,	is	fairly	strenuous	and	legally	
binds	 the	UK	 to	 reduce	 its	 greenhouse	gas	 (GHG)	emissions	by	at	 least	80%	below	1990	 levels	by	
2050.34	With	the	UK	removed	from	the	EU,	European	member	states	that	have	proven	reluctant	to	
take	 forceful	 climate	 action	 could	 find	 their	 positions	 strengthened.	 These	 states	 include	 Eastern	
European	countries	like	Poland,	the	Czech	Republic,	Hungary	and	Slovakia,	whose	energy	systems	rely	
heavily	on	coal.	
	
Under	the	Paris	Agreement,	all	EU	members	are	committed	to	a	40%	emissions	reduction	from	1990	
levels	by	2030,	to	be	met	collectively.	The	2030	target	was	divided	up	through	a	process	of	'burden-
sharing'	into	targets	for	each	Member	State.	The	UK	has	been	given	a	37%	reduction	target	to	reduce	
carbon	emissions.	 This	 is	 a	 separate	 commitment	 to	 those	 specified	 in	 the	UK’s	 domestic	 Climate	
Change	 Act	 2008.	 The	 UK	 Government	 has	 indicated	 that	 it	 will	 stick	 to	 this	 carbon	 reduction	
commitment,	but	at	this	point	in	BREXIT	negotiations	it	remains	to	be	seen	if	this	position	will	change,	
or	 if	 EU	member	 states	will	 be	 forced	 to	 accept	 deeper	 carbon	 cuts	 to	 compensate	 for	 the	 UK’s	
removal	from	the	EU.	
	

																																																													
32	http://unfccc.int/paris_agreement/items/9444.php	
33	http://www.climatechangenews.com/2017/07/07/may-meets-trump-climate-brexit-threatens-paris-accord/	
34	https://www.theccc.org.uk/tackling-climate-change/the-legal-landscape/the-climate-change-act/	
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One	of	the	primary	mechanisms	of	the	European	Union	is	the	EU	Emissions	Trading	System	(ETS).	
The	system	limits	emissions	from	more	than	11,000	power	stations	and	industrial	plants,	as	well	as	
airlines	operating	throughout	Europe.	It	covers	around	45%	of	the	EU’s	total	greenhouse	gas	(GHG)	
emissions.	It	is	unclear	at	this	point	if	the	UK	will	remain	within	the	ETS	after	Brexit.		
	
Questions	to	Consider	
1. What	is	your	country’s	stance	on	climate	change	issues?	
2. Would	your	government	be	willing	to	take	on	deeper	emissions	cuts	if	the	UK	is	excused	from	its	

EU	targets?	
3. Does	your	country	rely	on	coal	powered	energy	systems?	
4. Should	the	UK	be	allowed	to	stay	within	the	EU	Emissions	Trading	System	(ETS)?	If	it	leaves,	how	

should	the	EU	replace	the	almost	€2bn	(£1.7bn)	worth	of	funding	for	ETS	that	the	UK	provides?	
5. What	is	the	most	appropriate	way	to	address	climate	change	issues?	Should	the	EU	play	a	greater	

or	 lesser	role	 in	promoting	energy	efficiency	and	pursuing	other	climate	proactive	policies,	or	
should	these	decisions	be	left	to	the	member	states?	

	
Useful	Links	
http://www.lse.ac.uk/GranthamInstitute/brexit/	
https://www.ft.com/content/5d50874c-8aed-11e6-8aa5-f79f5696c731	
http://wyso.org/post/brexit-inequality-climate-change-and-energy		
http://www.independent.co.uk/environment/brexit-latest-news-derail-eu-attempts-climate-
change-greenhouse-gas-emissions-meps-ets-a7569896.html		
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Member	States	of	the	European	Union		

	

	

“Many	are	wondering	whether	Brexit	is	the	beginning	of	the	disintegration	process	of	the	EU.	
Allow	me	to	state,	we	respect	and	at	the	same	time	regret	the	UK's	decision,	but	the	EU	as	such	
is	not	at	risk.”	

	

Jean-Claude	Juncker,	President	of	the	European	Commission	(13.09.2016)	

	

“There's	no	hiding	the	fact	that	we	wanted	a	different	outcome	of	yesterday's	referendum.	I	am	
fully	aware	of	how	serious,	or	even	dramatic,	this	moment	is	politically.	And	there's	no	way	of	
predicting	all	the	political	consequences	of	this	event,	especially	for	the	UK.	It	is	a	historic	
moment	but	for	sure	not	a	moment	for	hysterical	reactions.	I	want	to	reassure	everyone	that	
we	are	prepared	also	for	this	negative	scenario.	As	you	know	the	EU	is	not	only	a	fair-weather	
project.”	
	
Donald	Tusk,	President	of	the	European	Council	(24.06.2016)	
	

"The	future	deal	between	the	EU	and	the	UK	must	be	good	for	all	sides	and	must	be	one	which	
allows	the	UK	and	the	EU	to	keep	working	closely	together	on	various	aspects.	The	UK	has	
decided	to	leave	the	EU	but	it	will	continue	to	be	a	European	country	with	values	and	
geopolitical	interests	which	are	common	to	the	rest	of	the	continent.”	

Martin	Schulz,	Former	President	of	the	European	Parliament	(22.09.2016)	
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Austria	
	
Population:	8,725,931	
Seats	in	EU	Parliament:	18	
GDP:	US	$	387.299	Billion	
	
	
	
“I	think	it	is	better	to	accept	the	result	of	the	majority	of	people	of	the	UK	–	you	can	regret	it	
but	it	is	the	reality.	And	now	we	have	to	manage	with	this,	and	I	hope	we	can	find	a	good	
solution	between	the	EU	and	the	United	Kingdom.”	
Hans	Joerg	Schelling,	Finance	Minister	of	Austria	(01.10.2016)	
	
Austria	has	developed	a	high	standard	of	living	and	in	2014	was	ranked	21st	in	the	world	for	its	
Human	Development	Index.	Austria	has	been	a	member	of	the	United	Nations	since	1955,	joined	
the	European	Union	in	1995,	and	is	a	founder	of	the	Organisation	for	Economic	Co-operation	
and	Development	(OECD).	Austria	also	signed	the	Schengen	Agreement	in	1995,	and	adopted	
the	euro	currency	in	1999.	Austria	attaches	great	importance	to	participation	in	the	OECD	and	
other	international	economic	organisations,	and	it	has	played	an	active	role	in	the	Organization	
for	Security	and	Cooperation	in	Europe	(OSCE).	
	
Austria	has	always	been	a	very	export-oriented	country	and	since	 joining	 the	EU	 in	1995,	 its	
exports	have	tripled.	It	is	estimated	that	Austria’s	membership	in	the	EU,	including	the	effects	
of	Economic	and	Monetary	Union	and	Enlargement,	on	average	added	18,500	jobs	and	0.9%	to	
its	GDP	growth	every	year.35	Today,	around	70%	of	Austria’s	total	trade	is	being	carried	out	with	
the	other	EU	Member	States,	so	an	economic	impact	of	Brexit	is	at	stake.	Despite	good	economic	
growth	 due	 to	membership	 in	 the	 EU,	 Austrians	 are	 not	 so	 positive	 about	 the	 EU	 anymore,	
reflecting	a	trend	in	other	EU	Member	States.	31	%	of	Austrian	citizens	believe	that	it	would	be	
better	to	leave	the	EU.36	It	follows	that	Brexit	could	also	be	the	trigger	for	more	people	to	vote	
for	right-wing	parties	in	Austria.37		
	
Ministries	of	Austria:	
Ministry	of	European	Integration	and	Foreign	Affairs:	https://www.bmeia.gv.at/en/	
Ministry	of	Finance:	https://english.bmf.gv.at/	
Ministry	of	Science,	Research	and	Economy:	http://www.en.bmwfw.gv.at/Seiten/default.aspx	
Ministry	of	Justice:	
https://www.justiz.gv.at/web2013/service_navigation/home~8ab4a8a422985de301229895ea
7a0062.de.html	

																																																													
35	http://blogs.lse.ac.uk/europpblog/2016/06/21/brexit-ambassador-series-austria/		
36	https://www.neweurope.eu/article/austrias-take-brexit-debate/		
37	http://www.express.co.uk/news/politics/739257/Austria-leave-EU-what-happens-Norbert-Hofer-wins-Austrian-
election-effect-on-EU-Europe		
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Belgium	
	
Population:	11,250,585	
Seats	in	EU	Parliament:	21	
GDP:	US	$	470.179	Billion	
	
	

“This	is	not	at	all	what	we	would	have	wanted,	and	it’s	not	good	news.	It’s	a	simple	fact	that	
Europe	is	stronger	with	28	members	than	with	27.	This	is	not	a	good	thing	for	the	image	of	the	
union,	but	the	end	of	Europe?	I	really	don’t	think	so."	

Marianne	Thyssen,	Belgium’s	representative	in	the	European	Commission	(01.07.2016)	
	
Belgium	 is	one	of	 the	 six	 founding	countries	of	 the	European	Union	and	hosts	 the	European	
Commission,	Council	of	 the	European	Union,	and	European	Council,	 as	well	as	 the	European	
Parliament	in	the	country's	capital,	Brussels.	Belgium	is	also	a	founding	member	of	the	Eurozone,	
NATO,	 OECD	 and	 the	 World	 Trade	 Organization.	 Belgium	 is	 a	 developed	 country,	 with	 an	
advanced	high-income	economy	and	is	categorized	as	"very	high"	in	the	Human	Development	
Index.	 The	 Belgian	 state	 is	 organised	 into	 three	 distinctive	 regions	 and	 languages:	 Flanders	
(Flemish),	 Brussels-Capital	 (French/Flemish)	 and	Wallonia	 (French/German).	 Not	 only	 do	 the	
different	 languages	 play	 a	 key	 role	 in	 tensions	 between	 the	 two	 regions,	 but	 there	 are	 also	
economic	 differences	 like	 unemployment.	 Pro-independence	 movements	 have	 gained	 high	
popularity	in	Flanders	as	a	consequence.		
	
Belgium	is	highly	exposed,	especially	via	the	trade	channel,	to	the	economic	impact	of	the	UK's	
vote	to	leave	the	EU.	The	UK's	referendum	on	EU	membership	will	affect	the	Belgian	economy	
in	a	number	of	ways.	In	2015,	8.8%	of	all	Belgian	exports	went	to	the	UK.	This	means	that	Belgium	
is	one	of	the	EU	Member	States	which	is	likely	to	be	effected	by	a	downturn	in	British	demand.38		
	
Because	of	its	own	divisions,	Belgium	is	a	strong	voice	for	a	more	integrated	EU.	Indeed,	Belgium	
was	one	of	the	more	enthusiastic	supporters	of	the	freedom	of	movement.	In	the	event	of	Brexit,	
one	of	Belgium’s	priorities	is	still	to	continue	on	the	path	of	greater	integration	–	even	if	the	EU	
has	to	simultaneously	negotiate	the	withdrawal	of	the	UK.	
	
Belgium	will	not	accept	any	‘Plan	B’	for	the	relationship	between	the	EU	and	the	UK.	For	the	
Belgian	government,	the	UK	has	to	be	either	out	or	in	-it	cannot	choose	a	‘third	way’	envisaged	
by	some	Member	States.	One	thing	is	sure	from	the	Belgian	perspective:	in	the	event	of	a	Brexit,	
Belgium	will	not	accept	the	creation	of	any	‘special	status’	for	the	UK.	This	is	because	of	a	fear	
of	triggering	a	domino	effect	that	may	result	in	other	EU	Member	States	demanding	the	same	
privileges.	

																																																													
38http://country.eiu.com/article.aspx?articleid=774361061&Country=Belgium&topic=Economy&subtopic=Forecast
&subsubtopic=External+sector&u=1&pid=85063392&oid=85063392&uid=1  
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It	is	important	for	Belgium	that	any	withdrawal	negotiation	undertaken	with	the	UK	does	not	
block	deeper	 integration	within	 the	Union.	 Indeed,	 the	Belgian	Government	 sees	Brexit	 as	 a	
possible	opportunity	to	clarify	the	design	and	the	finality	of	the	European	Union.	39	
	
Ministries	of	Belgium:	
Ministry	of	Foreign	Affairs,	Foreign	Trade	and	development	cooperation:	
http://diplomatie.belgium.be/en	
Ministry	of	Finance:	http://finance.belgium.be/en/	
Ministry	of	Economy:	http://economie.fgov.be/en/fps/#.WI_zsn94BXU	
Ministry	of	Justice:	http://issat.dcaf.ch/Share/People-and-
Organisations/Organisations/Belgian-Federal-Public-Service-for-Justice		
	 	

																																																													
39 http://www.brusselstimes.com/magazine2/7017/five-things-we-learned-from-brexit-s-impact-on-belgium-panel  
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Bulgaria	
Population:	7,202,198	
Seats	in	EU	Parliament:	17	
GDP:	US	$	48.957	Billion	
	
	
“After	the	U.K.’s	referendum	on	leaving	the	EU	a	united	Europe	needs	a	new	integration	push.	
Bulgaria	needs	to	accelerate	its	preparation	for	joining	the	zone	of	the	common	European	
currency,	or	it	risks	falling	behind	in	the	decision-making	process.”	

Rosen	Plevneliev,	Bulgarian	President	(21.09.2016)	
	
Bulgaria	is	a	member	of	the	European	Union,	NATO,	and	the	Council	of	Europe;	a	founding	state	
of	the	Organization	for	Security	and	Co-operation	in	Europe	(OSCE);	and	has	taken	a	seat	at	the	
United	Nations	Security	Council	three	times.	In	2007	Bulgaria	was	allowed	to	join	the	EU,	mostly	
for	geopolitical	reasons,	even	though	the	country	didn’t	fully	assume		the	rights	and	obligations	
of	membership.	Bulgaria	has	not	yet	met	the	criteria	to	join	the	Eurozone.	Furthermore,	Bulgaria	
is	also	not	part	of	the	Schengen	Area,	but	the	European	Commission	stressed		that	Bulgaria	is	
meeting	all	the	requirements	to	enter	the	area.	Now	a	unanimous	decision	of	all	members	is	
required.	In	2018,	Bulgaria	will	hold	the	revolving	presidency	of	the	Council	of	the	EU	for	the	
first	time.	Bulgaria’s	main	export	partners	are	Germany,	Italy	and	Turkey,	while	its	main	import	
partners	are	Germany,	Russia	and	Italy.	
	
The	relationship	between	Bulgaria	and	the	UK	could	be	affected	strongly	by	the	UK	vote	to	leave	
the	EU.40	Both	countries	have	a	lot	of	bilateral	work	on	border	protection,	security,	education	
and	culture.	 In	2014,	at	 the	 ten-year	anniversary	of	Bulgaria’s	membership	 to	NATO,	 the	UK	
reaffirmed	its	commitment	to	the	strong	bilateral	relationship.41	The	uncertainty	as	a	result	of	
Brexit	is	already	affecting	the	Bulgarian	economy.	This	effect	nevertheless	is	more	indirect	than	
direct,	through	the	overall	European	deceleration	in	economic	growth.	But	in	the	long	term	it	is	
expected	 that	 Brexit	 will	 not	 have	 a	massive	 effect	 on	 the	 economy	 in	 Bulgaria.	Moreover,		
uncertainty	exists	both	for	Bulgarians	who	live	in	the	UK	and	for	Britons	who	live	in	Bulgaria.	
Approximately	65	000	Bulgarians	are	working	at	the	moment	in	the	UK.	In	comparison	to	that	
there	are	only	around	9	000	Britons	living	in	Bulgaria.		
	
Ministries	of	Bulgaria:	
Ministry	of	Foreign	Affairs:	http://www.mfa.bg/setlang/en/		
Ministry	of	Finance:	https://www.minfin.bg/en/		
Ministry	of	Economy:	http://www.mi.government.bg/en	
Ministry	of	Defence:	https://www.md.government.bg/en/	
Ministry	of	Transport,	Information	Technology	and	Communication:	
https://www.mtitc.government.bg/en	

																																																													
40 http://www.novinite.com/articles/177858/Will+Brexit+Affect+Bulgaria-UK+Business+Ties%3F  
41 https://www.gov.uk/government/news/uk-and-bulgaria-reaffirm-commitment-to-strong-bilateral-relations  
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Croatia	
	
Population:	4,190,70	
Seats	in	EU	Parliament:	11	
GDP:	US	$	51.945	Billion	
	
	
“It	is	not	only	about	trading	arrangements	and	access	to	the	EU's	Single	Market	it	is	also	about	
preserving	our	joint	and	unique	culture,	our	decades	of	strategic	partnership	and	our	
commitment	to	the	same	shared	values.	This	relationship	needs	to	be	tailor-made.”	

Kolinda	Grabar-Kitarovic,	President	of	Croatia	(12.10.2016)	
	
Croatia	is	the	newest	member	of	the	European	Union.	Even	though	Croatia	is	now	part	of	the	
EU	it	hasn’t	yet	joined	the	Schengen	Area,	nor	the	Eurozone	(having	not	met	the	criteria).	Croatia	
is	part	of	important	worldwide	organisations	such	as	the	UN,	NATO	and	the	WTO.	The	service	
sector	is	the	most	important	sector	for	the	Croatian	economy,	but	Tourism	also	plays	a	major	
role.	Croatian	exports	are	primarily	destined	for	Italy,	Germany	and	Slovenia.	These	countries	
are	also	the	most	important	trading	partners	for	Croatian	imports.	
	
Croatia	will	probably	be	spared	 from	major	negative	effects	as	a	 result	of	Brexit.42	The	trade	
between	Croatia	and	the	UK	is	very	modest.	The	average	share	of	Croatia’s	exports	to	the	UK	in	
recent	years	was	around	1.2	to	1.7%.	The	only	negative	impact	for	Croatia	could	come	from	a	
general	weakening	of	the	European	economy.	Therefore,	Brexit	is	likely	to	have	only	an	indirect	
effect	on	the	Croatian	economy.	Further,	as	a	major	recipient	of	European	development	funds,	
Brexit	will	also	mean	less	money	for	Croatian	development.	
	
Ministries	of	Croatia:	
Ministry	of	Foreign	and	European	Affairs:	http://www.mvep.hr/en/	
Ministry	of	Finance:	http://www.mfin.hr/en	
Ministry	of	Defence:	https://www.morh.hr/en/	
Ministry	of	Sea,	Transport	and	Infrastructure:	http://www.mppi.hr/default.aspx?id=7397	
Ministry	of	Economy,	Entrepreneur	and	Crafts:	http://www.mingo.hr/en	
	 	

																																																													
42 http://www.total-croatia-news.com/item/12561-how-would-brexit-affect-croatia  
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Cyprus	
Population:	1,141,16	
Seats	in	EU	Parliament:	6	
GDP:	US	$	23.263	Billion	
	
"I	will	say	let	the	dialogue	in	the	European	
Council	develop,	always	keeping	in	mind	the	best	interests	of	Europe	and	of	each	Member	
State.	At	the	same	time,	the	EU	of	27	Member	States	will	continue	to	exist	and	the	Republic	of	
Cyprus	underlines	its	full	commitment	to	the	European	project.”	
Nicos	Anastasiades,	Cypriot	President	(25.06.2016)	
	
Cyprus	is	a	developed	country	and	an	island	in	the	Eastern	Mediterranean.	The	island	has	been	
divided	between	the	Turkish	Cypriot	state	 in	the	north	and	the	Republic	of	Cyprus,	since	the	
Turkish	occupation	in	1974,	creating	an	ongoing	issue	between	both	nations.	Even	if	the	Republic	
of	Cyprus	has	de	jure	the	sovereignty	over	the	whole	island	through	law,	de	facto	it	is	divided.	
In	2008	Cyprus	established	the	euro	as	their	currency,	but	the	country	is	not	a	member	of	the	
Schengen	Area.	Cyprus’s	main	export	partners	are	Greece,	Ireland	and	the	UK,	while	its	main	
import	partners	are	Greece,	the	UK	and	Italy.	
	
The	 ties	 between	 Cyprus	 and	 the	 UK	 are	 historically	 strong,	 because	 it	 is	 a	member	 of	 the	
Commonwealth.	Additionally,	the	UK	still	has	an	airbase	in	Cyprus	to	keep	an	important	strategic	
position	in	the	eastern	end	of	the	Mediterranean	Sea.	With	Brexit,	the	EU	will	have	a	weakened	
political	position	in	the	world,	but	for	Cyprus	this	was	one	of	the	reasons	to	join	the	EU	in	2004.	
Cyprus	is	now	afraid	to	lose	the	political	advantage	of	the	EU	and	thereby	the	advantage	against	
pressure	 from	 Turkey.43	 Nevertheless,	 the	 government	 of	 Cyprus	 has	 underlined	 its	 full	
commitment	to	the	EU	since	the	vote.	The	UK	is	the	third	biggest	trading	partner	for	Cyprus	and	
any	import	taxes	on	both	sides	will	affect	commerce,	with	Cypriot	agricultural	products	suffering	
most.	There	are	also	a	lot	of	Cypriot	students	who	study	in	the	UK	and	benefit	from	the	low	fees	
for	European	Students,	a	policy	that	could	end	with	the	UK	leaving	the	EU.		
	
Ministries	of	Cyprus:	
Ministry	of	Foreign	Affairs:	
http://www.mfa.gov.cy/mfa/mfa2016.nsf/index_en/index_en?OpenDocument	
Ministry	of	Finance:	http://www.mof.gov.cy/mof/mof.nsf/index_en/index_en?OpenDocument	
Ministry	of	Energy,	Commerce,	Industry	and	Tourism:	
http://www.mcit.gov.cy/mcit/mcit.nsf/dmlindex_en/dmlindex_en	
Ministry	of	Defence:	
http://www.mod.gov.cy/mod/mod.nsf/index_en/index_en?OpenDocument	
Ministry	of	Justice	and	Public	Order:	
http://www.mjpo.gov.cy/mjpo/mjpo.nsf/index_en/index_en?OpenDocument	
Ministry	of	Agriculture,	Rural	Development	and	Environment:	
http://www.moa.gov.cy/moa/agriculture.nsf/index_en/index_en?OpenDocument	

																																																													
43 https://www.euractiv.com/section/uk-europe/news/mep-the-cypriot-economy-will-be-hard-hit-by-a-brexit/  
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Czech	Republic	
	
Population:	10,553,948	
Seats	in	EU	Parliament:	21	
GDP:	US	$	189.982	Billion	
	
	
"The	European	Union	must	change	quickly.	Not	because	Britain	has	left,	but	because	the	
European	project	needs	much	stronger	support	of	its	citizens.	Europe	must	be	more	ready	to	
act,	be	flexible,	less	bureaucratic	and	much	more	sensible	to	the	diversity	that	the	27	Member	
States	represent."	
Bohuslav	Sobotka,	Czech	Prime	Minister	(24.06.2016)	
	
The	Czech	Republic	is	not	only	part	of	the	European	Union,	but	is	also	a	member	of	NATO,	the	
UN,	the	OECD	and	other	important	organisations.	It	is	a	developed	country	and	has	the	lowest	
level	of	unemployment	in	the	whole	of	the	EU.	The	Czech	Republic	uses	the	Euro	and	is	also	part	
of	the	Schengen	Area.	
	
For	the	Czech	Republic,	Brexit	may	mean	negative	consequences	but	also	a	few	opportunities.	
Many	have	predicted	the	UK	itself	will	slip	back	into	economic	recession,	which	will	then	have	
an	impact	for	Europe,	as	less	goods	and	services	are	purchased	from	the	rest	of	the	continent	
by	UK	businesses	and	consumers.	Given	the	high	ratio	of	Czech	exports	being	sold	to	the	UK	(it	
is	 the	 Czech	 Republic’s	 fifth	 largest	 export	 market)	 this	 will	 be	 worrying	 for	 many	 Czech	
businesses.44	The	Czech	Republic	might	also	 lose	some	 	EU	funds	since	the	UK	will	no	 longer	
contribute	to	the	EU’s	budget.	But	there	are	also	chances	for	the	Czech	Republic	as	a	result	of	
Brexit.	The	greater	uncertainty	in	the	UK	property	investment	market,	for	example,	may	draw	
investors	to	other	countries,	such	as	the	Czech	Republic.45	
	
Ministries	of	Czech	Republic:	
Ministry	of	Foreign	Affairs:	http://www.mzv.cz/en	
Ministry	of	Finance:	http://www.mfcr.cz/en/	
Ministry	of	Defence	and	Armed	Forces:	http://www.army.cz/en/	
Ministry	of	Justice:	http://portal.justice.cz/Justice2/MS/ms.aspx?j=33&o=23&k=373&d=17992		
Ministry	of	Labour	and	Social	Affairs:	http://www.mpsv.cz/en/	

																																																													
44https://www.cnb.cz/en/monetary_policy/inflation_reports/2016/2016_III/boxes_and_annexes/zoi_2016_III_box_3.
html  
45 https://www.quora.com/How-will-Brexit-affect-the-Czech-Republic  
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Denmark	
	
Population:	5,707,251	
Seats	in	EU	Parliament:	13	
GDP:	US	$	302.571	Billion	
	
	
	
“The	British	referendum	does	not	change	the	fact	that	Denmark	belongs	in	the	EU.	The	EU	is	
Denmark’s	best	opportunity	to	influence	the	world	that	we	are	a	part	of	for	better	or	worse.	
We	can	do	some	things	better	alone,	but	we	are	stronger	together.	Denmark	and	the	Danish	
economy	are	highly	dependent	on	the	European	community.”	
Lars	Løkke	Rasmussen,	Danish	Prime	Minister	(24.06.2016)	
	
Denmark	 is	a	developed	country	and	member	of	 the	European	Union.	Nevertheless,	 it	never	
took	the	euro	currency.	Denmark	is	a	founding	member	of	NATO,	the	Nordic	Council,	the	OECD,	
OSCE,	and	the	United	Nations;	it	is	also	part	of	the	Schengen	Area.	Danes	enjoy	a	high	standard	
of	 living	 and	 the	 country	 ranks	 highly	 in	 some	 metrics	 of	 national	 performance,	 including	
education,	 health	 care,	 protection	 of	 civil	 liberties,	 democratic	 governance,	 prosperity	 and	
human	development.	The	country	ranks	as	having	the	world's	highest	social	mobility,	a	high	level	
of	income	equality,	the	lowest	perceived	level	of	corruption	in	the	world,	has	one	of	the	world's	
highest	per	capita	incomes,	and	one	of	the	world's	highest	personal	income	tax	rates.	
	
Because	of	the	Brexit	vote,	there	is	strong	uncertainty	spreading	in	Denmark.	This	could	impact	
the	 growth	 of	 the	Danish	 Economy	 negatively.46	 The	 greatest	worry,	 however,	 is	 the	 risk	 of	
administrative	burdens	and	that	Brexit	could	negatively	impact	Danish	exports	to	the	UK	in	the	
long	run.	At	this	point	it	is	difficult	to	say	how	the	vote	will	affect	British	expats	living	in	Denmark.	
At	least	around	8,800	Britons	live	and	work	in	Denmark,	and	it	is	hard	to	say	exactly	how	the	
Brexit	decision	will	affect	the	daily	lives	of	the	expats	living	there,47	especially	since	Theresa	May	
refuses	to	guarantee	the	rights	of	EU	citizens	living	in	Britain.	
	
Ministries	of	Denmark:	
Ministry	of	Foreign	Affairs:	http://um.dk/en	
Ministry	of	Finance:	https://uk.fm.dk/		
Ministry	of	Industry,	Business	and	Financial	Affairs:	http://em.dk/english	
Ministry	of	Defence:	http://www.fmn.dk/Eng/Pages/frontpage.aspx	
Ministry	of	Justice:	http://www.justitsministeriet.dk/		
	

																																																													
46 https://en.kromannreumert.com/News/2016/07/What-does-Brexit-mean-for-Danish-companies  
47 http://cphpost.dk/news/what-brexit-means-for-denmark-and-for-the-expats.html  
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Estonia	
	
Population:	1,317,797	
Seats	in	EU	Parliament:	6	
GDP:	US	$	24.609	Billion	
	
	
"UK	citizens	have	spoken	in	the	referendum.	The	decision	was	a	disappointment	for	me	and	the	
European	Union,	but	of	course	the	remaining	27	Member	States	will	accept	it."		

Toomas	Hendrik	Ilves,	Estonian	President	(25.06.2016)	
	
Estonia	is	a	developed	country	with	an	advanced	high	income	economy,	but	it’s	still	one	of	the	
lowest	among	the	EU.	That	being	said,	it	is	among	the	fastest	growing	in	the	EU.	Since	2007,	it	
has	been	part	of	the	Schengen	Area	and	since	2011	also	part	of	the	Eurozone.	Estonia	will	hold	
the	revolving	Presidency	of	the	Council	of	the	EU	for	the	first	time	in	the	second	half	of	2017.	
Through	the	presidency,	European	politics	can	be	influenced	significantly	and	they	will	be	able	
to	 draw	 attention	 to	 political	 issues	 that	 are	 important	 for	 Estonia.	 Estonia’s	 main	 trading	
partners	for	export	are	Sweden,	Finland	and	Latvia,	while	its	main	import	partners	are	Finland,	
Germany	and	Lithuania.		
	
Brexit	 is	 going	 to	 have	 some	 impact	 on	 Estonia,	 although	 this	will	 not	 be	 very	 large	 on	 the	
economy,48	 as	 trade	with	 the	 UK	 amounts	 to	 only	 around	 3%	 of	 the	 total	 trade	 of	 Estonia.	
Additionally,	 only	 about	 18,000	 Estonians	 have	 lived	 or	 worked	 in	 the	 UK	 during	 the	 past	
decade.49	Rather	Brexit	will	have	more	political	 consequences.	Estonia	will	 lose	a	 likeminded	
partner	in	some	political	areas,	especially	in	security.	Unlike	Britain,	in	Estonia	the	population	
are	strongly	in	favor	of	EU	membership	(78%).50		
	
Ministries	of	Estonia:	
Ministry	of	Foreign	Affairs:	http://www.vm.ee/en	
Ministry	of	Finance:	http://www.fin.ee/?lang=en	
Ministry	of	Defence:	http://www.kaitseministeerium.ee/en	
Ministry	of	Economic	Affairs	and	Communication:	https://www.mkm.ee/en	
Ministry	of	Justice:	http://www.just.ee/en		

	

	
																																																													
48 https://www.bloomberg.com/news/articles/2016-10-10/security-ties-with-post-brexit-britain-are-top-estonian-
priority  
49 http://estonianworld.com/life/map-estonians-england-wales/  
50 https://valitsus.ee/en/news/survey-eu-support-continues-be-strong-among-estonians  
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Finland	
	
Population:	5,488,543	
Seats	in	EU	Parliament:	13	
GDP:	US	$	234.578	Billion	
	
“Britain	is	an	extremely	important	partner	to	both	Finland	and	the	EU.	It	is	important	for	
Finland	that	we	are	able	to	see	the	situation	pragmatically	and	negotiate	objectively,	without	
the	emotional	baggage	behind	both	sides	of	the	argument.”	
Juha	Sipilä,	Prime	Minister	of	Finland	(27.06.2016)	
	
Finland	is	a	top	performer	in	numerous	metrics	of	national	performance	including:	education,	
economic	 competitiveness,	 civil	 liberties,	 quality	 of	 life,	 and	 human	 development.	 In	 2015,	
Finland	was	ranked	first	in	the	World	Human	Capital	and	the	Press	Freedom	Index,	as	the	most	
stable	 country	 in	 the	world	during	2011–2016	 in	 the	Fragile	 States	 Index,	 and	 second	 in	 the	
Global	Gender	Gap	Report.	Finland’s	main	export	partners	are	Germany,	Sweden	and	the	US,	
while	its	main	import	partners	are	Germany,	Sweden	and	Russia.	
	
One	of	the	main	risks	for	Finland	as	a	result	of	Brexit	is	a	potential	economic	fall	into	recession.	
Economic	growth	could	fall	more	than	1%	in	2017,	because	they	have	to	rely	on	exports	and	
investments.51		The	Brexit	vote	also	had	a	significant	impact	on	the	people	of	Finland	and	their	
view	on	the	EU.	After	the	vote	loyalty	towards	the	EU	rose	again	in	Finland.	More	than	65%	of	
the	 Finns	would	 vote	 to	 remain	 in	 the	EU	 if	 there	was	 to	be	a	 referendum	 in	 Finland.52	 The	
relationship	with	the	UK	is	not	only	on	an	economic	basis.	In	areas	like	security,	both	countries	
have	bilateral	agreements.	For	example	in	2016,	they	announced	they	would	strengthen	their	
partnership	with	the	signing	of	a	defence	cooperation	pact.53	
	
Ministries	of	Finland:	
Ministry	of	Foreign	Affairs:	http://formin.finland.fi/public/default.aspx?culture=en-
US&contentlan=2	
Ministry	of	Finance:	http://vm.fi/frontpage	
Ministry	of	Economic	Affairs	and	Employment:	https://tem.fi/en	
Ministry	of	Defence:	http://www.defmin.fi/english	
Ministry	of	Environment:	http://www.ym.fi/en	
Ministry	of	Transport	and	Communication:	https://www.lvm.fi/en/home	
	
	

																																																													
51http://nordic.businessinsider.com/brexit-could-put-denmark-and-finland-in-recession-and-slow-down-nordic-
growth-by-a-whole-percentage-point-2016-6  
52https://www.bloomberg.com/news/articles/2016-06-30/brexit-mess-scares-finns-away-from-eu-referendum-many-
had-sought  
53 http://yle.fi/uutiset/osasto/news/daily_finland_to_sign_defence_cooperation_pact_with_uk/8996698  
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France	
	
Population:	66,991,000	
Seats	in	EU	Parliament:	74	
GPD:	$2.422	Trillion	
	
	
“We	have	to	preserve	the	rest	of	the	European	Union	and	not	convey	the	message	that	you	can	
decide	to	leave	without	any	consequences.”		
Emmanuel	Macron,	French	President	(08.05.2017)	
	
France	is	a	developed	country	and	has,	after	Germany,	the	second	largest	economy	in	the	EU-
28	and	the	world's	sixth-largest.	France	remains	a	strong	power	in	the	world,	being	one	of	the	
five	permanent	members	of	the	United	Nations	Security	Council	with	the	power	of	veto	and	is	
an	official	 nuclear-weapon	 state.	 It's	 a	 founding	 and	 leading	Member	 State	of	 the	 European	
Union	 and	 the	 Eurozone.	 It	 is	 also	 a	member	 of	 the	Group	 of	 7,	 NATO,	OECD,	WTO	 and	 La	
Francophonie.		
	
France	has	historically	been	a	large	producer	of	agricultural	products.	Extensive	tracts	of	fertile	
land,	the	application	of	modern	technology,	and	EU	subsidies	have	combined	to	make	France	
the	 leading	 agricultural	 producer	 and	 exporter	 in	 Europe.	 It	 represents	 20%	 of	 the	 EU's	
agricultural	production	and	is	also	the	world's	third	biggest	exporter	of	agricultural	products.	
		
Brexit	is	going	to	have	a	significant	impact	on	the	French-UK	relationship,	especially	in	the	case	
of	trade.	France	is	the	United	Kingdom's	third-biggest	export	market,	after	the	United	States	and	
Germany.	British	exports	 to	France	 increased	14.3%	 from	£16.542	billion	 in	2010	 to	£18.905	
billion	in	2011.	Over	the	same	period,	French	exports	to	Britain	rose	5.5%.54	France	exports	over	
$41	billion-worth	of	goods	to	the	UK,	much	of	which	will	be	subject	to	higher	level	of	duties	and	
taxes	if	it	is	still	sent	to	the	UK	after	the	Brexit.	55	Research	suggests	that,	it	is	much	more	likely	
that	most	of	 these	exports	will	have	 to	 find	new	market	destinations.56	Not	only	will	 French	
exports	be	under	pressure,	but	imports	from	the	United	Kingdom	to	France	will	also	be	affected.	
Some	of	the	most	common	shipments	from	the	United	Kingdom	to	France	include	aircraft	parts	
and	hard	liquor,	both	of	which	would	probably	become	significantly	more	expensive.	With	costs	
as	 much	 as	 30%	 higher,	 there	 could	 be	 damaging	 consequences	 for	 consumers	 as	 well	 as	
businesses	of	all	sizes.	
	
The	 nations	 have	 a	 close	 relationship	 and	 overcame	 long	 historical	 rivalries.	 In	 2008	 Prime	
Minister	Brown	said	"there	has	never	been	greater	cooperation	between	France	and	Britain	as	
there	 is	 now"57.	 In	 recent	 years	 the	 two	 countries	 have	 experienced	 a	 particularly	 close	

																																																													
54 http://www.france24.com/en/20160628-how-will-brexit-affect-french-industry  
55 http://francobritishchamber.com/how-a-brexit-might-affect-trade-between-the-uk-and-france/  
56 https://www.parcelhero.com/blog/news-updates/revealed-the-true-cost-of-brexit  
57 https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/France%E2%80%93United_Kingdom_relations  
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relationship,	especially	on	defence	and	foreign	policy	issues.	The	two	countries	tend,	however,	
to	disagree	on	a	range	of	other	matters,	most	notably	the	European	Union.58	
	
Earlier	this	month,	Emmanuel	Macron	was	elected	President	of	France.	Macron	is	pro-
european,	and	while	he	wishes	a	fair	deal	for	both	parties	in	Brexit	negotiations	he	does	not	
want	to	see	the	UK	unduly	benefit.59	For	instance	he	has	made	it	clear	that	he	did	not	think	
that	the	UK	should	be	granted	access	to	the	single	market	without	contributing	to	the	EU	
budget.	Overall,	his	stance	will	remain	in	line	with	that	of	his	predecessor,	Francois	Hollande.	
	
Ministries	of	France:	
Ministry	of	Foreign	Affairs	and	International	Development:	http://www.diplomatie.gouv.fr/en	
Ministry	of	Economy	and	Finance:	http://www.economie.gouv.fr/welcome-to-the-french-
ministry-for-the-economy-and-finance	
Ministry	of	Defence:	http://www.defense.gouv.fr/english	
Ministry	of	Justice:	http://www.justice.gouv.fr/multilinguisme-12198/english-12200/justice-in-
france-22126.html	
Ministry	of	Environment,	Energy	and	the	Sea:	http://www.developpement-durable.gouv.fr/	
	
	 	

																																																													
58	http://www.e-ir.info/2017/01/22/uk-france-relations-after-brexit/  
59http://www.express.co.uk/news/world/796459/French-elections-2017-Emmanuel-Macron-what-mean-Brexit-UK-
relations	
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Germany	
	
Population:	82.175.684	
Seats	in	EU	Parliament:	96	
GDP:	US	$3.371	Trillion	
	
	
"we	make	clear	that	access	to	the	Single	Market	can	only	be	possible	on	the	condition	of	
respecting	the	four	basic	freedoms.	Otherwise	one	has	to	talk	about	limits	(of	access)."		

Angela	Merkel,	German	Chancellor	(09.01.2017)	
	
Germany	is	one	of	the	most	important	countries	in	the	European	Union	(EU-28).	Not	only	is	it	
the	 biggest	 net	 contributor	 (providing	 20%	 of	 the	 EU	 budget),	 Germany	 is	 also	 the	 biggest	
economy	 in	Europe	and	has	the	world's	 fourth-largest	economy	by	nominal	GDP.	As	a	global	
leader	in	several	industrial	and	technological	sectors,	it	is	both	the	world's	third-largest	exporter	
and	 importer	 of	 goods.	 Germany	 is	 a	 developed	 country	with	 a	 very	 high	 standard	 of	 living	
sustained	by	a	skilled	and	productive	society.	Germany	was	a	founding	member	of	the	European	
Economic	Community	in	1957.	It	is	part	of	the	Schengen	Area,	and	became	a	co-founder	of	the	
Eurozone	in	1999.	Germany	is	a	member	of	the	United	Nations,	NATO,	the	G8,	the	G20,	WTO	
and	the	OECD.	It	has	played	an	influential	role	in	the	European	Union	since	its	inception	and	has	
maintained	a	strong	alliance	with	France	and	all	neighbouring	countries.	Germany	promotes	the	
creation	of	a	more	unified	European	political,	economic	and	security	system.		
	
For	Germany,	Brexit	could	have	a	massive	impact	on	their	economy.60	Great	Britain	is	the	third	
most	important	trading	market	for	Germany,	with	approximately	89	billion	euros	of	exports.	In	
2015,	the	export	rate	increased	over	12.3	%	but	it	shrunk	to	only	0.5	%	growth	in	the	first	half-
year	of	2016,	because	of	the	possible	outcome	of	a	Brexit	after	the	referendum.	After	the	exit	
of	Great	Britain	from	the	European	Union,	one	possibility	is	that	there	could	potentially	be	new	
tariffs,	a	lot	of	bureaucracy,	and	an	increase	in	the	price	of	German	exports	in	Britain	due	to	the	
likely	collapse	of	the	British	pound.	Nevertheless,	German	companies	are	still	quite	relaxed	and	
barely	believe	in	a	serious	impact	on	the	German	labor	market	as	a	result	of	the	Brexit.61		
	
With	 the	departure	of	Great	Britain,	 some	European	organizations	will	have	 to	be	 relocated,	
such	as	the	European	Banking	Supervisory	Authority.	Frankfurt	could	become	more	important	
as	a	financial	metropolis,	as	it	is	expected	that	many	banks	will	 leave	London	as	well.62	Brexit	
could	force	Germany	and	France	to	take	on	bigger	leadership	roles,	thereby	allowing	the	EU	to	
become	stronger	without	Britain	who	was	“holding	it	back”.		
	

																																																													
60 https://www.ft.com/content/56f0afca-100d-32f1-b816-7b885fec767a  
61 https://www.bloomberg.com/news/articles/2017-01-11/german-companies-take-a-relaxed-view-of-potential-brexit-
impact  
62 http://www.businessinsider.com.au/london-stock-exchange-deutsche-boerse-brexit-city-of-london-passporting-
2017-1?r=UK&IR=T  
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German	Ministries:	
Federal	Foreign	Office:	http://www.auswaertiges-amt.de/EN/Startseite_node.html	 	
Federal	Ministry	of	Economic	Affairs:	
http://www.bmwi.de/Navigation/EN/Home/home.html;jsessionid=9F40CE309D3EB1E9DF814
4F5485BF5CF	 	 	
Federal	Ministry	of	Economic	Cooperation	and	Development:	
http://www.bmz.de/en/index.html	
Federal	Ministry	of	Finance:	
http://www.bundesfinanzministerium.de/Web/EN/Home/home.html;jsessionid=05AD4C2EEF
95EE3C6A5F1DDE6A2A93CE	
Federal	Ministry	of	the	Interior:	http://www.bmi.bund.de/EN/Home/home_node.html		
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Greece	
	
Population:	10,955,000	
Seats	in	EU	Parliament:	21	
GDP:	US	$	204.941	Billion	
	
“We	need	a	new	vision	for	a	better	Europe,	where	politics	will	take	precedence	over	the	
economy	and	the	technocrats”		

Alexis	Tsipras,	Greek	Prime	Minister	(24.06.2016)	
	
Greece	is	a	developed	country	which	joined	the	EU	in	1981.	Greece	is	also	part	of	the	Eurozone,	
is	 a	 founding	member	of	 the	UN	and	 is	 part	 of	NATO,	 the	OECD	and	WTO.	Greece's	 unique	
cultural	 heritage,	 large	 tourism	 industry,	 prominent	 shipping	 industry	 classify	 it	 as	 a	middle	
power.	Itis	also	a	country	with	significant	geostrategic	importance,	because	it	has	borders	with	
non-EU	members	such	as	Turkey.	Greece	 is	part	of	the	Schengen	Area.	Greece’s	main	export	
partners	are	Italy,	Germany	and	Turkey,	while	its	main	import	partners	are	Germany,	Italy	and	
Russia.	
	
As	one	of	the	economically	weakest	members	of	the	EU,	currently	relying	on	EU	bailouts	for	its	
failed	economy,	Brexit	could	have	a	massive	impact	on	Greece.63	It’s	clear	that	for	Greece,	any	
deterioration	in	exports	to	the	UK	or	the	number	of	visitors	coming	over	would	be	a	substantial	
blow	 to	 its	 fragile	 economy.	 Countries	 which	 are	 net	 recipients	 of	 funds	 through	 the	 EU’s	
cohesion	policies,	such	as	Greece,	would	see	a	decrease	in	the	money	that	is	available	if	the	UK	
leaves,	as	it	is	a	net	contributor	to	the	EU	budget,	even	after	its	rebate.	Britain’s	exit	will	cause	
a	 10	 percent	 reduction	 in	 funds	 available	 for	 EU	 payments.64	Brexit	 could	 also	 trigger	 other	
countries	like	Greece	to	think	about	leaving	the	EU	as	well.	In	the	case	of	Greece	this	idea	was	
born	even	before	Cameron	announced	the	referendum	in	the	UK,	due	to	the	fact	that	Greece	
has	been	in	an	ongoing	crisis	since	the	global	financial	and	economic	crash.			
	
Ministries	of	Greece:	
Ministry	of	Foreign	Affairs:	http://www.mfa.gr/en/	
Ministry	of	Finance:	http://www.minfin.gr/?q=en	
Ministry	of	National	Defence:	http://www.mod.mil.gr/mod/en/	
Ministry	of	Justice,	Transparency	and	Human	Rights:	
http://www.ministryofjustice.gr/site/en/Leadership/Greetings.aspx	
Ministry	of	Environment	and	Energy:	www.ypeka.gr/Default.aspx?tabid=37&locale=en-US		
	 	

																																																													
63 http://www.ekathimerini.com/209770/article/ekathimerini/business/greece-has-plenty-to-fear-from-brexit  
64 http://www.huffingtonpost.com/entry/brexit-greece-economy-experts_us_577156d1e4b0f168323a4349  
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Hungary	
Population:	9,830,485	
Seats	in	EU	Parliament:	21	
GDP:	US	$	132.683	Billion	
	
	
	
“Hungary	definitely	would	not	like	to	see	any	revenge	on	the	British.	We	are	a	democratic	
country	and	we	accept	that	democratically	another	country’s	population	decided	to	leave.	The	
question	is	not	whether	we	are	happy	with	that	or	not,	rather	how	the	two	countries	could	
learn	to	live	together	for	the	next	1000	years."	

Viktor	Orban,	Hungarian	Prime	Minister	(21.10.2016)	
	
Hungary	is	a	country	with	a	rich	cultural	history	and	has	contributed	significantly	to	arts,	music,	
literature,	sports	and	science	and	technology.	 It	 is	part	of	the	European	Union,	the	Schengen	
Area	and	has	also	implemented	the	single	currency.	Hungary	is	also	member	of	NATO,	the	UN,	
OECD	and	the	WTO.	At	the	moment,	right-wing	populism	is	on	the	rise	in	Hungary.		President	
Orban	has	adopted	a	series	of	laws	in	the	past	few	years	which	have	been	criticised	as	“a	threat	
to	the	right	to	freedom	of	expression”	by	Amnesty	International.65	Hungary’s	response	to	the	
migrant	crisis	was	highly	criticized	by	the	other	Member	States	of	the	EU.	
	
The	Hungarian	 economy	 is	 fairly	 open	 and	 relies	 strongly	 on	 International	 Trade.	 79%	of	 all	
Hungarian	exports	are	destined	for	the	EU.	As	of	2015,	the	key	trading	partners	of	Hungary	were:	
Germany,	Austria,	Romania,	Slovakia,	France,	 Italy,	Poland	and	Czech	Republic.	As	the	United	
Kingdom	is	not	one	of	the	biggest	trading	partners	of	Hungary,	the	possible	impact	of	Brexit	is	
indirectly	 through	 its	 other	 major	 trading	 partners	 such	 as	 France	 and	 Germany.66	 A	 direct	
consequence	for	Hungary	will	be	a	shrinking	EU	budget,	since	the	United	Kingdom	is	one	of	the	
largest	net	contributors	and	Hungary	is	one	of	the	main	beneficiaries.	It	is	not	realistic	that	the	
remaining	net	contributors	 increase	 their	 share,	 so	many	grants	and	other	 funding	will	most	
likely	be	cut.67	
	
Ministries	of	Hungary:	
Ministry	of	Foreign	Affairs	and	Trade:	http://www.kormany.hu/en/ministry-of-foreign-affairs-
and-trade	
Ministry	for	National	Economy:	http://www.kormany.hu/en/ministry-for-national-economy	
Ministry	of	Defence:	http://www.kormany.hu/en/ministry-of-defence	
Ministry	of	Justice:	http://www.kormany.hu/en/ministry-of-justice		

																																																													
65 https://www.theguardian.com/commentisfree/2016/oct/13/hungary-future-europe-far-right-viktor-orban  
66 http://bbj.hu/economy/official-brexit-to-have-minimal-impact-on-hungarian-economy-_118376  
67 http://www.budapost.eu/2016/07/brexits-impact-on-hungary/  
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Ireland	
	
Population:	4,757,976	
Seats	in	EU	Parliament:	11	
GDP:	US	$	308	Billion	
	
“Today's	encouraging	data	is	mirrored	in	strong	employment	growth	as	well	as	tax	receipts.	
They	show	the	immediate	impact	from	Brexit	has	been	more	benign	than	initially	anticipated.	
However,	we	cannot	be	complacent.”	

Michael	Noonan,	Irish	Finance	Minister	(09.12.2016)	
	
Ireland	is	a	member	of	the	European	Union	and	is	a	founding	member	of	the	Council	of	Europe	
and	the	OECD.	The	Irish	government	has	followed	a	policy	of	military	neutrality	through	non-
alignment	and	the	country	is	consequently	not	a	member	of	NATO.	Ireland	is	also	not	part	of	the	
Schengen	Area,	but	did	established	the	euro	as	its	currency	in	1999.	Ireland,	like	Great	Britain,	
has	had	an	uneasy	relationship	with	the	EU.	In	2001	the	signing	of	the	Treaty	of	Nice	was	rejected	
by	the	Irish	people	in	a	referendum.	Consequently,	the	Treaty	could	not	come	into	force	until	
2003,	after	a	second	referendum.	Ireland’s	main	export	trading	partners	are	the	US,	the	UK	and	
Belgium,	while	its	main	import	partners	are	the	UK,	the	US	and	France.	
	
Ireland	is	potentially	the	country	that	will	be	the	most	impacted	by	Britain’s	decision	to	leave	
the	EU.	No	other	Member	State	has	a	physical	border	with	 the	UK.	The	 trade	between	both	
countries	has	a	combined	value	of	around	€34	billion.	On	a	weekly	basis	goods	and	services	cross	
the	border,	or	make	 the	short	 trip	across	 the	 Irish	Sea.	With	about	40	per	cent	of	 Irish	 food	
exports	going	to	the	UK,	agriculture	is	the	area	most	exposed	to	Brexit	and	possible	tariffs.	This	
is	 why	 Ireland	would	 like	 to	 keep	 the	 trade	 relationship	with	 the	 UK	 as	 open	 as	 possible.68	
Therefore,	 the	 impact	 on	 Ireland,	 given	 the	 close	 economic	 ties	 and	 the	 geography,	 will	 be	
significant.	Additionally,	 Ireland	 is	 losing	an	ally	 in	 the	European	Union	on	topics	such	as	 the	
harmonisation	of	tax	laws.	After	Brexit,	more	people	are	in	favour	of	a	reunification	of	the	both	
Irish	countries.	In	Northern	Ireland,	the	majority	of	the	people	voted	for	remaining	in	the	EU.			
	
Ministries	of	Ireland:	
Ministry	of	Foreign	Affairs	and	Trade:	https://www.dfa.ie/	
Ministry	of	Defence:	http://www.defence.ie/website.nsf/home+page?openform	
Ministry	of	Finance:	http://www.finance.gov.ie/	
Ministry	of	Justice:	http://www.justice.ie/	
Ministry	of	Housing,	Planning,	Community	and	Local	Government:	http://www.housing.gov.ie/	
	

	

																																																													
68 http://www.mazars.ie/Home/News/Latest-News/Brexit-The-implications/Brexit-potential-impact-for-Ireland  
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Italy	
Population:	60,674,003	
Seats	in	EU	Parliament:	73	
GDP:	US	$	1.852	Trillion	
	
	
“The	people	of	the	UK	decided	the	way	for	the	future,	now	the	situation	is	that	we	can	-	and	we	
have	to	-	build	the	best	alliance	between	the	UK	and	the	EU	for	the	future	because	we	will	be	
the	best	friends	for	the	next	years.	And	at	the	same	time,	I	think	this	decision	could	push	
European	leaders	to	invest	in	a	new	way	for	Europe."	
Matteo	Renzi,	Italian	Prime	Minister	(29.09.2016)	
	
Italy	plays	an	important	role	in	regional	and	global	economic,	military,	cultural	and	diplomatic	
affairs,	and	it	is	a	middle	power.	It	has	a	very	high	level	of	human	development	and	is	ranked	
sixth	in	the	world	for	life	expectancy.	Italy	is	a	founding	and	leading	member	of	the	European	
Union	 and	 is	 a	member	of	 numerous	 international	 institutions,	 including	 the	UN,	NATO,	 the	
OECD,	the	WTO,	the	G7/G8,	G20	and	many	more.	At	the	moment,	 Italians	hold	several	high-
ranking	positions	in	the	EU:	among	others,	the	Vice	President	of	the	European	Commission	and	
High	Representative	of	the	Union	for	Foreign	Affairs	and	Security	Policy	Frederica	Mohgerini,69	
and	Antonio	Tajani,70	the	President	of	the	European	Parliament.	The	country	has	the	third	largest	
economy	in	the	Eurozone	and	the	eighth	largest	in	the	world.	Italy	is	well	known	for	its	creative	
and	innovative	businesses,	a	large	and	competitive	agricultural	sector	(Italy	is	the	world's	largest	
wine	producer),	and	for	its	influential	and	high-quality	automobile,	machinery,	food,	design	and	
fashion	industry.	Its	largest	EU	trade	partners	are	Germany	(12.9%),	France	(11.4%),	and	Spain	
(7.4%).		
	
A	large	North–South	divide	is	a	major	factor	of	socio-economic	weakness.	The	gap	can	be	seen	
in	 the	huge	difference	 in	 statistical	 income	between	 the	northern	and	 southern	 regions	 and	
municipalities.	The	richest	region,	Lombardy,	earns	127%	of	the	national	GDP	per	capita,	while	
the	poorest,	Calabria,	earns	only	61%.	The	unemployment	rate	(11.9%)	stands	slightly	above	the	
Eurozone	average.	However,	the	average	figure	is	7.9%	in	the	North	and	20.2%	in	the	South.	
	
Following	 the	 result	of	 the	 referendum,	many	 Italians	 felt	 insecure.	Several	 Italian	politicians	
believe	that	Brexit	is	the	first	step	towards	a	disintegration	of	the	EU71.	Like	other	EU	Member	
States,	Italy	has	faced	an	upswing	in	right-wing	political	parties.	The	Brexit	vote	could	encourage	
them	to	pursue	a	similar	avenue	if	it	is	shown	to	have	a	positive	outcome	for	Britain.		
	
Another	reason	why	Italians	feel	uncertain	is	because	the	high	unemployment	rate	resulted	in	
around	half	a	million	young	Italians	moving	to	Great	Britain	to	find	new	jobs,	and	now	they	might	

																																																													
69 http://ec.europa.eu/commission/2014-2019/mogherini_en  
70 http://www.europarl.europa.eu/news/en/news-room/20170113IPR58026/antonio-tajani-elected-new-president-of-
the-european-parliament  
71 http://ukandeu.ac.uk/a-brexit-would-create-a-dangerous-political-precedent-for-italy/  
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be	forced	to	return	to	Italy.	72	
	
Ministries	of	Italy:	
Ministry	of	Economy	and	Finance:	http://www.mef.gov.it/english-corner/index.html	
Ministry	of	Defence:	http://www.difesa.it/EN/Pagine/Home.aspx	
Ministry	of	economic	Development:	http://www.sviluppoeconomico.gov.it/index.php/en/	
Ministry	of	Justice:	https://www.giustizia.it/giustizia/it/homepage.page;jsessionid=Pe-
554D5e3bIMQT+hxB2sArI	
Ministry	of	Infrastructure	and	Transport:	http://www.mit.gov.it/en	
	
	 	

																																																													
72 http://www.thelocal.it/20160624/where-does-the-britains-exit-from-the-eu-leaves-italy  
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Latvia	
	
Population:	1,957,200	
Seats	in	EU	Parliament:	8	
GDP:	US	$	28	Billion	
	
“To	be	pragmatic,	especially	now,	when	so	many	loud	statements	are	being	made	from	all	
sides	is	something	I	would	advocate	for.	We	are	not	the	country	in	the	EU	that	thinks	that	we	
need	to	see	Britain	punished	for	voting	to	leave.”		

Edgars	Rinkevics,	Latvian	Foreign	Minister	(23.09.2016)	
	
Latvia	is	a	democratic	and	developed	country	and	member	of	the	European	Union,	NATO,	the	
Council	of	Europe	and	the	United	Nations.	Since	2007	it	has	been	part	of	the	Schengen	Area	and	
established	the	euro	as	its	currency	in	2014.	Since	the	early	years	of	the	21st	century	Latvia	had	
the	highest	growth	rate	in	GDP	per	capita	in	the	EU,	but	as	a	result	of	the	global	economic	crisis,	
the	Latvian	economy	fell	18%	in	the	first	three	months	of	2009,	the	biggest	fall	in	the	European	
Union.73	However,	since	2012	the	annual	growth	rate	has	been	continuously	rising.	Latvia’s	main	
export	partners	are	Lithuania,	Russia	and	Estonia,	while	its	main	import	partners	are	Lithuania,	
Germany	and	Poland.	
	
Brexit	could	have	a	direct	effect	on	the	growth	of	Latvia.	The	UK	ranks	eighth	among	Latvia's	key	
foreign	trade	partners	and	also	is	the	eighth	largest	foreign	investor	with	€334	million	invested	
in	Latvia.74A	large	number	of	young	Latvians	have	moved	to	the	UK	to	study	or	find	a	job.	This	
could	now	be	more	difficult.	This	may	be	positive	however,	because	they	might	remain	in	Latvia,	
which	is	suffering	from	a	decreasing	population	and	a	birth	rate	crisis.75		
	
Another	negative	effect	could	be	the	reduction	of	the	EU	budget,	because	the	UK	is	one	of	the	
main	net	contributors.	The	money	sent	to	Latvia	from	the	EU	could	be	reduced	because	of	Brexit.	
Moreover,	it	is	possible	that	the	remaining	EU	Member	States	will	now	have	to	pay	more	into	
the	EU	budget.	Both	of	these	possibilities	would	have	a	direct	effect	on	the	Latvian	budget.	76	
	
Ministries	of	Latvia:	
Ministry	of	Finance:	http://www.fm.gov.lv/en/	
Ministry	of	Foreign	Affairs:	http://www.mfa.gov.lv/en/	
Ministry	of	Economics:	https://www.em.gov.lv/en/	
Ministry	of	Defence:	http://www.mod.gov.lv/en.aspx	
Ministry	 of	 Environmental	 Protection	 and	 regional	 development:	
http://www.varam.gov.lv/eng/	

																																																													
73 http://www.latvia.eu/economy/economic-history  
74 http://www.globaltimes.cn/content/990950.shtml  
75 http://www.telegraph.co.uk/news/2016/04/29/latvia-fights-against-the-great-eu-exodus/  
76 http://www.lsm.lv/en/article/economics/economy/latvia-weighs-up-brexit-knock-on-effect.a211742/  
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Lithuania	
	
Population:	2,849,317	
Seats	in	EU	Parliament:	11	
GDP:	US	$	43	Billion	
	
"We	have	no	other	choice	but	to	search	for	solutions."	

Dalia	Grybauskaite,	Lithuanian	President	(25.06.2016)	
	
Lithuania	 is	 a	member	 of	 the	 European	 Union,	 the	 Council	 of	 Europe,	 a	 full	member	 of	 the	
Eurozone,	Schengen	Area	and	NATO.	Furthermore,	 the	country	 is	part	of	 the	WTO	and	seeks	
membership	 in	 the	 OECD.	 Lithuania	 has	 been	 among	 the	 fastest	 growing	 economies	 in	 the	
European	Union.	Lithuania’s	main	export	partners	are	Russia,	Latvia	and	Poland	while	its	main	
import	partners	are	Russia,	Germany	and	Poland.	The	largest	sector	in	Lithuania	is	wholesale	and	
retail	trade	followed	by	the	food	and	accommodation	service	sector.		
	
Lithuania	will	not	feel	many	negative	effects	in	the	short-	to	mid-term	due	to	Brexit.77	Lithuania	
will	be	most	affected	due	to	the	high	number	of	Lithuanian	emigrants	living	in	the	UK.	According	
to	calculations	approximately	200	000	Lithuanians	live	in	the	UK,	and	among	these	people	there	
is	great	uncertainty.		Lithuanian	students	who	study	in	the	UK	and	benefit	from	the	lower	fees	
for	European	Students	will	also	be	affected	by	Brexit.	Their	 future	 is	uncertain	and	they	have	
expressed	 concerns	 about	 their	 ability	 to	 find	work	 and	 access	 affordable	 education	 if	 their	
current	EU	privileges	are	revoked	in	Great	Britain.		
	
Ministries	of	Lithuania:	
Ministry	of	Foreign	Affairs:	https://www.urm.lt/default/en/		
Ministry	of	National	Defence:	https://kam.lt/en/title.html		
Ministry	of	Finance:	https://finmin.lrv.lt/en/	
Ministry	of	Economy:	https://ukmin.lrv.lt/en/	
Ministry	of	Justice:	http://en.tm.lt/	
	
	

	

	

	

	

	

																																																													
77 https://www.quora.com/How-will-Brexit-affect-Lithuania-How-does-Lithuania-feel-about-Brexit-and-what-are-its-
plans-to-react-to-Brexit  
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Luxembourg	
	
Population:	576,249	
Seats	in	EU	Parliament:	6	
GDP:	US	$	60.176	Billion	
	
“We	are	not	going	to	make	a	status	of	‘a	little	bit	member’	or	‘not	completely’,	‘pending	
divorced’	or	‘nearly	divorced.	Either	you’re	a	member	or	you’re	not	a	member	of	the	European	
Union.	There	is	no	in-between	status,	there	is	no	hybrid	status	between	the	two.”	

Xavier	Bettel,	Prime	Minister	of	Luxembourg	(29.11.2016)	
	
Luxembourg	is	a	founding	member	of	the	European	Union,	OECD,	United	Nations,	NATO,	and	
Benelux,	 reflecting	 its	 political	 consensus	 in	 favour	 of	 economic,	 political,	 and	 military	
integration.	 Luxembourg	 has	 long	 been	 a	 prominent	 supporter	 of	 European	 political	 and	
economic	 integration.	Luxembourg	 is	 the	site	of	 the	European	Court	of	 Justice,	 the	European	
Court	of	Auditors,	the	Statistical	Office	of	the	European	Communities	("Eurostat")	and	other	vital	
EU	 organs.	 The	 Secretariat	 of	 the	 European	 Parliament	 is	 located	 in	 Luxembourg,	 but	 the	
Parliament	usually	meets	in	Brussels	and	sometimes	in	Strasbourg.	In	2011,	according	to	the	IMF,	
Luxembourg	was	the	second	richest	country	in	the	world,	with	a	per	capita	GDP	on	a	purchasing-
power	parity	(PPP)	basis	of	$80,119.	Luxembourg	has	especially	close	trade	and	financial	ties	to	
Belgium	and	the	Netherlands,	and	as	a	member	of	the	EU	it	enjoys	the	advantages	of	the	open	
European	Market.	
	
The	UK	 is	 the	 second	 largest	 EU	 partner	 of	 Luxembourg	 for	 exports	 of	 services	 and	 first	 for	
imports	of	 services,	 the	 largest	 EU	 investor	 in	 Luxembourg	as	well	 as	 the	 top	destination	 for	
investment	flows.	In	addition,	the	UK	accounts	for	16.4%	of	all	net	assets	under	management	in	
Luxembourg	 and	 is	 sixth	 in	 terms	of	 bank	 representation.	 The	 interplay	 between	Britain	 and	
Luxembourg	is	striking,	especially	in	the	financial	industry,	which	means	Luxembourg	will	want	
to	 maintain	 close	 economic	 and	 financial	 links	 with	 the	 UK.78	 Brexit	 has	 spread	 uncertainty	
among	not	only	the	citizens	of	Luxembourg	but	also	to	the	more	than	2000	British	citizens	who	
live	in	Luxembourg.	79	
	

Ministries	of	Luxemburg:	
Ministry	of	Foreign	Affairs	and	European	Affairs:	http://www.gouvernement.lu/maee	
Ministry	of	Finance:	http://www.mf.public.lu/	
Ministry	of	Development	and	Infrastructure:	http://www.developpement-durable-
infrastructures.public.lu/fr/index.php	
Ministry	of	Economy	and	Foreign	Trade:	http://www.gouvernement.lu/3313559/minist-
economie	
Ministry	of	Social	Security:	http://www.mss.public.lu/	
																																																													
78 http://www.chronicle.lu/categoriesluxembourgeconomic/item/17395-brexit-luxembourg-would-be-2nd-most-
affected-eu-state-behind-ireland-if-britain-leaves-eu  
79 https://www.theguardian.com/commentisfree/2016/jun/03/luxembourg-britain-brexit-referendum-eu  
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Malta	
	
Population:	445,426	
Seats	in	EU	Parliament:	6	
GDP:	US	$	10.463	Billion	
	
	
“Yesterday’s	statement	by	my	colleague	and	friend,	Prime	Minister	Theresa	May	helps	clarify	
the	priorities	of	the	British	government	during	the	impending	negotiations.	That	May	said	the	
UK	would	not	aim	to	stay	in	the	EU's	Single	Market,	respects	our	position	that	our	four	
freedoms	are	a	package.	"	

Joseph	Muscat,	Prime	Minister	of	Malta	(18.01.2017)	
	
Malta	is	the	smallest	member	of	the	European	Union.	The	population	of	Malta	accounts	for	only	
0.1%	of	the	entire	population	of	the	EU.	Nevertheless,	Malta	is	an	important	member	of	the	EU	
for	geopolitical	reasons,	because	of	the	business	interests	of	Europe	in	the	North	African	states80	
and	as	a	naval	base.	Malta	has	a	 long	history	of	being	occupied	by	other	states	 including	the	
French	(1798-1800)	and	the	British	(1800-1964).	Malta	is	part	of	the	Schengen	Area	and	also	part	
of	 the	Monetary	Union.	Malta	currently	holds	 the	Presidency	of	 the	Council	of	 the	European	
Union	for	the	first	time	and	with	the	presidency	of	the	Council,	European	policy	can	be	influenced	
significantly.	 Malta	 is	 strongly	 dependent	 on	 trade	 with	 other	 countries	 because	 they	 only	
produce	20%	of	their	own	food.	The	largest	trading	partners	of	Malta	for	imports	are	Italy,	the	
Netherlands	and	the	UK.	For	exports,	it	is	Germany,	France	and	Hong	Kong.		
	
Because	of	Brexit,	Malta	is	going	to	lose	a	strong	ally	in	political	discussions	in	Brussels.	Malta	
will	 no	 longer	 be	 able	 to	 rely	 on	 Britain’s	 support	 on	 issues	 such	 as	 taxation,	 social	 security	
changes	and	working	time	restrictions,	thus	weakening	the	voice	of	Malta	in	these	areas.	In	the	
area	of	economy,	Brexit	could	hit	Maltese	exports.	The	traditional	export	sectors	are	agriculture	
and	fishing.	But	also,	tourism	is	growing	annually.	If	the	British	economy	goes	through	a	recession	
or	slow-down,	it	would	push	down	UK	consumption	of	Maltese	goods	and	services.81		
	
Ministries	of	Malta:	
Ministry	of	Foreign	Affairs:	http://foreignaffairs.gov.mt/en/Pages/Home.aspx	
Ministry	of	Finance:	http://mfin.gov.mt/en/Pages/default.aspx		
Ministry	of	Economy,	Investment	and	Small	Business:	
https://economy.gov.mt/en/Pages/Home.aspx	
Ministry	of	Home	Affairs:	http://homeaffairs.gov.mt/en/Pages/Home.aspx	
	

																																																													
80 http://www.timesofmalta.com/articles/view/20150313/opinion/Geopolitical-role-to-play.559666  
81 http://www.timesofmalta.com/articles/view/20160626/local/brexit-how-malta-may-be-hit.616729  
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Netherlands	
	
Population:	17,000,059	
Seats	in	EU	Parliament:	26	
GDP:	US	$	762.521	Billion	
	
“We	[the	EU]	are	not	enemies	of	the	United	Kingdom,	we	want	good	relations	with	the	United	
Kingdom.	At	the	same	time	we	should	negotiate	well.	The	whole	process	should	not	take	too	
long.	It’s	important	there’s	a	clarification	as	soon	as	possible	about	the	relationships	between	
the	United	Kingdom	and	Europe.”	

Bert	Koenders,	Minister	of	Foreign	Affairs	of	the	Netherlands	(03.10.2016)	
	
The	Netherlands	is	a	founding	member	of	the	EU,	Eurozone,	NATO,	OECD	and	WTO,	and	a	part	
of	the	trilateral	Benelux	Union.	The	country	is	host	to	five	international	courts:	the	Permanent	
Court	of	Arbitration,	the	International	Court	of	Justice,	the	International	Criminal	Tribunal	for	the	
Former	Yugoslavia,	the	International	Criminal	Court	and	the	Special	Tribunal	for	Lebanon.	The	
Netherlands	has	a	developed	economy	and	has	played	a	key	role	in	the	European	economy	for	
many	centuries.	The	Dutch	geographical	location	gives	it	prime	access	to	markets	in	the	UK	and	
Germany.	The	Netherlands	continues	to	be	one	of	the	leading	European	nations	for	attracting	
foreign	direct	investment	and	is	one	of	the	five	largest	investors	in	the	United	Kingdom.		
	
There	are	many	possible	outcomes	because	of	Brexit	for	the	Netherlands.82	Not	only	will	Brexit	
affect	the	Dutch	economy,	it	has	also	encouraged	Eurosceptic	parties	to	propose	a	referendum	
for	the	Netherlands	themselves.83	On	the	other	hand,	there	are	also	chances	for	the	Netherlands.	
For	example,	Amsterdam	was	placed	ahead	of	Dublin,	Frankfurt	and	Paris	by	the	New	York	Times	
as	most	likely	to	succeed	London	as	global	financial	capital,	after	Britain	exits	the	EU.84	
	
Ministries	of	the	Netherlands:	
Ministry	of	Foreign	Affairs:	https://www.government.nl/ministries/ministry-of-foreign-affairs	
Ministry	of	Economic	Affairs:	https://www.government.nl/ministries/ministry-of-economic-
affairs	
Ministry	of	Finance:	https://www.government.nl/ministries/ministry-of-finance	
Ministry	of	Defence:	https://www.defensie.nl/english	
Ministry	of	Security	and	Justice:	https://www.government.nl/ministries/ministry-of-security-
and-justice	

																																																													
82 http://www.voanews.com/a/netherlands-reaction-to-brexit/3391742.html  
83 http://www.bbc.com/news/world-europe-36722915  
84 http://www.bbc.com/news/uk-politics-eu-referendum-36549603  
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Poland	
	
Population:	38,454,576	
Seats	in	EU	Parliament:	51	
GDP:	US	$	508.857	Billion	
	
	
	
"This	is	bad	news	for	Europe,	for	Poland.	This	is	a	great	dilemma	for	the	eurocrats,	we	all	want	
to	keep	the	EU,	the	question	is	in	what	shape."	

Witold	Waszczykowsk,	Foreign	Minister	of	Poland	(25.06.2016)	
	
Poland	 is	 the	eighth	 largest	economy	of	 the	European	Union	and	among	 the	 fastest	 growing	
European	economies.	 In	recent	years,	Poland	has	extended	 its	responsibilities	and	position	 in	
European	 and	 international	 affairs,	 supporting	 and	 establishing	 friendly	 relations	 with	 other	
European	nations	and	a	large	number	of	developing	countries.	Besides	the	EU,	Poland	is	also	part	
of	the	NATO,	UN,	OECD	and	other	important	organisations.		
	
Brexit	 could	 have	 a	 strong	 impact	 on	 the	 relationship	 between	 Poland	 and	 the	UK,	 not	 only	
economically,	but	also	politically.85	Poles	make	up	the	second-largest	overseas-born	community	
in	 the	UK,	 after	 residents	 born	 in	 India,	 and	 the	 Polish	 language	 is	 the	 second	most	 spoken	
language	in	England	and	the	third	most	spoken	language	in	the	UK	after	English	and	Welsh.86	An	
extremely	large	number	of	Poles	live	and	work	in	the	UK.	Possible	disadvantages	from	Brexit	for	
Poland	 include:	a	decrease	 in	work	permits,	higher	fees	for	Polish	students,	the	end	of	cheap	
flights	 between	 the	 UK	 and	 Poland	 and	 more	 expensive	 Scotch	 whisky.87	 Poland	 is	 losing	 a	
powerful	 ally	 in	 the	 EU,	 one	 with	 a	 similar	 outlook	 towards	 the	 Single	Market	 and	 towards	
retaining	sanctions	against	Russia.	
	
Ministries	of	Poland:	
Ministry	of	National	Defence:	http://en.mon.gov.pl/	
Ministry	of	Foreign	Affairs:	http://www.msz.gov.pl/en/ministry_of_foreign_affairs	
Ministry	of	Development:	https://www.mr.gov.pl/en/	
Ministry	of	Justice:	https://ms.gov.pl/en/about-the-ministry-of-justice/	
Ministry	of	Finance:	http://www.mf.gov.pl/en/news	

	

																																																													
85 http://www.bbc.com/news/world-europe-36620886  
86 http://www.financialobserver.eu/poland/how-brexit-might-impact-poles-and-the-polish-economy/  
87 https://www.theguardian.com/world/2016/jul/22/polish-uk-brexit-dont-think-many-will-stay-poland-immigration  
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Portugal	
	
Population:	10,341,330	
Seats	in	EU	Parliament:	21	
GDP:	US	$	204.186	Billion	
	
	
“The	British	people	decided	that	the	United	Kingdom	should	no	longer	continue	be	part	of	the	
European	Union,	which	can	only	bring	us	sadness.	We	should	respect	with	serenity	the	decision	
of	the	majority	of	the	British	people	in	the	certainty	that	the	European	project	remains	valid	in	
the	defence	of	the	values	that	have,	already	for	many	centuries,	shaped	our	common	identity.”	

Marcelo	Rebelo	de	Sousa,	Portuguese	President	(30.06.2016)	
	
Portugal	 is	 a	 developed	 country	 with	 a	 high-income,	 advanced	 economy	 and	 a	 high	 living	
standard.	 It	 is	 a	 founding	 member	 of	 NATO	 and	 it	 is	 also	 a	 member	 of	 numerous	 other	
international	organizations,	 including	 the	United	Nations,	 the	European	Union,	 the	Eurozone,	
and	OECD.	Portugal	is	a	significant	European	minerals	producer	and	is	ranked	among	Europe's	
leading	copper	producers.	Travel	and	tourism	continue	to	be	extremely	important	for	Portugal.	
Portugal	is	among	the	20	most	visited	countries	in	the	world,	receiving	an	average	of	13	million	
foreign	tourists	each	year.	
	
The	UK	is	one	of	the	major	export	destinations	for	Portugal,	with	almost	€3	billion	worth	of	goods	
travelling	 to	 the	 United	 Kingdom	 every	 year.	 There	 are	 only	 a	 few	 countries	 that	 do	 more	
business	with	Portugal,	and	accordingly	the	impact	of	Brexit	on	this	market	could	be	huge.	By	
leaving	the	EU,	the	cost	of	goods	imported	to	the	UK	from	Portugal	could	change	by	up	to	30%.	
That	price	change	will	 come	 from	different	 factors,	 such	as,	 raised	shipping	costs,	duties	and	
taxes	 and	 handling	 costs.	 This	 price	 change	would	make	 Portuguese	 goods	 less	 attractive	 to	
British	consumers	and	reduce	Portuguese	manufacturers’	abilities	to	compete	on	price	in	the	UK	
market.88	Some	of	the	main	exports	of	Portugal	include	wine	and	port,	both	of	which	will	likely	
continue	to	be	sent	to	the	UK.	However,	research	suggests	that	alcohol	will	be	subject	to	higher	
duties	 and	 taxes	 than	 other	 commodities,	 which	 will	 further	 raise	 the	 costs	 for	 Portuguese	
businesses	hoping	to	sell	in	the	UK.89	
	
Ministries	of	Portugal:	
Ministry	of	Foreign	Affairs:	http://idi.mne.pt/pt/	
Ministry	of	Finance:	http://www.portaldasfinancas.gov.pt/at/html/index.html	
Government	of	Portugal:	http://www.portugal.gov.pt/pt.aspx	 	

																																																													
88 http://www.bpcc.pt/spotlight-arch/256-spotlight-117.html  
89 http://www.theportugalnews.com/news/reaction-in-portugal-over-brexit/38700  
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Romania	
	
Population:	19,511,000	
Seats	in	EU	Parliament:	32	
GDP:	US	$	186.514	Billion	
	
“Now	is	the	time	for	us	to	make	up	for	the	lost	time,	to	draw	up	a	new	country	project,	which	
we	will	do	together.	I	will	assure	Romanians	that	the	so-called	Brexit	crisis	has	import	
opportunities	for	Romania	and	together	with	the	entire	political	class	we	will	make	sure	
Romania	and	the	EU	will	come	out	of	the	crisis	strengthened.”	

Klaus	Iohannis,	President	of	Romania	(27.06.2016)	
	
Romania	has	been	a	member	of	the	European	Union	since	2007	and	a	few	years	before	that	it	
also	joined	NATO.	Romania	is	a	founding	member	of	the	World	Trade	Organisation.	The	country	
attempted	 to	 join	 the	 Schengen	 Area	 but	 was	 rejected	 by	 the	 European	 Council	 in	 2011.	
Furthermore,	it	has	not	yet	met	the	criteria	for	adopting	the	euro,	although	it	is	expected	that	
this	will	happen	sometime	around	2020.	Since	Romania	joined	the	EU,	their	GDP	per	capita	has	
risen	by	about	41%,	making	 it	one	of	 the	 fastest	 growing	economies	 in	Europe.	Despite	 this,	
Romania	 is	still	one	of	the	poorest	members	of	the	European	Union	and	their	economy	can’t	
compete	with	the	big	nations	like	France,	Italy	or	Germany.		
	
In	Romania,	the	most	negative	effect	of	Brexit	will	probably	come	from	a	reduction	of	EU	
funding,	due	to	the	loss	of	one	of	the	biggest	net	contributors.90	On	the	other	hand,	Brexit	is	
going	to	have	a	relatively	low	impact	on	Romania’s	short-term	macroeconomic	situation,	
because	local	economic	growth	is	mostly	connected	to	private	consumption,	and	the	direct	
links	to	the	British	economy	are	minimal.91		In	recent	years	the	number	of	people	leaving	
Romania	to	go	to	the	UK	has	risen	constantly.	In	2015	more	than	200,000	people	emigrated	to	
the	UK	from	Romania.	However,	reducing	the	number	of	immigrants	was	one	of	the	main	
points	of	the	UKIP	in	the	referendum	campaign.92		
	
Ministries	of	Romania:	
Ministry	of	Foreign	Affairs:	https://www.mae.ro/en	
Ministry	of	National	Defence:	http://english.mapn.ro/	
Ministry	of	Justice:	http://www.just.ro/	
Ministry	of	Transport	and	Infrastructure:	http://mt.gov.ro/	
	

																																																													
90 http://europeanacademy.ro/2016/08/11/analysis-impact-brexit-romanian-economy/  
91 http://www.nineoclock.ro/the-effects-of-the-brexit-vote-on-romania-president-iohannis-calls-emergency-meeting-
at-the-cotroceni-palace/  
92 http://www.telegraph.co.uk/news/uknews/immigration/11987954/Romanian-and-Bulgarian-workers-top-200000-
for-first-time-say-official-figures.html  
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Slovakia	
	
Population:	5,426,252	
Seats	in	EU	Parliament:	13	
GDP:	US	$	90.263	Billion	
	
	
“I	would	support	any	measure	that	will	help	reverse	the	position	of	the	British	people,	which	we	
have	to	respect	but	also	regret.”	

Miroslav	Lajčák,	Foreign	Minister	of	Slovakia	(28.06.2016)	
	
Slovakia	joined	the	European	Union	in	2004	and	the	Eurozone	on	1	January	2009.	Slovakia	is	also	
a	member	of	the	Schengen	Area,	NATO,	the	United	Nations,	the	OECD	and	the	WTO.	Slovakia’s	
main	 export	 partners	 are	 Germany,	 the	 Czech	 Republic	 and	 Poland,	 while	 its	 main	 import	
partners	are	Germany,	the	Czech	Republic	and	Austria.	Slovakia	has	an	important	geographical	
position,	due	 to	 its	border	with	 the	Ukraine.	All	 its	other	neighbour	countries	are	part	of	 the	
European	Union	and	therefore	important	trading	partners	for	Slovakia.	The	political	relationship	
with	these	countries	is	also	very	good.93	
	
The	direct	effect	of	Brexit	to	Slovakia	won’t	be	as	big	as	for	some	other	EU	Member	States	but	is	
more	than	negligible.	Based	on	some	calculations,	Brexit	might	slow	down	the	Slovak	economy	
by	an	aggregate	0.34	percent	until	2020,	which	could	mean	5,300	less	jobs	created	and	a	hike	in	
prices	by	an	additional	0.4	percent.94	A	major	concern	is	the	status	of	EU	funds	and	what	form	
they	will	take	after	Brexit.	The	UK’s	contribution	to	the	EU	budget	constitutes	15	percent	of	the	
total,	which	would	 imply	that	the	overall	amount	of	EU	funds	will	decrease	by	a	proportional	
amount.	This	also	will	affect	Slovakia	directly,	as	it	receives	more	money	from	the	EU	than	it	pays.	
This	money	helps	to	build	roads,	subsidises	science	and	research,	and	protects	the	environment.	
	
Ministries	of	Slovakia:	
Ministry	of	Foreign	and	European	Affairs:	https://www.mzv.sk/web/en	
Ministry	of	Finance:	http://www.finance.gov.sk/En/	
Ministry	of	Economy:	http://www.economy.gov.sk/home/126312s	
Ministry	of	Environment:	https://www.minzp.sk/en/	
Ministry	of	Defence:	http://www.mosr.sk/ministry-of-defence-of-the-slovak-republic/	

	 	

																																																													
93 https://www.quora.com/How-does-your-country-get-along-with-its-neighbors  
94 https://spectator.sme.sk/c/20199957/brexit-may-directly-hurt-slovakias-economy.html  
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Slovenia	
	
Population:	2,064,188	
Seats	in	EU	Parliament:	8	
GDP:	US	$	45.917	Billion	
	
“I	 am	 convinced	 that	 the	 decision	 will,	 after	 a	 brief	 period	 of	 relative	 uncertainty	 on	 the	
international	markets,	result	in	additional	strengthening	of	the	Union	and	incentives	to	carry	out	
its	reform	that	will	allow	us	to	face	similar	challenges	more	effectively,	with	a	greater	measure	
of	solidarity	and	determination,	and	in	a	closer	partnership.”	

Miro	Cerar,	Prime	Minister	of	Slovenia	(01.07.2016)	
	
Slovenia	has	been	part	of	the	European	Union	since	2004,	and	joined	the	Monetary	Union	and	
the	Schengen	Area	three	years	later.	Slovenia	was	the	first	formerly	communist	country	to	join	
the	Eurozone.	Slovenia’s	main	export	and	import	partners	are	Germany,	Italy	and	Austria.	The	
service	sector	is	the	most	important	sector	for	the	Slovenian	economic.	With	the	entry	of	Croatia	
in	2014,	all	the	neighbour	countries	of	Slovenia	are	now	part	of	the	European	Union.		
	
The	UK	leaving	the	European	Union	is	going	to	have	a	mainly	 indirect	effect	on	the	economic	
growth	of	Slovenia,	because	its	main	trading	partners	such	as	Germany	and	Italy	will	be	directly	
affected.95	The	direct	effects	for	Slovenia	will	likely	be	related	to	payments	from,	and	to,	the	EU	
budget,	although	 it	should	be	acknowledged	that	Slovenia’s	 financial	position	 is	strong	at	 the	
moment.	For	countries	like	Slovenia	there	will	also	be	political	changes	as	a	result	of	Brexit.	With	
one	of	its	largest	members	leaving,	there	will	be	the	opportunity	for	smaller	countries	to	take	a	
more	leading	role	in	EU	decisions	due	to	the	fact	that	the	seats	in	the	European	Parliament	will	
be	redistributed.	With	the	loss	of	one	of	the	largest	countries	of	the	EU	it	will	be	difficult	for	the	
other	large	members		such	as	Germany,	France	and	Italy		to	be	able	to	gain	a	qualified	majority	
amongst	themselves.	96		
	
Ministries	of	Slovenia:		
Ministry	of	Foreign	Affairs:	http://www.mzz.gov.si/en/	
Ministry	of	Finance:	http://www.mf.gov.si/en/	
Ministry	of	Defence:	http://www.mo.gov.si/en/	
Ministry	of	economic	development	and	technology:	
http://www.vlada.si/en/about_the_government/ministries/ministry_of_economic_developme
nt_and_technology/	
	

																																																													
95http://www.vlada.si/en/media_room/newsletter/slovenia_weekly/news/article/after_brexit_indirect_effect_on_the_sl
ovenian_economy_58370/  
96 http://www.russia-direct.org/debates/post-brexit-eu-seen-small-central-european-nation  
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Spain	
	
Population:	46,423,064	
Seats	in	EU	Parliament:	54	
GDP:	US	$1.242	Trillion	
	
	
“This	result	must	make	all	(EU)	Member	States	reflect	on	how	to	strengthen	ourselves	more	
than	ever	to	win	back	the	vigour	of	the	original	spirit	behind	the	European	project	and	recover	
the	interest,	sympathy	and	attraction	our	citizens	feel	towards.”	

Mariano	Rajoy,	Spanish	prime	Minister	(24.06.2016)	
	
Spain	is	a	middle	power	and	a	developed	country	with	the	world's	fourteenth	largest	economy	
by	GDP	and	the	5th	in	the	European	Union.	Spain's	EU	membership	represents	an	important	part	
of	its	foreign	policy.	Even	on	many	international	issues	beyond	western	Europe,	Spain	prefers	to	
coordinate	 its	 efforts	 with	 its	 EU	 partners	 through	 the	 European	 political	 co-operation	
mechanisms.	Spain	supported	 the	euro	 from	the	beginning.	Spain	 is	a	member	of	 the	United	
Nations,	the	OECD,	the	WTO	and	many	other	 international	organisations.	The	main	economic	
strengths	of	Spain	are	the	agriculture	sector	and	tourism.	In	the	last	five	decades,	international	
tourism	 in	Spain	has	grown	 to	become	the	second	 largest	 in	 the	world	 in	 terms	of	 spending,	
worth	approximately	40	billion	Euros.		
	
The	 Spain-UK	 relationship	 is	 characterised	 by	 the	 huge	 inflow	 of	 people	 (tourists	 as	 well	 as	
migrants)	 and	 the	 substantial	 amount	 of	 Spanish	 direct	 investment	 in	Great	 Britain.	 In	 trade	
terms,	Spain’s	trade	surplus	with	the	UK	stood	at	1.3%	of	GDP	in	2014.	This	means	that	Spain	
exports	more	goods	to	the	UK	than	it	imports.	Unlike	other	big	economies	in	the	euro	area,	Spain	
has	a	trade	surplus	 in	both	goods	and	services	with	the	UK	(the	 latter	as	a	result	of	tourism).	
British	tourists	account	for	almost	25%	of	the	total	number	of	visitors	to	Spain.	Brexit	may	have	
a	negative	impact	on	these	trade	flows,	given	that	the	expectations	are	for	British	consumers’	
confidence	and	purchasing	power	to	decline).97	
	

Around	300	000	British	people	live	permanently	in	Spain	and	in	the	other	direction,	the	UK	is	the	
main	destination	for	Spanish	emigration,	accounting	for	14%	of	all	Spanish	immigrants.	According	
to	 estimations,	 Spanish	 immigration	 to	 the	 UK	 rose	 25%	 in	 2014	 from	 2013.	 Brexit	 spreads	
uncertainty	for	these	people.	It	is	uncertain	how	the	British	government	will	decide	on	the	free	
movement	of	workers,	one	of	the	founding	principles	of	the	European	Union.98	If	the	UK	decides	
to	repatriate	Spanish	migrants,	Spain	may	in	turn	make	it	harder	for	Britons	living	there.	
	
Ministries	of	Spain:	

																																																													
97 http://www.thelocal.es/20160623/spain-really-wants-britain-to-stay-within-the-eu-and-heres-why  
98 http://spanishnewstoday.com/what-impact-will-brexit-have-on-spain_76693-a.html  
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Ministry	of	Foreign	Affairs	and	Cooperation:	
http://www.exteriores.gob.es/Portal/en/Paginas/inicio.aspx	
Ministry	of	Defence:	http://www.defensa.gob.es/	
Ministry	of	Economy,	Industry	and	Competitiveness:	
http://www.mineco.gob.es/portal/site/mineco?lang_choosen=en	
Ministry	of	Finance	and	public	administration:	http://www.minhafp.gob.es/en-
GB/El%20Ministerio/Paginas/El%20Ministerio.aspx	
Ministry	of	Justice:	http://www.mjusticia.gob.es/cs/Satellite/Portal/en/inicio	
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Sweden	
	
Population:	10,005,60	
Seats	in	EU	Parliament:	20	
GDP:	US	$	517.440	Billion	
	
	
“We,	of	course,	need	a	good	Brexit	both	for	Britain	and	the	European	Union.	But	also	within	the	
European	Union	we	need	to	take	steps	forward	to	develop	the	union	and	not	only	be	hijacked	by	
Brexit."	

Magdalena	Andersson,	Swedish	Minister	of	Finance	(09.09.2016)	
	
Sweden	joined	the	European	Union	in	1995,	but	declined	NATO	membership,	as	well	as	Eurozone	
membership	 following	a	 referendum.	Furthermore,	 it	 is	also	a	member	of	 the	UN,	Council	of	
Europe,	 the	WTO	and	OECD.	 Sweden	maintains	 a	Nordic	 social	welfare	 system	 that	provides	
universal	health	care	and	tertiary	education	for	its	citizens.	It	has	the	world's	eighth-highest	per	
capita	income	and	ranks	highly	in	numerous	metrics	of	national	performance,	including	quality	
of	 life,	 health,	 education,	 protection	 of	 civil	 liberties,	 economic	 competitiveness,	 equality,	
prosperity	 and	 human	 development.	 The	 largest	 trade	 flows	 are	 with	 Germany,	 the	 United	
States,	Norway,	the	United	Kingdom,	Denmark	and	Finland.	
	
Since	Sweden	joined	the	EU	it	has	been	one	of	Britain’s	most	important	allies	in	dealing	with	the	
Eurozone.	Support	for	remaining	within	the	European	Union	has	grown	in	Sweden	since	Britain’s	
vote	to	leave.	More	than	63%	of	the	Swedish	Population	would	vote	to	remain	in	the	EU.	This	is	
10	%	more	than	it	was	before	the	vote	of	the	Britain	to	leave.99		
	
Sweden	 is	 in	 favour	 of	 a	 soft	 Brexit.	 This	 opinion	 is	 shared	 by	more	 than	 three-quarters	 of	
Swedish	companies.	They	are	starting	to	 feel	 the	chilling	effect	of	 the	sharp	fall	 in	the	pound	
sterling	 -Swedish	exports	 to	Britain	 are	 in	 free-fall,	with	 a	drop	of	 19%	over	 the	period	 from	
January	to	July	2016	compared	to	the	same	period	a	year	ago.100	
	

Sweden	and	the	UK	worked	closely	together	in	the	area	of	security.	In	2016	the	two	countries	
signed	a	Defence	Cooperation	Program	which	includes	more	than	50	activities.	For	Sweden,	this	
was	a	priority.	The	impact	of	Brexit	on	this	close	cooperation	is	yet	to	be	seen.101		
	
Ministries	of	Sweden:	
Ministry	of	Foreign	Affairs:	http://www.government.se/government-of-sweden/ministry-for-
foreign-affairs/	
Ministry	of	Finance:	http://www.government.se/government-of-sweden/ministry-of-finance/	

																																																													
99 http://www.independent.co.uk/news/world/europe/brexit-latest-news-sweden-support-eu-swedish-membership-
surges-a7136426.html  
100 http://www.telegraph.co.uk/business/2016/10/24/sweden-holds-out-olive-branch-to-brexit-britain/  
101 http://www.government.se/articles/2016/06/sweden-and-the-united-kingdom-enhances-defence-cooperation/  



	 78	

Ministry	of	Enterprise	and	Innovation:	http://www.government.se/government-of-
sweden/ministry-of-enterprise-and-innovation/	
Ministry	of	Defence:	http://www.government.se/government-of-sweden/ministry-of-defence/	
Ministry	of	Justice:	http://www.government.se/government-of-sweden/ministry-of-justice/	
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United	Kingdom	
	
Population:	65,110,000	
Seats	in	the	EU	Parliament:	73	
GDP:	US	$2.65	Trillion	
	
“Our	vote	to	leave	the	European	Union	was	no	rejection	of	the	values	we	share.	The	decision	to	
leave	the	EU	represents	no	desire	to	become	more	distant	to	you,	our	friends	and	neighbours.	It	
was	no	attempt	to	do	harm	to	the	EU	itself	or	to	any	of	its	remaining	Member	States.	We	do	not	
want	to	turn	the	clock	back	to	the	days	when	Europe	was	less	peaceful,	less	secure	and	less	able	
to	trade	freely.	It	was	a	vote	to	restore,	as	we	see	it,	our	parliamentary	democracy,	national	self-
determination,	and	to	become	even	more	global	and	internationalist	in	action	and	in	spirit.”	

Theresa	May,	British	Prime	Minister	(17.01.2017)102	
	
The	UK	has	been	a	leading	member	of	the	EU	since	their	entry	in	1973.	Membership	in	the	EU	
has	brought	large	economic	benefits	to	Great	Britain	over	the	last	40	years.	Of	course,	there	were	
also	 some	detriments	but,	 in	 a	 cost	benefit	 analysis,	UK	membership	 in	 the	EU	was	positive.	
However,	on	23	June	2016,	a	national	referendum	on	the	UK's	membership	of	the	EU	resulted	in	
around	52%	voting	to	exit	the	Union.		
	
The	UK’s	main	 export	 partners	 are:	 the	US,	Germany	 and	 Switzerland,	while	 its	main	 import	
partners	 are	Germany,	 China	 and	 the	US.	 In	 total,	 the	 European	Union	 is	 the	 largest	 trading	
partner	for	the	UK,	with	around	half	of	its	total	trade	being	with	the	EU.	As	a	result	of	Brexit,	the	
trade	between	the	EU	and	the	UK	is	likely	to	be	reduced	because	of	higher	tariffs	and	other	non-
tariff	barriers	 to	 trade.	On	 the	other	hand,	without	 the	EU,	Britain	can	 independently	pursue	
international	trade	deals	with	China,	India	and	the	US.			
	
The	potential	implications	of	Brexit	are	complex,	as	
they	hinge	largely	on	what	economic	actions	the	UK	
takes	after	splitting	from	the	EU.	The	collapse	of	the	
British	economy,	projected	after	the	Brexit	vote,	has	
so	far	not	occurred.	However,	the	British	pound	fell	
significantly	 in	 the	 months	 following	 the	 vote.	 It	
then	declined	to	a	three-year	 low	against	the	euro	
after	 the	Prime	Minister’s	 announcement	 that	 the	
UK	would	 begin	 formal	 Brexit	 negotiations	 by	 the	
end	of	March.		 	 	 	 	 	 	 					(Source:	
http://www.bbc.com/news/business-36611512)	
	
However,	the	biggest	 issue	at	moment	is	the	persistent	uncertainty.	Many	Britons	who	live	in	

																																																													
102  May, Theresa, available at: http://www.independent.co.uk/news/uk/home-news/full-text-theresa-may-brexit-
speech-global-britain-eu-european-union-latest-a7531361.html  
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other	EU	countries	and	 receive	 their	pensions	 there,	are	worried	 that	Brexit	 could	alter	 their	
living	circumstances.	The	same	applies	for	all	EU	inhabitants	living	in	the	UK.		
When	Britain	leaves	the	EU,	they	will	no	longer	receive	any	money	from	the	different	EU	funds.	
For	example,	Britain	will	no	longer	receive	grants	from	the	European	Regional	Development	Fund	
which	 helps	 finance	 the	 British	 television	 and	movie	 industry,	 including	 productions	 such	 as	
Game	of	Thrones.103		
	
Another	 effect	 of	 Brexit	 is	 that	 the	 UK	 could	 also	 face	 another	 internal	 unity	 problem.	 The	
popularity	of	the	independence	movements	in	Scotland	and	Northern	Ireland	could	rise	again,	
especially	in	Scotland,	where	calls	to	repeat	the	referendum	of	2014	have	been	renewed	after	
Scotland	voted	overwhelmingly	to	remain	in	the	EU.		
	
The	 impacts	of	Brexit	on	the	UK	will	begin	to	emerge	after	Article	50	 is	 triggered.	 In	the	 long	
term,	the	effects	depend	on	the	conditions	which	are	negotiated	-		if,	for	example,	the	UK	retains	
access	to	the	Single	Market	and	or	makes	compromises	on	the	movement	on	people.	
	
However,	 the	 fact	 that	 48	 %	 of	 the	 British	 people	 voted	 to	 remain	 in	 the	 EU	 is	 potentially	
destabilising.	Many	of	these	people	still	hope	that	the	referendum	will	be	repeated	and	that	the	
UK	will	remain	in	the	EU.		
	
Ministries	of	the	United	Kingdom:	
Foreign	and	Commonwealth	Office:	https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/foreign-
commonwealth-office	
Ministry	of	Defence:	https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/ministry-of-defence	
Ministry	of	Economic	and	Finance:	https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/hm-
treasury	
Ministry	of	Justice:	https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/ministry-of-justice	
Department	for	Exiting	the	European	Union:	
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-exiting-the-european-union	

	

	
	 	

																																																													
103 http://www.theverge.com/2016/6/24/12023344/brexit-entertainment-industry-impact-game-of-thrones 	
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DRAFT	DIRECTIVE		

FOR	THE	PROCESS	OF	THE	UK	LEAVING	

THE	EUROPEAN	UNION		

following	its	notification	that	it	intends	to	

withdraw	from	the	European	Union	

		
	
The	European	Parliament,		
	
Having	regard	to	Article	50	of	the	Treaty	on	European	Union	(TEU),	
	
Having	regard	to	the	notification	given	by	the	Prime	Minister	of	the	United	Kingdom	to	the	
European	Council	on	29	March	2017	in	accordance	with	Article	50(2)	TEU,	
	
Having	regard	to	its	resolution	of	June	2016	on	the	decision	to	leave	the	EU	resulting	from	the	
UK	referendum,	
	
Whereas	this	will	be	an	unprecedented	and	regrettable	event	as	a	Member	State	has	never	
withdrawn	from	the	European	Union	before,		
	
Whereas	that	withdrawal	must	be	arranged	in	an	orderly	fashion	so	as	not	to	negatively	affect	
the	European	Union,	its	citizens	and	the	process	of	European	integration,	
	
Whereas	the	European	Parliament	represents	all	citizens	of	the	European	Union	and	will	
act	throughout	the	whole	process	leading	to	the	withdrawal	of	the	United	Kingdom	to	
protect	their	interests,	
	
Whereas	although	it	is	the	sovereign	right	of	a	Member	State	to	withdraw	from	the	
European	Union,	it	is	the	duty	of	all	remaining	Member	States	to	act	in	unity	in	the	
defence	of	the	European	Union's	interests	and	its	integrity,		
	
Whereas,	therefore,	the	negotiations	will	be	conducted	between	the	United	Kingdom,	and	the	
Commission	on	behalf	of	the	European	Union	and	its	remaining	27	Member	States	(EU-	27),	
	
Whereas,	until	it	leaves	the	European	Union,	the	United	Kingdom	must	enjoy	all	the	rights	and	
fulfil	all	the	obligations	deriving	from	the	Treaties,	including	the	principle	of	sincere	
cooperation	laid	down	in	Article	4(3)	TEU,		
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Home	Affairs		

1. Requires	the	fair	treatment	of	EU-27	citizens	living	in	the	United	Kingdom	and	of	
United	Kingdom	citizens	living	in	the	EU-27	and	is	of	the	opinion	that	their	respective	
rights	and	interests	must	be	given	full	priority	in	the	negotiations;	Calls	on	British	
Authorities	to	guarantee	the	current	status	and	rights	of	all	EU	citizens	working	and	
living	in	the	UK,	including	access	to	all	state	benefits;	

	
2. Reminds	the	United	Kingdom	that	any	agreement	allowing	the	UK	access	to	the	EU	free	

internal	market	would	require	the	UK’s	adherence	to	all	four	freedoms,	including	free	
movement	of	people;	

	
3. Stresses	that	all	British	citizens	will	lose	their	right	to	live	and	work	in	the	EU	after	

Article	50	has	been	triggered	if	EU	citizens	are	denied	the	right	to	live	and	work	in	
Britain;	

	
4. Proposes	that	a	transitional	agreement	between	the	European	Union	and	the	United	

Kingdom	be	made	to	ensure	legal	certainty	and	continuity.	This	transitional	agreement	
must	maintain	the	right	balance	of	rights	and	obligations	for	both	parties	and	preserve	
the	integrity	of	the	European	Union’s	legal	order;		

	
5. Believes,	moreover,	that	any	such	agreement	must	also	be	strictly	limited	both	in	time	

–	not	exceeding	three	years	–	and	in	scope,	as	they	can	never	be	a	substitute	for	
European	Union	membership;	

	
6. Calls	on	the	UK	to	accept	the	jurisdiction	of	the	European	Court	of	Justice	during	this	

transitional	period;	
7. Calls	for	the	EU	to	make	Britain’s	membership	of	the	ECHR	a	legally	binding	

requirement	for	any	future	free	trade	agreement	with	the	UK;		
	
	

8. Recognises	that	the	special	circumstances	confronting	the	island	of	Ireland	must	be	
addressed	in	the	withdrawal	agreement;	urges	that	all	means	and	measures	consistent	
with	European	Union	law	and	the	1998	Good	Friday	Agreement	be	used	to	mitigate	the	
effects	of	the	United	Kingdom’s	withdrawal	on	the	border	between	Ireland	and	
Northern	Ireland;	insists	on	the	absolute	need	to	ensure	continuity	and	stability	of	the	
Northern	Ireland	peace	process	and	to	do	everything	possible	to	avoid	a	hardening	of	
the	border;	

	

Economics	&	Finance		

1. Stresses	the	importance	of	maintaining	the	EU	Single	Market	by	ensuring	the	free	
circulation	of	goods,	capital,	services	and	people	within	the	EU;	

2. Calls	on	the	United	Kingdom	to	pay	60	billion	Euros	towards	the	EU	budget,	in	order	to	
cover	all	previously	agreed	upon	obligations	and	projects;	

3. Reinforces	that	in	order	to	retain	full	access	to	the	EU	Single	Market	for	goods	and	
services,	the	United	Kingdom	must	abide	by	all	four	freedoms.	Opposes	any	sectoral	or	
piecemeal	provisions	that	would	provide	preferential	access	to	certain	sectors.	

4. Urges	the	United	Kingdom	to	follow	EU	standards	and	rules	regarding	financial	services	
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in	accordance	with	the	principle	of	free	movement	of	services.	Resolves	that	should	the	
United	Kingdom	refuse	to	follow	such	standards	and	rules,	United	Kingdom-based	
financial	firms	will	no	longer	be	considered	to	meet	the	equivalence	criteria	and	will	
thereafter	be	refused	access	to	the	EU	financial	services	market;	

5. Calls	for	the	United	Kingdom	to	be	granted	third	country	access	to	the	EU	financial	
services	market;	

6. Resolves	that	should	the	United	Kingdom	leave	the	Single	Market	and/	or	customs	
union,	MFN	tariffs	will	be	applied	on	imports	from	the	UK	in	accordance	with	WTO	
rules;	

7. Emphasises	the	need	to	ensure	that	tariff	rate	quotas	are	fairly	divided	between	the	UK	
and	the	EU;	

8. Calls	for	the	EU	to	seek	within	the	WTO	for	other	Members	to	approve	the	agreed	
division	of	commitments	made	on	tariff	rate	quotas.	Declares	that	the	EU	will	not	seek	
to	divide	tariff	rate	quotas	acquired	under	existing	trade	agreements	as	this	will	require	
renegotiation	of	the	same	with	trading	partners;	

9. Recognises	the	continuance	of	existing	EU	trade	agreements.	Reinforces	that	the	
United	Kingdom	may	not	negotiate	its	own	trade	agreements	until	such	time	that	it	is	
no	longer	part	of	the	EU	customs	union.	

	
	

Foreign	Affairs	-	Security	and	Defence	

	
1. Emphasises	the	need	to	ensure	that	the	UK	will	maintain	its	security	and	defence	

commitments	to	the	EU,	including	its	support	to	the	EU	Battlegroups	concept	through	
the	provision	of	troops	and	equipment,	and	its	contributions	to	EU	operations	
including:	EUFOR	Operation	Althea,	the	European	Union	Force	in	Bosnia	and	
Herzegovina,	the	EU	Training	Mission	in	Mali,	and	the	EU	Naval	Force	Mediterranean;	

2. Emphasises	the	need	to	ensure	that	the	UK	will	maintain	its	other	bilateral	and	
multilateral	commitments,	including	its	part	of	the	Joint	Expeditionary	Force	with	
Norway,	the	Netherlands,	Denmark,	Estonia,	Latvia	and	Lithuania,	the	development	of	
a	Combined	Joint	Expeditionary	Force	with	France,	and	the	UK-Netherlands	
Amphibious	Force	for	joint	training	and	operation;	

3. Calls	for	the	EU	to	use	Brexit	as	an	opportunity	to	demonstrate	that	the	EU	can	remain	
relevant	in	the	sphere	of	defence	and	security	even	after	the	exclusion	of	the	UK’s	
military	and	intelligence	power;	

4. Stresses	the	need	for	EU	Member	States	to	balance	their	use	of	different	EU,	
multilateral	and	bilateral	instruments	to	promote	further	defence	industrial	
collaboration;	

5. Calls	for	a	more	integrated	European	response	to	the	migrant	crisis;	
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6. Encourages	the	EU	to	consider	granting	the	UK	special	status	within	the	CSDP,	allowing	
the	UK	to	be	continue	being	involved	in	the	planning	and	decision-making	processes.	

	
	

Environment	&	Climate	Change	

	
1. Urges	the	EU	and	its	Member	States	to	prioritise	the	Paris	Agreement	in	Brexit	

negotiations	through	prompt	ratification	of	the	agreement,	allowing	full	EU	ratification;	

2. Calls	for	Britain	to	continue	contributing	funds	to	help	Eastern	European	nations	to	
address	the	challenges	of	modernising	their	Soviet-era	energy	generators	and	
manufacturing	companies	ensuring	success	of	the	European	Carbon	Trading	Scheme	
(ETS)	as	an	acknowledgment	of	mutual	environmental	values;		

3. Strongly	urges	Britain	to	keep	climate	change	at	the	forefront	of	policies	and	uphold	all	
international	commitments,	specifically	the	Paris	Agreement.		

4. Requests	Britain	increases	its	target	to	reduce	carbon	emissions	from	37%	to	40%	by	
2030	to	reduce	extra	emission	cuts	that	would	fall	on	EU	Member	States	due	to	the	
UK’s	withdrawal;	

5. Requests	Britain	to	prioritise	increasing	energy	access	from	renewable	resources	in	
developing	countries;	

6. Recognises	that	EU	Member	States	should	pledge	further	contributions	to	the	
European	Carbon	Trading	Scheme.	
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Appendix:	Definitions	
	
	

Border	Management	

Border	 Management	 policy	 has	 witnessed	 considerable	 developments,	 with	 the	 creation	 of	
instruments	and	agencies	such	as	the	Schengen	Information	System	(see	Glossary:	Schengen	Area),	
the	Visa	Information	system	and	the	European	Border	and	Coast	Guard	Agency.	The	challenges	linked	
to	the	increase	in	mixed	migration	flows	into	the	EU,	as	well	as	heightened	security	concerns,	have	
triggered	 a	 new	 period	 of	 activity,	 with	 a	 shift	 towards	 more	 direct	 operational	 supper	 and	 the	
Europeanisation	of	border	management	policy.	A	 single	area	without	 internal	border	checks	–	 the	
Schengen	Area	–	requires	a	common	policy	on	external	border	management.	The	EU	therefore	sets	
out	to	establish	common	standards	with	regard	to	controls	at	its	external	borders	and	to	gradually	put	
in	place	an	integrated	system	for	the	management	of	those	borders.		
	

Common	Defense	and	Security	Policy	(CSDP)	

The	 CSDP	 is	 a	 policy	 that	 enables	 the	 European	 Union	 to	 take	 a	 leading	 role	 in	 peacekeeping	
operations,	conflict	prevention	and	in	the	strengthening	of	the	international	security.	It	is	an	integral	
part	 of	 the	 EU'S	 comprehensive	 approach	 towards	 crisis	 management,	 drawing	 on	 civilian	 and	
military	assets.	Since	2003	 the	EU	has	 launched	some	30	peace	missions	and	operations	 through	
consensus	 among	EU	Member	 States.	 CSDP	missions	 can	 currently	only	be	deployed	outside	 the	
borders	of	the	EU.	
	

Conditionality	

This	is	the	practice	of	making	the	conclusion	and	implementation	of	agreements,	cooperation,	and	
assistance	 by	 the	 EU	 dependent	 on	 certain	 conditions	 being	 met.	 Conditionality	 is	 most	 often	
employed	by	the	EU	in	trade	and	development	agreements	and	enlargement	policy.	This	ensures	the	
implementation	of	core	EU	values	within	third	countries	such	as	democracy,	human	rights	and	the	
rule	of	law,	in	exchange	for	access	to	the	European	market	or	financial	aid.	
	

Council	of	Europe	

The	Council	of	Europe	is	a	European	international	organization	founded	on	5th	May	1949	by	the	Treaty	
of	London.	Today,	the	Council	of	Europe	includes	47	states	with	820	million	citizens.	It	is	a	forum	for	
debates	 on	 general	 European	 issues.	 Its	 constitution	 provides	 for	 general	 cooperation	 between	
Member	States	to	promote	economic	and	social	progress.	
	

Court	of	Justice	of	the	European	Union	(CJEU)	

The	Court	of	Justice	of	the	European	Union	ensures	that	EU	law	is	interpreted	and	applied	the	same	
in	 every	 EU	 country	 and	 that	 countries	 and	 EU	 institutions	 abide	 by	 EU	 law.	 Its	 Court	 of	 Justice	
members	are	one	judge	from	each	EU	country	plus	11	advocates	general.	The	CJEU	was	established	in	
1952	and	is	located	in	Luxembourg.		
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Customs	duties	

Customs	duties	are	a	tax	levied	on	imports	(and	sometimes	on	exports)	by	the	customs	authorities	of	
a	 country	 to	 raise	 state	 revenue	 and/	 or	 to	 protect	 domestic	 industries	 from	 more	 efficient	 or	
predatory	 competitors	 from	abroad.	 They	 are	 based	 generally	 on	 the	 value	 of	 goods	 or	 upon	 the	
weight,	dimensions,	or	some	other	criteria	of	the	item.	
	

Customs	union	

A	customs	union	is	a	type	of	trade	bloc	which	is	composed	of	a	free	trade	area	with	a	common	external	
tariff.	 The	participant	 countries	 set	 up	 common	external	 trade	policy,	 but	 in	 some	 cases	 they	use	
different	 import	 quotas.	 Reasons	 for	 establishing	 a	 customs	 union	 normally	 include	 increasing	
economic	efficiency	and	establishing	closer	political	and	cultural	ties	between	the	member	countries.	
	

Economic	sanctions	and	Embargoes	

Economic	 sanctions	 and	embargoes	 are	political	 and	 trade	 tools	 used	 to	pressure	 a	 country	 into	
agreeing	 to	 certain	 terms.	 They	 comprise	 of	 trade	 barriers	 or	 tariffs,	 restrictions	 on	 financial	
transactions,	or	 a	 combination	of	both.	 Embargoes	are	a	 type	of	 trade	barrier,	 the	 imposition	of	
which	results	in	the	complete	or	partial	restriction	of	trade	with	a	particular	country.	
	

Equivalence	licensing	system	

In	certain	cases	the	EU	may	recognise	that	the	regulatory	regime	of	
a	non-EU	country	is	“equivalent”	to	the	corresponding	EU	regime.	
This	means	that	where	equivalence	is	granted,	the	financial	services	
undertaking	 may	 benefit	 from	 passport-like	 rights,	 putting	 it	 on	
similar	footing	to	EU-based	financial	services	companies.	However,	
it	 is	 important	 to	 note	 that	 equivalence	 is	 not	 available	 for	 all	
financial	 services	 and	 that	 it	 can	 only	 be	 granted	 where	 it	 is	
explicitly	 provided	 for	 in	 EU	 legislation.	 In	 essence,	 while	
equivalence	decisions	may	enhance	the	possibilities	for	non-EU	businesses	to	conduct	business	 in	
the	EU	 in	certain	areas,	 it	primarily	serves	prudential	 regulatory	purposes	and	 is	a	 tool	 to	reduce	
overlaps	in	compliance	in	the	interest	of	EU	markets.	
	

EU	Charter	of	Fundamental	Rights	

The	Charter	of	Fundamental	Rights	of	the	EU	brings	together	in	a	single	document	the	fundamental	
rights	 protected	 in	 the	 EU.	 The	 Charter	 contains	 rights	 and	 freedoms	 under	 six	 titles:	 Dignity,	
Freedoms,	 Equality,	 Solidarity,	 Citizen’s	 Rights	 and	 Justice.	 Proclaimed	 in	 2000,	 the	 Charter	 has	
become	legally	binding	on	the	EU	with	the	entry	into	force	of	the	Treaty	of	Lisbon,	in	December	2009.		
	

Euro	area	(Eurozone)		

The	Euro	area	or	also	called	Eurozone	is	a	monetary	union	of	19	of	the	28	European	Member	States.	
All	 their	members	 adopted	 the	 euro	 (€)	 as	 their	 common	 currency.	Additional	 to	 the	 19	Member	
States,	Monaco,	San	Marino,	Andorra	and	the	Vatican	City	have	formally	agreed	with	the	EU	to	use	
the	euro	as	their	currency.		
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Eurojust	

The	EU's	judicial	coordination	unit	is	the	Eurojust	which	was	established	to	support	and	strengthen	
coordination	between	national	investigating	and	prosecuting	authorities	in	relation	to	serious	intra-
EU	Crime.	
	

European	Coal	and	Steel	Community	(ECSC)	

The	ECSC	was	an	international	organization	established	in	1951	by	the	Treaty	of	Paris.	Their	goal	was	
to	unify	the	different	European	countries	after	World	War	2.	It	was	the	first	international	organization	
which	was	based	on	the	principles	of	supranationalism.	The	organization	was	first	proposed	by	Robert	
Schumann	as	way	to	prevent	further	war	between	France	and	Germany.		
	

European	Court	of	Human	Rights	(ECHR)	

The	ECHR	is	an	international	court	set	up	in	1959.	It	rules	on	individual	or	State	applications	alleging	
violations	of	the	civil	and	political	rights	set	out	in	the	European	Convention	on	Human	Rights.	Since	
1998	it	has	sat	as	a	full-time	court	and	individuals	can	apply	to	it	directly.	The	judgements	are	binding	
on	the	countries	concerned	and	have	led	governments	to	alter	legislation	and	administrative	practice	
in	a	wide	range	of	areas.	The	court	 is	based	 in	Strasbourg	and	from	there	monitors	respect	of	 the	
human	rights	of	800	million	Europeans	in	the	47	Council	of	Europe	Member	States	that	have	ratified	
the	Convention.	The	ECHR	is	not	to	be	confused	with	the	‘Court	of	Justice	of	the	European	Union’	and	
the	‘International	Court	of	Justice’,	the	judicial	organ	of	the	United	Nations	based	in	The	Hague.		
http://www.echr.coe.int/Pages/home.aspx?p=court&c		
	

European	Counter	Terrorism	Centre	(ECTC)	

Central	 information	 hub	 by	 which	 the	 Member	 States	 can	 increase	 information	 sharing	 and	
operational	coordination.	The	ECTC	was	launched	in	January	2016	by	a	decision	from	the	EU	Justice	
and	Home	Affairs	Ministers.	The	ECTC	has	aim	to	improve	the	exchange	of	information	between	law	
enforcement	agencies	and	to	ensure	the	Member	States	make	a	collective	effort	to	fight	terrorism	
more	effective.	
	

European	Economic	Area	

The	European	Economic	Area	(EEA)	is	an	area	of	free	trade	and	free	movement	of	peoples	comprising	
the	Member	States	of	the	European	Union,	in	addition	to	Norway,	Iceland	and	Liechtenstein.	It	unites	
its	members	 into	an	 internal	market	governed	by	 the	 same	basic	 rules.	These	 rules	aim	 to	enable	
goods,	 services,	 capital	 and	 persons	 to	 move	 freely	 about	 the	 EEA	 in	 an	 open	 and	 competitive	
environment,	a	concept	referred	to	as	the	four	freedoms.	
	

European	Economic	Community	(EEC)	

The	initial	aim	of	the	EEC	was	to	bring	further	integration	between	their	Member	States:	especially	
economic	integration.	It	was	established	in	1957	by	the	Treaty	of	Rome.	The	founding	members	of	the	
EEC	were	France,	West-Germany,	 Italy,	Belgium,	 the	Netherlands	and	Luxembourg.	 In	1993	 it	was	
renamed	to	the	Economic	Community	(EC).		
	



	 88	

European	Free	Trade	Association	(EFTA)	

The	EFTA	was	established	 in	1960	as	a	 counterpart	 to	 the	EU.	The	 former	members	were	 the	UK,	
Austria,	Sweden,	Denmark,	Norway,	Portugal	and	Switzerland.	EFTA	is	a	regional	trade	organization	
and	a	free	trade	area.	Today	only	two	of	the	founding	members	are	still	part	of	the	organization.	The	
other	five	joined	the	EU.	In	return	Liechtenstein	and	Iceland	joined	the	EFTA.		
	

European	Parliament	(EP)	

The	European	Parliament	 is	the	EU’s	 law-making	body	with	 legislative,	supervisory	and	budgetary	
responsibilities.	It	has	751	MEPs	(Members	of	the	European	Parliament).	It	is	directly	elected	by	EU	
voters	every	5	years.	The	last	elections	were	in	May	2014.	The	EP	has	three	main	roles:	

● Legislative:	 i.e.	 passing	 EU	 laws	 together	 with	 the	 Council	 of	 the	 EU	 based	 European	
Commission	proposals	or	deciding	on	international	agreements	

● Supervisory:	i.e.	democratic	scrutiny	of	all	EU	institutions,	elections	observations,	examining	
citizens’	petitions	and	setting	up	inquiries	

● Budgetary:	establishing	and	approving	the	EU’s	budget	together	with	the	Council	
	https://europa.eu/european-union/about-eu/institutions-bodies/european-parliament_en	
	

European	Union	

The	European	Union	is	a	unique	economic	and	political	union	between	28	European	countries	that	
together	cover	much	of	the	continent.	The	EU	was	created	after	the	Second	World	War	as	the	
European	Economic	Community	(EEC)	in	1958.		https://europa.eu/european-union/about-eu_en	
	

	
	

	

EUROPOL	

EU’s	law	enforcement	agency	whose	main	goal	is	to	help	achieve	a	safer	Europe	for	the	benefit	of	all	
EU	citizens	by	assisting	Member	States	in	their	fight	against	serious	international	crime	and	terrorism.	
The	Europol	headquarters	is	in	The	Hague,	the	Netherlands,	and	works	closely	with	law	enforcement	
agencies	in	the	28	EU	Member	States	and	in	other	non-EU	partner	states	such	as	Australia,	Canada,	
the	USA	and	Norway.		
	
For	more	information	visit:	https://www.europol.europa.eu/	
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Euroscepticism		

Literally	Euroscepticism	means	criticism	of	the	European	Union.	The	main	source	is	traditionally	the	
notion	that	the	further	integration	of	the	EU	weakens	the	national	state.	Recently	the	euro	crisis	and	
the	migration	crisis	triggered	the	rise	of	Euroscepticism	in	several	countries	of	the	European	Union.	
	

Extremism	

The	holding	of	extreme	political	or	religious	views	
	

FIU.net	

A	decentralised	computer	network	supporting	the	Financial	Intelligence	Units	(FIUs)	in	the	European	
Union	in	their	fight	against	money	laundering	and	terrorist	financing,	by	allowing	the	exchange	of	
information	between	the	European	Union	Member	States'	FIUs	on	financial	transactions	with	a	cross-
border	nature.	
	

Foreign	Fighters	

Individuals	who	join	insurgencies	abroad.	Often	their	primary	motivation	is	ideological	or	religious	
rather	than	financial.		
	

Freedom	of	Movement	

Freedom	of	movement	and	residence	for	persons	in	the	EU	is	the	cornerstone	of	Union	citizenship,	
established	by	the	Treaty	of	Maastricht	in	1992.	The	gradual	phasing-out	of	internal	borders	under	
the	Schengen	Agreements	was	followed	by	the	adoption	of	Directive	2004/38/EC	on	the	right	of	EU	
citizens	and	their	family	members	to	move	and	reside	freely	within	the	EU.		The	Treaty	of	Maastricht	
introduced	the	notion	of	EU	citizenship	to	be	enjoyed	automatically	by	every	national	of	a	Member	
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State.	It	is	this	EU	citizenship	that	underpins	the	right	of	persons	to	move	and	reside	freely	within	
the	territory	of	the	Member	States;	in	other	words,	EU	citizens	can	move	to	and	work	in	any	other	
Member	 State	within	 the	 Schengen	 zone	without	 visa	 or	work	 permit	 applications.	 Also,	 an	 EU	
citizen	for	example,	can	travel	from	Spain	via	France	to	Germany,	on	to	Austria	and	Italy	without	
having	to	show	his	passport.		
	

Gender	Equality	

Gender	equality	is	the	equal	treatment	of	women	and	men	in	laws	and	policies,	and	equal	access	
to	resources	and	services	within	families,	communities,	and	society	at	 large.	It	connotes	fairness	
and	justice	in	the	distribution	of	opportunities,	responsibilities,	and	benefits	available	to	men	and	
women.	
	

Gender	perspective	

The	gender	perspective	looks	at	the	impact	of	gender	on	people's	opportunities,	social	roles	and	
interactions.	It	is	about	the	ways	women	and	men	interact	and	their	ability	to	access	resources	and	
opportunities,	in	their	communities	depending	on	their	being	a	woman	or	a	man.	
	

Islamic	State	of	Iraq	and	Syria	(ISIS,	IS,	Daesh,	ISIL)	

A	terrorist	group	based	in	Syria	and	Iraq.	 It	emerged	from	al-Qaeda,	who	formally	broke	off	ties	
with	the	 ISIS	after	 it	 refused	to	kill	 less	civilians.	They	have	claimed	jurisdiction	over	all	Muslims	
worldwide.	
	

Islamophobia	/	Anti-Muslim	sentiment	

The	prejudice	against,	hatred,	or	bigotry	towards	the	religion	of	Islam	or	Muslims.	The	term	entered	
into	 common	 English	 usage	 in	 1997	 with	 the	 publication	 of	 a	 report	 by	 the	 Runnymede	 Trust	
condemning	negative	emotions	such	as	fear,	hatred,	and	dread	directed	at	Islam	or	Muslims.	While	
the	term	is	now	widely	used,	both	the	term	itself	and	the	underlying	concept	of	Islamophobia	have	
been	 heavily	 disputed.	 The	 causes	 and	 characteristics	 of	 Islamophobia	 are	 still	 debated.	 Some	
scholars	 have	 defined	 it	 as	 a	 type	 of	 racism.	 Some	 commentators	 have	 posited	 an	 increase	 in	
Islamophobia	resulting	 from	the	September	11	attacks,	while	others	have	associated	 it	with	 the	
increased	 presence	 of	 Muslims	 in	 the	 United	 States,	 the	 European	 Union	 and	 other	 Western	
nations.	
Not	to	be	confused	with	criticism	of	Islam.	
	

Jihad	

In	Arabic,	the	word	means	"effort"	or	"struggle."	In	Islam,	it	could	be	an	individual's	internal	struggle	
against	baser	instincts,	the	struggle	to	build	a	good	Muslim	society,	or	a	war	for	the	faith	against	
unbelievers.	Jihadists	may	see	violent	struggle	as	necessary	to	eradicate	obstacles	to	restoring	God's	
rule	on	Earth	and	defending	the	Muslim	community,	or	umma,	against	infidels	and	apostates.	
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Member	State(s)	

Group	of	states	forming	the	European	Union,	including	the	six	founding	states:	Germany,	Belgium,	
France,	Italy,	Luxembourg	and	the	Netherlands.	Six	phases	of	accession	followed:	Denmark,	Ireland	
and	the	United	Kingdom	in	1973;	Greece	in	1981;	Spain	and	Portugal	in	1986;	Austria,	Finland	and	
Sweden	in	1995;	Eight	Eastern	European	countries,	Malta,	Cyprus	in	2004;	Bulgaria	and	Romania	in	
2007;	
	

Member	of	the	European	Parliament	(MEP)	

The	European	Parliament	(EP)	is	the	EU’s	law-making	body.	Its	members	are	directly	elected	by	EU	
voters	 every	 five	 years.	 There	 are	 751	 MEPs.	 The	 number	 of	 MEPs	 for	 each	 country	 is	 roughly	
proportionate	to	its	population,	but	this	is	by	degressive	proportionality:	no	country	can	have	fewer	
than	six	or	more	than	96	MEPs	and	the	total	number	cannot	exceed	751	(750	plus	the	president).	
MEPs	are	grouped	by	political	affiliation,	not	by	nationality.		
	
The	European	Parliament’s	work	comprises	two	main	stages:		
Committees	-	to	prepare	legislation.	The	European	Parliament	numbers	20	Committees	and	two	sub-
Committees,	each	handling	a	particular	policy	area.	The	Committees	examine	proposals	for	legislation,	
and	MEPs	and	political	groups	can	put	forward	amendments	or	propose	to	reject	a	bill.	These	issues	
are	also	debated	within	the	political	groups.		
	
Plenary	Sessions	-	to	pass	legislation.	This	is	when	all	the	MEPs	gather	in	the	chamber	to	give	a	final	
vote	on	the	proposed	legislation	and	the	proposed	amendments.	Normally	held	in	Strasbourg	for	four	
days	a	month,	but	sometimes	there	are	additional	sessions	in	Brussels.		
	

Money	laundering	

The	process	by	which	criminals	conceal	the	illegal	origin	of	the	resulting	property	or	income.	
	

Most	Favoured	Nation	

Most	favoured	nation	(MFN)	is	a	principle	of	non-discrimination	in	the	WTO,	whereby	any	concession	
or	 privilege	 granted	 by	 one	 WTO	 member	 to	 a	 product	 of	 another	 WTO	 member	 must	 be	
unconditionally	granted	to	the	like	product	of	all	other	WTO	members.	In	other	words,	it	ensures	that	
all	WTO	members	are	treated	equally.	There	are	however	exceptions	to	the	MFN	principle,	such	as	
free	trade	agreements	which	permit	the	granting	of	preferential	conditions	to	the	contracting	party	
or	parties	to	the	exclusion	of	all	non-contracting	parties.	
	

North	Atlantic	Treaty	Organisation	(NATO)	

NATO	is	a	political	and	military	alliance	with	the	essential	purpose	to	safeguard	the	freedom	and	
security	of	its	members	through	political	and	military	means.	Politically	NATO	promotes	democratic	
values	and	encourages	consultation	and	cooperation	on	defence	and	security	issues	to	build	trust	
and,	in	the	long	run,	prevent	conflict.	In	military,	NATO	is	committed	to	the	peaceful	resolution	of	
disputes.	 If	 diplomatic	 efforts	 fail,	 it	 has	 the	 military	 capacity	 needed	 to	 undertake	 crisis-
management	operations.	These	are	carried	out	under	Article	5	of	the	Washington	Treaty	-	NATO’s	
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founding	 treaty	 -	 or	 under	 a	 UN	 mandate,	 alone	 or	 in	 cooperation	 with	 other	 countries	 and	
international	organisations.		http://www.nato.int/nato-welcome/#basic	
	

Passenger	Name	Record	(PNR)	

Unique	set	of	data	created	whenever	a	reservation	is	made	for	a	flight,	consisting	of	all	information	
on	all	components	of	that	reservation.	Will	oblige	airlines	to	hand	EU	countries	their	passengers’	
data	 for	 all	 flights	 from	 a	 third	 country	 to	 the	 EU	 and	 vice	 versa.	 PNR	 aids	 risk	 assessment	 of	
unknown	individuals.	
	

Privacy	

The	European	Commission	put	forward	it	EU	Data	Protection	Reform	in	January	2012	to	make	Europe	
fit	 for	the	digital	age.	More	than	90%	of	Europeans	say	they	want	the	same	data	protection	rights	
across	the	EU	–	and	regardless	of	where	their	data	is	processed.	The	regulation	is	an	essential	step	to	
strengthen	citizens’	fundamental	rights	in	the	digital	age	and	facilitate	business	by	simplifying	rules	
for	companies	in	the	Digital	Single	Market.	With	social	networking	sites,	cloud	computing,	location-
based	services	and	smart	cards,	processing	of	personal	data	has	grown	exponentially.	A	robust	set	of	
rules	is	needed	to	make	sure	people’s	right	to	personal	data	protection	–	recognised	by	Article	8	of	
the	EU’s	Charter	of	Fundamental	Rights	–	remains	effective	in	the	digital	age.		
	

Radicalisation	

Process	by	which	an	individual	or	group	comes	to	adopt	 increasingly	extreme	political,	social,	or	
religious	ideals	and	aspirations	that:	
(1) Reject	or	undermine	the	status	quo	or		
(2) Reject	 and/or	 undermine	 contemporary	 ideas	 and	 expressions	 of	 freedom	 of	 choice	

		

	

Refugee	

A	refugee	is	someone	who	has	been	forced	to	flee	his	or	her	country	because	of	persecution,	war	or	
violence.	A	refugee	has	a	well-founded	fear	of	persecution	for	reasons	of	race,	religion,	nationality,	
political	opinion	or	membership	in	a	particular	social	group.	Most	likely	they	cannot	return	home	or	
are	afraid	to	do	so.	War	and	ethnic,	tribal	and	religious	violence	are	leading	causes	of	refugees	fleeing	
their	 country.	 They	 are	 defined	 and	protected	 in	 international	 law,	 and	must	 not	 be	 expelled	 or	
returned	to	situations	where	their	life	and	freedom	are	at	risk.	
	
An	internally	displaced	person	(IDP)	is	a	person	who	has	been	forced	to	flee	his	or	her	home	for	the	
same	reason	as	a	refugee,	but	remains	in	his	or	her	own	country	and	has	not	crossed	an	international	
border.	Unlike	refugees,	IDPs	are	not	protected	by	international	law	or	eligible	to	receive	many	types	
of	 aid.	 As	 the	 nature	 of	war	 has	 changed	 in	 the	 last	 few	 decades,	with	more	 and	more	 internal	
conflicts	replacing	wars	among	countries,	the	number	of	IDPs	has	increased	significantly.	
	
A	returnee	is	a	refugee	who	has	returned	to	his	or	her	home	country.	The	majority	of	refugees	prefer	
to	return	home	as	soon	as	it	is	safe	to	do	so,	after	a	conflict	and	the	country	is	being	rebuilt.	The	UN	
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High	Commissioner	for	Refugees	(UNHCR)	encourages	voluntary	repatriation,	or	return,	as	the	best	
solution	for	displaced	people.	
	
A	stateless	person	is	someone	who	is	not	a	citizen	of	any	country.	Citizenship	is	the	legal		
bond	between	a	government	and	an	individual,	and	allows	for	certain	political,	economic,	social	and	
other	rights	of	the	individual,	as	well	as	the	responsibilities	of	both	government	and	citizen.	A	person	
can	 become	 stateless	 due	 to	 a	 variety	 of	 reasons,	 including	 sovereign,	 legal,	 technical	 or	
administrative	decisions	or	oversights.	The	Universal	Declaration	of	Human	Rights	underlines	that	
“Everyone	has	the	right	to	a	nationality.”	
	
When	people	flee	their	own	country	and	seek	sanctuary	in	another	country,	they	apply	for	asylum	–	
the	 right	 to	 be	 recognized	 as	 a	 refugee	 and	 receive	 legal	 protection	 and	material	 assistance.	 An	
asylum	seeker	must	demonstrate	that	his	or	her	fear	of	persecution	in	his	or	her	home	country	is	
well-founded.	
	
The	1951	Geneva	Convention	is	the	main	international	instrument	of	refugee	law.	The	Convention	
clearly	spells	out	who	a	refugee	is	and	the	kind	of	legal	protection,	other	assistance	and	social	rights	
he	or	she	should	receive	from	the	countries	who	have	signed	the	document.	The	Convention	also	
defines	a	refugee’s	obligations	to	host	governments	and	certain	categories	of	people,	such	as	war	
criminals,	who	do	not	qualify	for	refugee	status.	The	Convention	was	limited	to	protecting	mainly	
European	 refugees	 in	 the	 aftermath	 of	World	War	 II,	 but	 another	 document,	 the	 1967	 Protocol,	
expanded	the	scope	of	the	Convention	as	the	problem	of	displacement	spread	around	the	world.		
For	more	information	visit:	http://www.unrefugees.org/			
	

Schengen	Agreement	

1985	 Agreement	 signed	 at	 Schengen,	 Luxembourg	 abolished	 many	 internal	 borders	 between	
European	 signatory	 states,	 enabling	 passport-free	 movement	 between	 those	 states.	 There	 are	
currently	26	signatory	states	comprising	the	Schengen	Area	-	22	of	which	are	EU	states	and	four	non-
EU	States.	
	

Schengen	Area	

The	free	movement	of	persons	is	a	fundamental	right	guaranteed	by	the	EU	to	its	citizens.	It	entitles	
every	EU	citizen	 to	 travel,	work	and	 live	 in	any	EU	country	without	 special	 formalities.	 Schengen	
cooperation	 enhances	 this	 freedom	 by	 enabling	 citizens	 to	 cross	 internal	 borders	 without	 being	
subjected	to	border	checks.	The	border-free	Schengen	Area	guarantees	free	movement	to	more	than	
400	million	EU	citizens,	as	well	as	to	many	non-EU	nationals,	businessmen,	tourists	or	other	persons	
legally	 present	 on	 EU	 territory.	 If	 there	 is	 a	 serious	 threat	 to	 public	 policy	 or	 internal	 security,	 a	
Schengen	country	may	exceptionally	temporarily	reintroduce	border	control	at	its	internal	borders,	
for	in	principle,	a	limited	period	of	no	more	than	thirty	days.			
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Single	Licensing	System	

The	EU	Single	Licensing	system	is	a	system	which	allows	financial	services	operators	(undertakings)	
legally	established	in	one	Member	State	to	establish	or	provide	their	services	 in	another	Member	
State	without	further	authorisation	requirements.	It	is	based	upon	two	principles:	mutual	recognition	
(financial	 services	 lawfully	marketed	 in	one	Member	State	may	be	marketed	 in	another	Member	
State,	 even	when	 the	 service	 does	 not	 fully	 comply	with	 the	 technical	 rules	 or	 standards	 of	 the	
Member	State	of	destination)	and	single	licence	(where	a	financial	service	operator	established	in	
one	Member	State	may	provide	services	without	obtaining	a	licence	in	other	EU	Member	States).	
This	pan-EU	authorisation	system	is	known	as	“passporting”.	
	

Single	Market	

The	European	Single	Market	refers	to	the	EU	as	one	territory	without	any	internal	borders	or	other	
regulatory	 obstacles	 to	 the	 free	 movement	 of	 goods,	 services,	 capital	 and	 people	 –	 the	 “four	
freedoms”	-	between	the	individual	Member	States.	This	stimulates	competition	and	trade,	improves	
efficiency,	raises	quality	and	helps	cut	prices.	
	

Tariffs	

Popularly	referred	to	as	a	customs	duty,	a	tariff	is	a	list	of	commodities	along	with	the	leviable	rate	
(amount)	of	customs	duty	to	be	applied	on	any	given	commodity.	
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Tariff	Rate	Quotas	

A	tariff	rate	quota	(TRQ)	is	a	trade	policy	tool	used	to	protect	a	domestically-produced	commodity	or	
product	from	competitive	imports.	A	TRQ	combines	two	policy	instruments	that	nations	historically	
have	used	to	restrict	imports:	quotas	and	tariffs.	Its	purpose	is	to	allow	a	limited	quantity	of	a	specific	
product	 into	 a	 country	 for	 consumption	 at	 a	 reduced	duty	 rate.	 Any	 imports	 above	 that	 limit	 are	
subject	to	significantly	higher	duties.	
	

Terrorism	

There	is	no	agreed	definition	of	"Terrorism	"in	the	EU.	The	European	Commission	uses	the	definition	
provided	by	the	International	Organisation	for	Migration:	
'The	intentional	and	systematic	use	of	actions	designed	to	provoke	terror	in	the	public	as	a	means	
to	certain	ends.	Terrorism	can	be	the	act	of	an	individual	or	a	group	of	individuals	acting	in	their	
individual	capacity	or	with	the	support	of	a	state'.	
	

Terrorist	financing	

The	 provision	 or	 collection	 of	 funds	 used	 to	 carry	 out	 any	 of	 the	 offences	 defined,	 such	 as	 the	
drawing-up	of	false	administrative	documents	and	the	leadership	of	a	terrorist	group.	
	

Third	Country	

A	non-EU	country.	A	country	that	is	not	a	Member	State	of	the	European	Union.	
	

Treaty	–	EU	treaties	

The	European	Union	 is	based	on	 the	 rule	of	 law.	This	means	 that	every	action	 taken	by	 the	EU	 is	
founded	 on	 treaties	 that	 have	 been	 approved	 voluntarily	 and	 democratically	 by	 all	 EU	 member	
countries.	For	example,	if	a	policy	area	is	not	cited	in	a	treaty,	the	Commission	cannot	propose	a	law	
in	that	area.	A	treaty	is	a	binding	agreement	between	EU	member	countries.	It	sets	out	EU	objectives,	
rules	for	EU	institutions,	how	decisions	are	made	and	the	relationship	between	the	EU	and	its	member	
countries.		
	

Treaty	of	Lisbon	(Lisbon	Treaty)	

A	treaty	to	make	the	EU	more	democratic,	more	efficient	and	better	able	to	address	global	problems	
such	as	climate	change	with	one	voice.	It	gave	more	power	to	the	European	Parliament,	a	change	
of	 voting	 procedures	 in	 the	 Council,	 citizens’	 initiative,	 a	 permanent	 president	 of	 the	 European	
Council,	a	new	High	Representative	for	Foreign	Affairs	and	a	new	EU	diplomatic	service.	The	Lisbon	
Treaty	clarifies	which	powers	belong	to	the	EU,	to	the	EU	member	countries	and	are	shared.	
Treaty	Text:	http://eur-lex.europa.eu/legal-content/EN/TXT/?uri=celex%3A12007L%2FTXT		
	

Treaty	of	Maastricht	on	European	Union	

The	 Treaty	 was	 signed	 at	 the	 7	 February	 1992	 by	 the	 members	 of	 the	 European	 Community	 in	
Maastricht,	Netherlands.	With	the	Treaty	entering	into	force	in	1993,	the	European	Union	(EU)	was	
created.	 The	 Treaty	 of	Maastricht	 amended	 the	 former	 Treaties	 of	 Nice,	 Amsterdam	 and	 Lisbon.	
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Furthermore,	 the	 Treaty	 established	 the	 three	 pillars:	 one	 supranational	 pillar	 created	 from	 three	
European	Communities	(which	included	the	European	Community	(EC),	the	European	Coal	and	Steel	
Community	and	the	European	Atomic	Energy	Community),	the	Common	Foreign	and	Security	Policy	
(CFSP)	pillar,	and	the	Justice	and	Home	Affairs	(JHA)	pillar.	
	

Treaty	of	Nice	

The	Treaty	of	Nice	was	signed	in	2001	and	came	into	force	in	2003.	It	amended	the	Maastricht	Treaty	
and	also	the	Treaty	of	Rome.	The	Treaty	reformed	the	institutional	structure	of	the	European	Union.	
	

UK	rebate	

The	 UK	 rebate	 or	 UK	 correction	 is	 a	 financial	 mechanism	 that	 reduces	 the	 United	 Kingdom's	
contribution	to	the	EU	budget	in	effect	since	1985.		
	

Victims’	Rights	Directive	

A	Set	of	binding	rights	 for	victims	of	crime	and	clear	obligations	 for	EU	Member	States	to	ensure	
these	rights	in	practise.	The	new	rules	are	applicable	to	all	victims	of	crime,	without	discrimination,	
including	nationality	or	residence	status.	The	application	of	the	Victims'	Rights	Directive	is	not	limited	
to	EU	citizens.		
	

World	Trade	Organisation	

The	World	Trade	Organisation	(WTO)	is	the	only	global	international	organisation	dealing	with	the	
rules	of	trade	between	nations.	At	its	heart	are	the	WTO	agreements,	negotiated	and	signed	by	the	
bulk	of	the	world’s	trading	nations	and	ratified	in	their	parliaments.	The	goal	is	to	ensure	that	trade	
flows	as	smoothly,	predictably	and	freely	as	possible,	for	the	benefit	of	all.	The	WTO	has	many	roles:	
it	operates	a	global	 system	of	 trade	 rules,	 it	acts	as	a	 forum	for	negotiating	 trade	agreements,	 it	
settles	trade	disputes	between	its	members	and	it	supports	the	needs	of	developing	countries	
	

Xenophobia	

The	fear	of	that	which	is	perceived	to	be	foreign	or	strange.	Xenophobia	can	manifest	itself	in	many	
ways	involving	the	relations	and	perceptions	of	an	ingroup	towards	an	outgroup,	including	a	fear	of	
losing	identity,	suspicion	of	its	activities,	aggression,	and	desire	to	eliminate	its	presence	to	secure	a	
presumed	 purity.	 Xenophobia	 can	 also	 be	 exhibited	 in	 the	 form	 of	 dislike	 or	 prejudice	 against	
foreigners	or	those	from	other	countries,	nationalities	and	ethnic	groups.		
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